
CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 

Tuesday, October 25, 2016        City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.          16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

Note:  A Joint Study Session with the Arts Commission is scheduled from 6:00 to 7:00 p.m. 

CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE 

PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not the audience
or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per speaker.  Speakers may request 
additional time on a future agenda as time allows. *

APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  September 13, 2016 Special & Regular Meeting; September 27, 2016 Regular Meeting;

and October 11, 2016 Regular Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson)
C-3. Authorize Covington Mixed-Use Commercial Site Development (Inland Group) Statutory Warranty

Deed for Dedication of Right-of-Way (Hart) 
C-4. Authorize Lakeside Industries Easement Agreement for Use of a Portion of City-Owned Right-of-

Way (Hart) 
C-5. Approve Ordinance Amending Portions of CMC 16.10, 14.30 and 14.45 Relating to the State

Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) Policies and Procedures for Permits and Appeals (Hart) 
C-6. Consider Ordinance to Repeal CMC Chapter 18.100, Property Specific Development Standards/

Special Overlay Districts Regulations (Hart) 
C-7. Approve Covington Community Park Phase 2 Design and Construction Grant Funding Project

Agreement (Newton) 
C-8. Approve Covington Water District System Extension Application and Agreement for Covington

Community Park Phase 2 (Newton) 

REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 
• Human Services Chair Leslie Hamada:  October 13 meeting.
• Parks & Recreation Chair Laura Morrissey:  October 19 meeting.
• Arts Chair Lesli Cohan:  August 11, September 8, and October 13 meetings.
• Planning:  Chair Bill Judd:  October 6 and October 20 meetings.
• Economic Development Council Next Meeting:   October 27 open house and special meeting.

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/


PUBLIC HEARINGS 
1. Receive Testimony from the Public Regarding Proposed Fiscal Year 2017 Budget and Revenues 

Sources and Set the Property Tax Levy (Hendrickson) (First of Three Public Hearings) 
2. Receive Testimony from the Public and Consider Ordinance Regarding Kent School District’s Six 

Year Capital Facilities Plan and School Impact Fees (Hart) 
3. Receive Testimony from the Public and Consider Ordinance on Interim Zoning Regulations CMC 

Title 18.55 Regarding Temporary and Permanent Signs (Hart) 
 
CONTINUED BUSINESS 
4. Consider Resolution Establishing Youth Council (Bolli) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
5. Update on Covington Community Park Phase 2 – 90% Design and Cost Estimate (Newton) 
6. 2017 Legislative Agenda Presentation (Lobbyist Briahna Murray/Bolli) 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – if needed 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 
 



Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  October 25, 2016   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  SEPTEMBER 13, 2016 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL 

& REGULAR MEETING MINUTES; SEPTEMBER 27, 2016 CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES; AND OCTOBER 11, 2016 CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes 
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the September 13, 2016 City Council Special & 
Regular Meeting Minutes; September 27, 2016 City Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes; and October 11, 2016 City Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes. 

1 of 244



Unapproved Draft – September 13, 2016 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  October 25, 2016 
 
 

1 
 

City of Covington 
Special & Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, September 13, 2016 
 
INTERVIEWS– 5:40-7:00 P.M.: 
The Council conducted interviews for one opening on the Human Services Commission and one 
opening on the Planning Commission.  Applicants interviewed included Jonathan Ingram, Nichole 
Pennington, Chris Dupuis, and Jennifer Harjehausen. 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, 
September 13, 2016, at 7:02 p.m., with Mayor Jeff Wagner presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Jeff Wagner, Joe Cimaomo, Margaret Harto, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, and Sean Smith. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Fran Hollums. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded to 
excuse Councilmember Hollums who was on vacation.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Regan Bolli, City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; 
Andrew McCurdy, Covington Police Chief; Ethan Newton, Parks & Recreation Director; Sara 
Springer, City Attorney (arrived @ 7:45 p.m.); and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Wagner opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Cimaomo moved and Mayor Pro Tem Smith seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 

• Cathy Stiles, Maple Valley Food Bank Projector Coordinator, accepted the Saturday, 
September 17, 2016, Mayor’s Day of Concern for the Hungry Proclamation. 
 

• Rob Smith, National Parks Conservation Association, accepted the proclamation 
Recognizing the Need for Adequate Resources for National Parks. 
 

• Mayor Jeff Wagner read the September 2016 National Recovery Month Proclamation. 
 

• Retiring Police Officer Chris Williams was presented with a proclamation to recognize and 
commend him for his years of dedication to the City of Covington and the Covington 
community. 

2 of 244



Unapproved Draft – September 13, 2016 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  October 25, 2016 
 
 

2 
 

 
The Council recessed from 7:25 to 7:45 p.m. for a short reception to honor Traffic Officer Chris 
Williams. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Wagner called for public comments. 
 
Zandy Harlin, Board of Trustees for Crisis Clinic, provided an update on the services that the 
crisis clinic offers to Covington residents including the 24-hour crisis line, King County 211, and 
the teen link line.   
 
Mary Pritchard, Covington resident, suggested Covington restaurants and fast food places stop 
using non-biodegradable materials.  Mrs. Pritchard also suggested Covington grocery stores stop 
using plastic and paper bags, and use cloth instead. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Wagner closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes:  August 9, 2016 City Council Special Meeting – Joint Study Session with Human 

Services Commission Minutes. 
 
C-2. Vouchers:  Vouchers #34453-34527, including ACH payments, in the amount of 

$243,343.94, dated August 5, 2016; Electronic fund transfers in the amount of $729.51, 
dated August 8, 2016; Vouchers #34528-34529, in the amount of $2,200.00, dated August 
11, 2016; Vouchers #34530-34594, including ACH payments and electronic fund transfers, 
in the amount of $663,063.75, dated August 19, 2016; Vouchers #34595-34604, including 
ACH payments and electronic fund transfers, in the amount of $4,345.75; Vouchers 
#34605-34652, including ACH payments and electronic fund transfers, in the amount of 
$281,437.33; Paylocity Payroll Checks #1005635715-1005635730 and Paylocity Payroll 
Checks #1005635819-1005635819 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits, in the amount 
of $202,140.96, dated August 12, 2016; Paylocity Payroll Checks #1005687457-
1005687470 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits, in the amount of $193,266.09, dated 
August 26, 2016; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1005753570-1005753583 and Paylocity 
Payroll Checks #1005753661-1005753661 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits, in the 
amount of $184,239.08, dated September 9, 2016. 
 

C-3. Final Acceptance of Gerry Crick Skate Park Renovation Project (CIP 1013). 
 

C-4. Best Parking Lot Cleaning (Street Sweeping) Agreement Amendment No. 2. 
 

C-5. WSDOT Local Agency Agreement Supplement No. 3 for SR 516:  Jenkins Creek to 185th 
Place SE (CIP 1127) Right-of-Way Acquisition. 
 

C-6. Local Agency Real Estate Professional Services Consultant Agreement for SR 516:  
Jenkins Creek to 185th Place SE (CIP 1127). 

3 of 244



Unapproved Draft – September 13, 2016 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  October 25, 2016 
 
 

3 
 

 
C-7. Resolution in Support of the Port of Seattle’s Economic Development Partnership Program. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-16 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, STATING 
THE CITY COUNCIL’S SUPPORT FOR PARTICIPATION IN 
THE PORT OF SEATTLE’S ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM.  

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Cimaomo moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS; 
1.  Consider Appointment to Planning Commission. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Cimaomo nominated Jennifer Harjehausen to fill an open 
replacement position on the Planning Commission with a term expiring August 31, 2017.  
Vote:  3 in favor (Cimaomo, Lanza, Smith). 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon nominated Jonathan Ingram to fill an open 
replacement position on the Planning Commission with a term expiring August 31, 2017.  
Vote:  3 in favor (Harto, Mhoon, Wagner). 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to bring this item back to the September 27 
meeting. 
 
2.  Consider Appointment to Human Services Commission. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Lanza nominated Chris Dupuis to fill replacement adult 
Position No. 3 on the Human Services Commission with a term expiring March 31, 2019.  
There was a voice majority vote to appoint Chris Dupuis. 
 
3.  Consider Resolution Establishing Youth City Council. 
 
City Manager Regan Bolli gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers suggested edits to the resolution and requested staff to revise and bring this item 
back to an upcoming meeting.  
 
4. 2016 Second Quarter Financial Report. 
 
Finance Director Rob Hendrickson gave the staff report on this item.   
 

4 of 244



Unapproved Draft – September 13, 2016 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  October 25, 2016 
 
 

4 
 

Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Hendrickson provided 
responses. 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: 
Councilmembers reviewed future meeting agendas. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff made comments. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Wagner called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Wagner closed the public comment period. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
To discuss real estate pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1) from 9:25 to 9:30 p.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:30 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

5 of 244



Unapproved Draft–September 27, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  October 25, 2016 
 

 1 

City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, September 27, 2016 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, 
September 27, 2016, at 7:03 p.m., with Mayor Wagner presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Jeff Wagner, Joe Cimaomo, Margaret Harto, Fran Hollums, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, and Sean 
Smith. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Ethan Newton, Acting City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Rob Hendrickson, Finance 
Director; Andrew McCurdy, Covington Police Chief; Richard Hart, Community Development Director; 
Sara Springer, City Attorney; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk. 
 
Mayor Wagner opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Hollums seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUINICATION: 

• Planning Commission Chair Bill Judd accepted the National Community Planning Month 
Proclamation for October 2016. 

• Covington Police Chief Andrew McCurdy accepted the Domestic Violence Action Month 
Proclamation for October 2016. 

• Dr. Calvin J. Watts, Kent School District Superintendent, gave a presentation on the 
November 8 Ballot Measure. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Wagner called for public comments. 
 
Paula & Jim Eccleston, spoke about a code enforcement case regarding fowls and noted the 
adverse impacts to them and the neighborhood. 
 
Mary Pritchard, Covington resident, informed the Council that a ballot drop box is now located 
at the Covington Library. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Wagner closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes:  August 9, 2016 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes. 

 
C-2. Vouchers:  Vouchers #34653-34717, including ACH payments, in the amount of 

$447,190.14, dated September 16, 2016; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1005812083-

6 of 244



Unapproved Draft–September 27, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  October 25, 2016 
 

 2 

1005812098 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits, in the amount of $185,510.16, dated 
September 23, 2016. 
 

C-3. Award Construction Contract for SE 263rd Place Drainage Improvement Project (CIP 203). 
 

C-4. Consider Resolution to Execute Land Agreement with Bonneville Power Administration for 
the Purpose of Fence Installation at Covington Community Park. 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2016-17 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING 
THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A LAND USE 
AGREEMENT WITH BONNEVILLE POWER ADMINISTRATION 
AND APPROVE A BUDGET OF $37,463 TO INSTALL A FENCE 
AT COVINGTON COMMUNITY PARK. 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Harto moved and Mayor Pro Tem Smith seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS: 
Parks & Recreation Commission – Parks & Recreation Director Ethan Newton reported on the 
August 17 Parks Tour and the September 21 Jenkins Creek Park bridges dedication, open house 
and special meeting. 
 
Arts Commission – no report. 
 
Planning Commission – Chair Bill Judd reported on the September 1 meeting; September 15 
meeting canceled. 
 
Economic Development Council – Co-Chair Krista Bates reported on the July 28, August 25, 
and September 22 meetings. 
 
Human Services Commission – Chair Leslie Hamada reported on the August 11 and September 
8 meetings. 
 
CONTINUED BUSINESS: 
1.  Consider Appointment to Planning Commission. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Harto moved and Councilmember Hollums seconded to 
appoint Jonathan Ingram to fill an open position on the Planning Commission for an 
applicant residing inside Covington city limits with a term expiring August 31, 2017.  Vote:  
7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
2.  Discussion and Direction on Animal Control Enforcement Action for Code Violations. 
 

7 of 244



Unapproved Draft–September 27, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  October 25, 2016 
 

 3 

Community Development Director Richard Hart gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and City Attorney Sara Springer and 
Mr. Hart provided responses. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to direct staff to proceed with abatement. 
 
3.  Discuss Parks & Recreation Priorities Advisory Committee Report. 
 
Parks & Recreation Director Ethan Newton gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Newton and Ms. Springer 
provided responses. 
 
Councilmember Lanza asked for additional information on the committee’s recommendation to 
form a 501(c)3 parks and recreation foundation.  Mr. Newton provided responses and Council 
discussed and provided further comments. 
 
Council suggested this discussion item could be continued at the next Strategic Planning Summit, 
the next tri cities meeting, and/or in the strategic planning process. 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: 
Councilmembers reviewed future agenda items. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff made comments. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Mayor Wagner called for public comments. 
 
George Pearson, Covington resident, thanked Council and the Parks & Recreation Commission 
for the honor bestowed on him and his wife regarding the bridge naming at Jenkins Creek Park.  
Mr. Pearson noted his appreciation on the wonderful way Covington recognizes its volunteers. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Wagner closed the public comment period. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:42 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 
 

8 of 244



Unapproved Draft – October 11, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  October 25, 2016 
 
 

1 
 

City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, October 11, 2016 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, October 
11, 2016, at 7:02 p.m., with Mayor Jeff Wagner presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Jeff Wagner, Joe Cimaomo, Margaret Harto, Fran Hollums, Mark Lanza (arrived @ 7:07 p.m.), 
Marlla Mhoon, and Sean Smith. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded to 
excuse Councilmember Lanza who was running late.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Regan Bolli, City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; 
Andrew McCurdy, Covington Police Chief; Richard Hart, Community Development Director; 
Ethan Newton, Parks & Recreation Director; Sara Springer, City Attorney; and Sharon Scott, City 
Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Wagner opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Cimaomo moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 

• Dr. Calvin J. Watts, Kent School District Superintendent, accepted the Safe Schools Week 
Proclamation for the week of October 16-22, 2016. 
 

• Captain Kyle Ohashi, Public Information Officer for Kent Fire Department Regional Fire 
Authority, accepted the Fire Prevention Week Proclamation for week of October 9-15, 
2016. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Wagner called for public comments. 
 
Arthur Harvey, Covington resident, informed Council of his discovery regarding mandatory 
garbage service due to returning from vacation recently.  Mr. Harvey stated he was dissatisfied 
with the service and asked for information regarding the previous garbage contractor and previous 
type of service provided. 
 
Mayor Wagner directed Mr. Harvey to Public Works Director Don Vondran to answer his 
questions. 

9 of 244



Unapproved Draft – October 11, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  October 25, 2016 
 
 

2 
 

 
There being no further comments, Mayor Wagner closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Vouchers:  Vouchers #34718-34770, including ACH payments and electronic fund 

transfers, in the amount of $324,327.11, dated September 30, 2016; and Paylocity Payroll 
Checks #1005872794-1005872812 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits, in the amount 
of $178,034.12, dated October 7, 2016. 
 

Council Action:  Councilmember Harto moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS; 
1.  Consider Resolution Supporting Kent School District Bond. 
 
City Manager Regan Bolli gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers spoke in support of the resolution. 
 

RESOLUTION 2016-18 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, STATING THE CITY 
COUNCIL’S SUPPORT OF KENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION 1 ON THE NOVEMBER 8, 2016, GENERAL 
ELECTION BALLOT 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Lanza moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded to 
adopt Resolution No. 2016-18 stating the city council’s support of Kent School District 
Proposition 1 on the November 8, 2016, general election ballot, in substantial form as that 
included in the agenda packet.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
2.  Discuss Proposed Interim Sign Code Regulations. 
 
Community Development Director Richard Hart gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Hart and City Attorney Sara 
Springer provided responses. 
 
Councilmembers suggested several revisions and directed staff to bring this item back for council 
review at a future meeting. 
 
3.  Discuss and Provide Direction on Participation in the King County Community Van Program. 
 
Community Development Director Richard Hart gave the staff report on this item. 

10 of 244



Unapproved Draft – October 11, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  October 25, 2016 
 
 

3 
 

 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Hart provided responses. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Harto moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded to 
decline moving forward with the Tri-City/King County Demonstration Community Van 
Program at this time, and inform King County and other proposed participant cities.  Vote:  
7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
4.  City Manager Presents 2017 Budget Message. 
 
City Manager Regan Bolli gave the budget message presentation. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions.  Mr. Bolli, Finance Director Rob 
Hendrickson, and Public Works Director Don Vondran provided responses. 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: 
Councilmembers reviewed future meeting agendas. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff made comments. 
 
Councilmember Mhoon will convey to Sound Cities Association Covington’s support of Sound 
Cities Association legislative agenda. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Wagner called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Wagner closed the public comment period. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
To Discuss Potential Litigation (RCW 42.30.110(1)(i)) from 9:20 to 9:29 p.m. 
 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Smith moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded to 
authorize city manager to execute a waiver of the city’s right of first opportunity to negotiate 
purchase of this building for landlord’s present sale opportunity.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:29 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

11 of 244



Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  October 25, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Vouchers:  Vouchers #34771-34838, including ACH payments and 
electronic fund transfers, in the amount of $517,236.77, dated October 14, 2016; and Paylocity 
Payroll Checks #1005933893-1005933910 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits, in the 
amount of $188,847.52, dated October 21, 2016. 
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment Vouchers:  Vouchers #34771-34838, 
including ACH payments and electronic fund transfers, in the amount of 
$517,236.77, dated October 14, 2016; and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1005933893-1005933910 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits, in the 
amount of $188,847.52, dated October 21, 2016. 
 
 
 

 

12 of 244



13 of 244



14 of 244



15 of 244



16 of 244



17 of 244



18 of 244



19 of 244



20 of 244



21 of 244



22 of 244



23 of 244



24 of 244



25 of 244



26 of 244



27 of 244



28 of 244



29 of 244



Consent Agenda Item C-3 
Covington City Council Meeting 

 Date: October 28, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:  AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN A STATUTORY WARRANTY 

DEED FOR THE DEDICATION OF REAL PROPERTY, IN THE FORM OF 
PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY IN ASSOCIATION WITH THE DEVELOPMENT OF 
THE COVINGTON MIXED-USE COMMERCIAL SITE DEVELOPMENT 
PERMIT (LU14-0006/0010). 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):   

1. Statutory Warranty Deed for dedication of right-of-way 
 
PREPARED BY:  Salina Lyons, Principal Planner 
 Nelson Ogren, Development Review Engineer 
 
EXPLANATION:   
Pursuant to the Director’s Conditions of Approval (“Conditions”) for the Covington Mixed-Use 
Commercial Site Development Permit City File Numbers LU14-0006/0010, Inland Group 
(“Developer”) is required to dedicate and construct right-of-way as follows, and identified in 
Attachment 1, Exhibit B:  
 
1. 38 feet of right-of-way along the eastern property line and construct half street improvements 

for SE 276th St. 

2. 33 feet of right-of-way along the western property line and construct half street improvements 
for 171st Ave SE. 

3. 33 feet of right-of-way along the northern property line to accommodate the future location 
of SE 274th St.  The developer was not required to construct any street improvements within 
the dedication area.  It is anticipated that SE 274th St. will be constructed at such time as the 
development to the north redevelops (Safeway Shopping Center). 
 

Upon completion of the attached Statutory Warranty Deed, the dedication areas will be 
transferred to the city as public right-of-way (Attachment 1). 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   None. This is a legally recorded document. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Authorization of the easement agreement will not have a direct fiscal 
impact.   
 
  

30 of 244



CITY COUNCIL ACTION:           Ordinance            Resolution       X     Motion             Other 
 

Council member _______________ moves, Council member ______________ 
seconds, to authorize the city manager to sign a Statutory Warranty Deed, in 
substantial form as that attached hereto, for the dedication of right-of-way to 
the city associated with the development of the Covington Mixed-Use 
Commercial Site Development permit (LU14-0006/0010). 

 
REVIEWED BY: Community Development Director, Finance Director, City Attorney, City 

Manager 

31 of 244



 
 -1-  

WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 
City of Covington 
16720 SE 271st St. Ste 100 
Covington, WA  98042 
Attn: Permit Services 
 
 

Grantor:  Polaris at Covington, LLC 

Grantee: City of Covington 

Abbreviated Legal Description: Tract A, B and C of BSP 20141119001072, in Covington, 

King County, Washington. 

Assessor’s Tax Parcel ID Nos. 1796130030, 1796130040, 1796130050 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

STATUTORY WARRANTY DEED 
 
 

THE Grantor, POLARIS AT COVINGTON, LLC, a Washington limited liability 

company, for and in consideration of mutual benefit and other good and valuable consideration, 

receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, conveys and warrants to the CITY OF COVINGTON, 

a Washington municipal corporation, and its successors and assigns, all of its right, title, and 

interest, and any after-acquired interest therein, in and to the following described real property 

situated in King County, Washington: 

Tracts A, B and C of Binding Site Plan No. 20141119001072.  A full legal 
description of such property is attached hereto as Exhibit A, and a copy of 
Binding Site Plan 20141119001072 is attached hereto as Exhibit B, both of 
which are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
 
The Grantor hereby covenants that it is the owner in fee simple and the property is free 

of all liens and encumbrances, except any right, title, easement, or encumbrance of record, it has 

ATTACHMENT 1

32 of 244



-2-

good and legal right to convey the real property above-described and it will pay all taxes and 

assessments due and owing on the property.  

DATED THIS _________ day of __________________________________, 2016. 

GRANTOR  

POLARIS AT COVINGTON, LLC 

By:  Polaris Covington Manager, LLC 
Its:   Manager 

By:___________________________________ 
        Darin Davidson 
Its:   Manager 

Accepted on behalf of the City of Covington this ____ day of ________________, 2016. 

CITY OF COVINGTON 

By: _____________________________ 
      Regan Bolli, City Manager 

33 of 244



 
 -3-  

STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF SPOKANE ) 
 
On this day personally appeared before me Darin Davidson, to me known to be the                          
of Manager of Polaris Covington Manager, LLC, the Manager of Polaris at Covington, LLC, the 
limited liability company that executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged the said 
instrument to be the free and voluntary act and deed of said limited liability company, for the 
uses and purposes therein mentioned, and on oath stated that he was authorized to execute said 
instrument and that the seal affixed, if any, is the corporate seal of said limited liability company. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal the day and year 
first above written. 
 
 
      
     ______________________________________ 
     NOTARY PUBLIC, in and for the State of  
     Washington, residing at Spokane 
     My appointment expires __________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

34 of 244



 
 -4-  

Exhibit A 
 

Legal Description 
 

TRACTS A, B AND C AS SHOWN ON THAT CERTAIN MAP ENTITLED BINDING 
SITE PLAN, FILE NO. LU14-009/0010, RECORDED ON NOVEMBER 19, 2014 
UNDER RECORDING NO. 20141119001072, RECORDS OF KING COUNTY 
AUDITOR. 
 
SITUATE IN THE CITY OF COVINGTON, COUNTY OF KING, STATE OF 
WASHIGNTON. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

35 of 244



 
 -5-  

Exhibit B 
 

Binding Site Plan 
 

(attached) 
 

36 of 244



37 of 244



38 of 244



Consent Agenda Item C-4 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: October 25, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN EASEMENT 

AGREEMENT WITH LAKESIDE INDUSTRIES GRANTING THEM USE OF A 
PORTION OF CITY RIGHT-OF-WAY, IDENTIFIED AS THE COLLIER AND 
LUND REVISION ROAD LOCATED ON PARCEL NO. 1922069041 (THE 
“HAWK PROPERTY”, IN THE CITY OF COVINGTON.  

 
RECOMMENDED BY: Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
 Don Vondran, Public Works Director 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Proposed easement agreement with Lakeside Industries. 
2. Map of current location of Lakeside Industries operations (Google Earth). 
3. Site plan of proposed new location of Lakeside Industries operations. 
4. Email from Lakeside Industries regarding sunset of proposed new location of operations 

and easement in 2021. 
 
PREPARED BY:  Salina Lyons, Principal Planner 
 Nelson Ogren, Development Review Engineer 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The purpose of this agenda bill is to request that the city council grant an easement to Lakeside 
Industries (“Lakeside”) for their use of a portion of city-owned right-of-way (“ROW”), identified 
as a portion of the Collier and Lund Revision road located on Parcel Nos. 1922069041, 
3022069001, 2022069152 and 2922069162 (property commonly known as the “Hawk 
Property”). The proposed easement agreement is included as Attachment 1.  
 
A. Scope of Easement Agreement 
Lakeside currently operates an asphalt batch plant on the Hawk Property at the location 
identified in Attachment 2. As a result of the redevelopment of the Hawk Property as Lakepointe 
Urban Village, pursuant to the Hawk Property Planned Action Ordinance (“PAO”) and Subarea 
Plan passed by the city council, Lakeside will be required to move their asphalt batch plant 
facility to a different location on the Hawk Property. The site plan for the proposed new location 
of Lakeside’s operations is included as Attachment 3.    
 
The proposed area designated for Lakeside’s new asphalt batch facility will encroach into a 
portion of city-owned ROW identified as a portion of the Collier and Lund Revision Road. The 
ROW is 60 ft. wide, is undeveloped (no improvements), and is currently not used by the city. As 
shown in Attachment 1, Exhibit A, the proposed easement for Lakeside’s use extends for 
approximately 500 linear feet of the ROW, resulting in approximately 39,720 sq. ft. of 
encroachment.   
 

39 of 244



B. Associated Building Permit Application 
The proposed easement agreement is connected to a building permit application submitted by 
Lakeside for the new location of their asphalt batch plant facility (B16-0082), which is currently 
under review by the city.  Lakeside considers the new facility to be “temporary”, as it can be 
removed and located on a different property in the future. However, the applicable building 
codes define temporary structures as those used for a period of 180 days or less. Therefore, 
because Lakeside intends to continue to operate their asphalt batch facility throughout 
construction of the Lakepointe Urban Village development, the structure is considered 
permanent and requires a valid building permit.  
 
C. Associated Zoning Map Amendments—Sunset of Asphalt Batch Plant Use 
As the city council is aware, the city and Oakpointe LLC (“Oakpointe”), the master developer of 
the Lakepointe Urban Village development, have been negotiating a development agreement to 
govern the development of the Hawk Property (in conjunction with the PAO and Subarea Plan). 
Oakpointe intends to submit a zoning map amendment application along with their development 
agreement application. As part of the proposed zoning map amendment, the parcel upon which 
Lakeside’s asphalt batch plant will operate is proposed to be rezoned from its current zoning of 
Mineral (M) to Regional Commercial Mixed Use (RCMU). Upon the adoption of such 
amendments to the city’s zoning map, Lakeside’s asphalt batch plant operations will be 
considered a legal non-confirming use subject to an amortization period terminating at the end of 
2021; at such time, their non-conforming use status will sunset and their asphalt batch plant 
facilities will need to be removed. Lakeside is aware of this amortization, or sunset, of their 
current use of the property. (Attachment 4) 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
1.  Deny giving authority to the city manager to execute the proposed Lakeside Easement 

agreement. 
2.  Request additional information from staff. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
Execution of the easement agreement will not have a direct fiscal impact on the city.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution     X   Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to authorize the city manager to execute an easement agreement 
with Lakeside Industries, in substantial form as that presented, granting 
them use of a portion of city right-of-way, identified as the Collier and Lund 
Revision Road on the Hawk Property in the City of Covington.  
 

REVIEWED BY: Community Development Director, Finance Director, City Manager, City 
Attorney.  

  

40 of 244



1 

2201 001 me205h02cr.002c 

AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 
Barry G. Ziker 
Joyce Ziker Parkinson, PLLC 
1601 Fifth Avenue, Suite 2040 
Seattle, WA 98101 

EASEMENT AGREEMENT 

Grantor: City of Covington  

Grantee: Lakeside Industries, Inc. 

Abbreviated Legal: Portion of Collier and Lund Revision Road, King County Survey No. 20-
22-6-3

Tax Parcel Nos.: 192206-9041, 3022069001, 2022069152, and 2922069162 

Related Documents: N/A 

The City of Covington, a Washington municipal corporation (“Grantor”) and Lakeside 
Industries, Inc., a Washington corporation (“Grantee”) enter into this Easement Agreement 
(“Agreement”) as of the _____ day of _____________, 2016 (“Effective Date”). 

1. Background

Grantor owns the real property described on Exhibit A (“Grantor Property”).  Grantee is the lessee 
of all or a portion of the real property described on Exhibit B (“Grantee Property”).  Grantee 
desires to use the Grantor Property for business purposes and for ingress and egress to and from 
its business premises, and Grantor is willing to grant an easement for such use on the terms and 
conditions set forth below.  The parties agree that Grantor’s grant of the easement and the 
respective rights and obligations of the parties are supported by good and valuable consideration, 
the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged. 

2. Rights and Obligations of the Parties.

2.1 Grant of Easement.  Grantor hereby grants and conveys to Grantee an easement
(“Easement”) across and over the Grantor Property as described in Exhibit A for ingress 
and egress to Grantee’s business premises located on the Grantee Property as described 

ATTACHMENT 1

41 of 244



2 
 

2201 001 me205h02cr.002c               

in Exhibit B, and for general business purposes, including but not limited to equipment 
storage. 

 
2.2 Duration of Easement.  The Easement shall continue for so long as Grantee holds a 

leasehold interest in Grantee’s Property. 
 

2.3 Maintenance.  Grantee shall be responsible for inspecting, maintaining, and repairing 
the Grantor Property during the term of the Easement; provided, however, that Grantee 
shall not make any improvements or alterations to the Grantor Property without the 
prior written consent of Grantor.   

 
2.4 Indemnity.  Grantee shall indemnify, defend, and hold Grantor harmless from and 

against all injuries, losses, damages, claims, penalties, liabilities, suits, expenses, and 
costs (collectively, “Claims”) arising from or in connection with the granting of the 
Easement or the use, inspection, maintenance, or repair of the Grantor Property, except 
to the extent such Claims are caused by the negligent or intentional acts or omissions 
of Grantor or Grantor’s agents or contractors.   

 
2.5 As Is; Termination.  Grantee hereby accepts the Grantor Property in its current “as-is, 

where-is” condition.  Upon termination, expiration, or abandonment of the Easement, 
Grantee shall return the Grantor Property to its condition on the Effective Date (but 
only to the extent such condition has been changed by the Grantee, its employees, 
contractors, agents, or invitees), ordinary wear and tear excepted.   

 
2.6 Compliance with Laws.  Grantee shall comply with all applicable local, state, and 

federal laws affecting Grantee’s operation of its business as it relates in any way to the 
Easement. 

 
2.7 Benefit and Burden.  This Easement shall burden the Grantor Property and shall be for 

the benefit of Grantee and the Grantee Property. 
 

3. Miscellaneous 
 

3.1 Notices.  Any demand, request, or notice that either party desires or may be required to 
make or deliver to the other shall be in writing and shall be deemed effective when (i) 
personally delivered, (ii) one (1) business day after placed in the hands of a reputable 
overnight courier, or (iii) three (3) business days after placed in the U.S. Mail, postage 
pre-paid, registered or certified, in each case addressed as follows: 

 
To Grantor: City of Covington 

16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100 
Covington, WA 98042-4964 
Attn: ______________________ 

 
  To: Grantee: Lakeside Industries, Inc. 

PO Box 7016 

42 of 244



3 
 

2201 001 me205h02cr.002c               

6505 226th Place SE, Suite 200 
Issaquah, WA 98027 
Attn: Michael Lee and Karen Deal 
 

Copy to: Joyce Ziker Parkinson, PLLC 
1601 Fifth Avenue, Suite 2040 
Seattle, WA 98101 
Attn:  Barry G. Ziker 

 
 or to such other address and person as either party may communicate to the other 

by like written notice. 
 

3.2 Grantor’s Authority.  Grantor represents and warrants that it has full right, title, and 
interest in and to the Grantor Property to the extent necessary to make this Agreement 
and that the person or persons executing this Agreement on behalf of Grantor have been 
duly authorized to do so. 

 
3.3 Grantee’s Authority.  Grantee represents and warrants that the person or persons 

executing this Agreement on behalf of Grantee have been duly authorized to do so. 
 

3.4 Enforcement; Applicable Law.  In the event of a breach of any of the covenants or 
agreements set forth in this Agreement the injured party shall, except as expressly 
stated in this Agreement, be entitled to any and all remedies at law or in equity, 
including but not limited to the equitable remedies of specific performance or 
injunction issued by a court of competent jurisdiction.  In any suit, action, or appeal 
therefrom to enforce any provision of, or to interpret, this Agreement, the prevailing 
party shall be entitled to recover its costs incurred, including reasonable attorney’s fees 
and expenses.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Washington without regard to conflict of law principles. 

 
3.5 Final Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the final expression and entire 

agreement of the parties with respect to its subject matter.  No party is relying upon any 
oral agreement or other understanding not expressly set forth in this Agreement. This 
Agreement replaces and supersedes any pre-existing agreement involving the subject 
of this Agreement. 

 
3.6 Amendment.  This Agreement shall not be modified, amended, or terminated without a 

writing signed by Grantor and Grantee, or each of their assigns or successors in interest. 
 

3.7 Easements to Run With the Land; Binding on Successors and Assigns.  The easement, 
covenants, restrictions, benefits, and obligations hereunder are not personal, but shall 
run with the land and shall be binding upon and run for the benefit of the owners of the 
Grantor Property and the Grantee Property, their heirs, administrators, personal 
representatives, successors, and assigns and all persons and parties claiming by or 
through any of them during the term of this Agreement.    

 

43 of 244



4 
 

2201 001 me205h02cr.002c               

3.8 Waiver.  No waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be effective unless 
it is in writing and signed by the person or entity against whom it is asserted, and any 
such written waiver shall only be applicable in the specific instance to which it relates 
and shall not be deemed to be a continuing or future waiver. 

 
3.9 Further Assurance.  Each party to this Agreement shall execute and deliver to the other 

party any and all documents that may be reasonably necessary or appropriate to carry 
out the provisions of this Agreement.  

 
3.10 Exhibits.  Exhibits A and B attached hereto are incorporated into and made a part of 

this Agreement. 
 
 

  

44 of 244



5 
 

2201 001 me205h02cr.002c               

 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Easement Agreement is effective for all purposes as of the 
Effective Date. 
 
 
GRANTOR: 
 
CITY OF COVINGTON: 
 
 
By       
 
 
Printed Name      
 
 
Title       
 
 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF KING  ) 
 

 
I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that ___________________________ is the 
person who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that s/he signed this instrument, 
on oath stated that s/he was authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it as the 
_____________________ of the City of Covington, a Washington municipal corporation, to be 
the free and voluntary act of such party for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal the day and year in this certificate above written. 
 
 

        
Signature 
 
        
Print Name 
 
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of 
Washington, residing at     
My commission expires     

45 of 244



6 
 

2201 001 me205h02cr.002c               

GRANTEE: 
 
LAKESIDE INDUSTRIES, INC. 
 
 
By       
 
 
Printed Name:  Michael Lee 
 
 
Title:  President 
 
 
 
STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF KING  ) 
 
 
I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that Michael Lee is the person who appeared 
before me, and said person acknowledged that he signed this instrument, on oath stated that he was 
authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it as the President of Lakeside Industries, 
Inc., a Washington corporation, to be the free and voluntary act of such party for the uses and 
purposes mentioned in the instrument. 
 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal the day and year in this certificate above written. 
 
 

        
Signature 
 
        
Print Name 
 
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of 
Washington, residing at     
My commission expires     

 

46 of 244



7 
 

2201 001 me205h02cr.002c               

EXHIBIT A 
 

Grantor Property 
 

 

THAT PORTION OF THE COLLIER AND LUND REVISION ROAD, KING COUNTY SURVEY NO. 
20-22-6-3, BEING A 60 FOOT ROAD AS CONVEYED BY WARRANTY DEED RECORDED 
UNDER RECORDING NO. 8608120403, RECORDS OF KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, LYING 
30 FEET ON EACH SIDE OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED LINE: 

COMMENCING AT P.T. ROADWAY STATION 49+86.42 AS DESCRIBED IN SAID DEED; 

THENCE ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT, THE CENTER WHICH BEARS SOUTH 00o24’31” 
WEST, 500.00 FEET, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 05o19’09”, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 
46.42 FEET TO ROADWAY STATION 49+40 AND THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING; 

THENCE ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT, THE CENTER WHICH BEARS SOUTH 04o54’38” 
EAST, 500.00, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 05o19’09”, AND ARC DISTANCE OF 46.42 
FEET; 

THENCE SOUTH 89°35’29” EAST, 615.58 FEET TO ROADWAY STATION 56+02 AND THE 
TERMINUS OF THIS DESCRIBED LINE; 

CONTAINING 39,720 SQUARE FEET, MORE OR LESS. 

 

47 of 244



8 
 

2201 001 me205h02cr.002c               48 of 244



9 
 

2201 001 me205h02cr.002c               

EXHIBIT B 
 

Grantee Property 
 

49 of 244



10 
 

2201 001 me205h02cr.002c               

 
 

  

50 of 244



11 
 

2201 001 me205h02cr.002c               

s  

51 of 244



ATTACHMENT 2

52 of 244



N

ATTACHMENT 3

53 of 244



N

54 of 244



1

Salina Lyons

From: Karen Deal <Karen.Deal@lakesideindustries.com>
Sent: Monday, October 3, 2016 9:53 AM
To: Salina Lyons
Cc: Ann Mueller; Richard Hart
Subject: RE: Lakeside Asphalt Plant- Hawk Property

Hi Salina, 

Thank you for the update.  Yes, we understood that there would be a sunset clause for non‐conforming uses.  Thank you 
for providing me with the associated details. 

Sincerely, 
Karen 

From: Salina Lyons [mailto:slyons@covingtonwa.gov]  
Sent: Monday, October 3, 2016 9:48 AM 
To: Karen Deal 
Cc: Ann Mueller; Richard Hart 
Subject: Lakeside Asphalt Plant- Hawk Property 

Karen  
As you know the city is working with Oakpointe on the development of the Hawk Property (aka Lakepointe). The next 
step is for Oakpointe to submit a rezone of the Hawk property from Mineral (M) to the zoning designations in the 
Planned Action Ordinance.  The site where you are currently operating and will be operating will change from Mineral to 
Regional Commercial Mixed Use (RCMU); therefore, your use will become legally non‐conforming.   

The city will also be updating the zoning code to include a sunset clause requiring that any non‐conforming uses will 
need to be removed from the site by 2021, with a possibility for an extension pursuant to conditions.  It has been 
understood that all parties involved know that this site is not intended to be a long term location for Lakeside, and I 
suspect this information won’t come as a surprise.   

As we are getting closer to issuing the permit for this project, I want to make sure you are looped into the discussions 
with Oakpointe regarding the operation of your business on the Hawk site.  

Salina Lyons, AICP 
Principal Planner | City of Covington 
Direct: 253‐480‐2442 | Main: 253‐480‐2400 
slyons@covingtonwa.gov 
www.covingtonwa.gov |www.facebook.com/cityofcovington 
Hours M‐Th 7:00AM ‐ 5:30PM ‐ Department is Closed Fridays, Weekends & Holidays. 

I check email twice daily at 9:00 AM and 2:00 PM  Monday‐Thursday.  I respond to urgent email at those times and 
endeavor to respond to all other email within 24 hours during my office hours. 

ATTACHMENT 4

55 of 244



 Consent Agenda Item C-5 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: October 25, 2016  
 
SUBJECT: CONSIDER ORDINANCE AMENDING PORTIONS OF CHAPTERS 16.10, 

14.30, AND 14.45 OF THE COVINGTON MUNICIPAL CODE (CMC), 
RELATING TO THE STATE ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT (SEPA) 
POLICIES AMD PROCEDURES FOR PERMITS AND APPEALS. 

  
RECOMMENDED BY:  Planning Commission 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Proposed Ordinance Amending CMC Titles 14 and 16  

 
PREPARED BY:   Ann Mueller, Senior Planner, 
  Richard Hart, Director of Community Development 

  
EXPLANATION: 
A. Summary of Proposed Amendments  

 
Chapter 16.10 of the Covington Municipal Code (CMC), State Environmental Policy Act, 
contains the city’s SEPA procedures and policies, which are consistent with the requirements of 
the State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) under RCW 43.21C and implementing rules under 
the Washington Administrative Code (WAC 197-11). However, city staff and our consultant, 
BERK, have identified some procedures for the review and appeal of environmental 
determinations that could be better defined for clarity. Additionally, staff is proposing 
amendments to Chapter 14.30 CMC, Permit Decision Types, related to the timing of EIS review 
by the planning commission for non-project actions, as well as corrections to out of date 
references to SEPA state laws and rules. 
 
Specifically, as written, the CMC does not clearly state what items under SEPA can be appealed 
administratively. Accordingly, staff is recommending additional language relating to processing 
SEPA appeals in the case of legislative proposals (e.g. plans, codes, and area-wide rezones) that 
are considered by the planning commission with a final decision by the city council.   
 
The following is a general summary of the proposed amendments to the CMC regarding SEPA 
review and processing, as included in the proposed attached ordinance (Attachment 1): 
 
1. Clarifications to SEPA appeal procedures for legislative matters.  

 
• Legislative matters are policy choices typically brought before the planning commission 

for recommendation and always subject to city council decisions for action or no action.  

• Currently, city code indicates that appeals should be heard by the decision-making body 
on the action. Therefore, the city council would hear SEPA appeals associated with 
legislative actions.  

56 of 244



• Typically, the underlying action would need to be appealed in addition to the SEPA 
determination. This is problematic since the city council would have to make its decision 
first and then be the body to hear an appeal. 

• In any case, city council decisions regarding the comprehensive plan or development 
regulations are appealable to the Growth Management Hearings Board, including 
associated SEPA determinations. This is stated appropriately in the CMC. 

• It is recommended that administrative appeal opportunities be retained for project 
permits but excluded for legislative matters since there are appeal opportunities to the 
Growth Management Hearings Board. 

2. The proposed amendment will allow for Draft Environmental Impact Statements (Draft EIS) 
to go to the planning commission, instead of the Final EIS. This will allow the SEPA 
comment period to overlap the planning commission hearing process and offer the planning 
commission a greater role in shaping the preferred alternative to be included in a Final EIS. It 
will also create more flexibility in the overall legislative review schedule. 
 

3. WAC 197-11 rules are included by reference throughout the CMC. Several changes to SEPA 
(RCW 43.21C) in 2012 have not been carried forward into implementing rules in WAC 197-
11; these SEPA law references should be included in the city’s SEPA procedures to ensure 
that noticing and other technical procedures are followed. The proposed amendments also 
add references to relatively newer RCW provisions. 
 

4. Also included in the proposed amendments are several simple corrections to incorrect state 
statute citations.  

 
B. Planning Commission Review and Decision Criteria 
 
The planning commission considered the proposed amendments to CMC Title 14 and 16 at a 
public hearing on October 6, 2016.  There was no public comment or testimony given on these 
proposed amendments. The planning commission took final action and voted to forward a 
recommendation to the city council to approve the proposed amendments to Chapters 16.10, 
State Environmental Policy Act, 14.30 Permit Decision Types, and 14.45, Appeal Procedures, of 
the CMC.  
 
The planning commission based its final recommendation on the following criteria (in italics) 
and associated findings:  
 
(1) The proposed amendment is consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of the 
comprehensive plan. 
 
Finding: The proposed amendments to portions of Chapters 16.10, 14.30, and 14.45 of the CMC 
are consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of Covington’s comprehensive plan. 
 
(2) The proposed amendment is consistent with the scope and purpose of the City’s zoning 
ordinances and the description and purpose of the zone classification applied for. 
 

57 of 244



Finding: The proposed amendments to portions of Chapters 16.10, 14.30, and 14.45 of the CMC 
are not-site specific and apply across all zones of the city.   
 
(3) Circumstances have changed substantially since the establishment of the current zoning map 
or district to warrant the proposed amendment. 
 
Finding:  N/A. The proposed amendments to portions of Chapters 16.10, 14.30, and 14.45 of the 
CMC will not affect the current zoning map or zoning district designations.  
 
(4) The proposed zoning is consistent and compatible with the uses and zoning of surrounding 
property. 
 
Finding:  N/A. The proposed amendments to portions of Chapters 16.10, 14.30, and 14.45 of the 
CMC do not affect the existing zoning of land in the City of Covington. 
 
(5) The property that is the subject of the amendment is suited for the uses allowed in the 
proposed zoning classification. 
 
Finding:  N/A. The proposed amendments to portions of Chapters 16.10, 14.30, and 14.45 of the 
CMC are not site-specific.   
 
(6) The amendment is in compliance with the three-year limitation rule as specified in CMC 
14.27.030(3). 
 
Finding:  The proposed amendments to portions of Chapters 16.10, 14.30, and 14.45 of the CMC 
have not been proposed or subject to review by the city in the past three years.  
 
(7) Adequate public services could be made available to serve the full range of proposed uses in 
that zone. 
 
Finding:  N/A. The proposed amendments to portions of Chapters 16.10, 14.30, and 14.45 of the 
CMC will not change the zoning of any property in the city and will not create any increased 
demand for public services.  
 
C. Public Notice 

 
A 60-day notice of the proposed change to the Covington Municipal Code was sent to the 
Washington State Department of Commerce on August 9, 2016.  On September 16, 2016, public 
notice of the proposed code amendments, the date of the planning commission public hearing, 
and the date of the city council’s consideration of the planning commission’s recommendation 
was published in the Covington Reporter, placed on the city website, and posted at City Hall.   
 
D. Council Consideration and Action 
 
At tonight’s city council meeting, council members will review, discuss, and consider the 
planning commission’s recommendation and proposed amendments to portions of Chapters 

58 of 244



16.10, 14.30, and 14.45 of the CMC.  The council may approve and adopt the amendments as 
provided in the presented ordinance (Attachment 1), modify the commission’s recommendation, 
or refer the regulations back to the commission and staff for further study.   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Recommend amendments to the proposed ordinance.  
2. Return the issue to city staff and the planning commission for further study and analysis. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
None, outside of the minimal staff time to administer and enforce the regulations after adoption.   
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    X     Ordinance       Resolution         Motion         Other 
 

Council member ______________ moves, Council member _______________ 
seconds, to pass an ordinance, in substantial form as presented, to amend 
portions of Chapters 16.10, 14.30, and 14.45 of the Covington Municipal 
Code relating to SEPA rules, permit decision types, and appeal procedures.  

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; Finance Director; City Attorney. 

59 of 244



 ORDINANCE NO. 17-2016 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, AMENDING 
SELECT SECTIONS OF CHAPTERS 16.10, 14.30, AND 14.45 
OF THE COVINGTON MUNICIPAL CODE, RELATING TO 
THE STATE ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT POLICIES 
AMD PROCEDURES FOR PERMITS AND APPEALS; 
PROVIDING FOR CORRECTIONS AND SEVERABILITY; 
AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

WHEREAS, Chapter 35A.63 of the Revised Code of Washington (RCW) empowers the 
City of Covington (“City”) to enact planning and environmental regulations, including State 
Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) rules and policies and procedure for permits and appeals; and 

WHEREAS, amending portions of Chapters, 16.10, State Environmental Policy Act 
Rules; 14.30, Permit Decision Types; and 14.45, Appeal Procedures, of the Covington Municipal 
Code (CMC) is necessary to resolve inconsistencies within the CMC and to clean up 
inconsistencies and outdated provisions from the King County Code originally adopted upon 
incorporation of the City; and 

WHEREAS, City staff transmitted the proposed amendments to Chapters 16.10, 14.30, and 
14.45 of the CMC to the Washington State Department of Commerce on August 9, 2016, as 
required under RCW 36.70A.106, and has received no comments from state agencies; and 

WHEREAS, on October 6, 2016, the Covington Planning Commission held a duly 
noticed public hearing and considered and reviewed the proposed amendments to Chapters 16.10, 
14.30, and 14.45 of the CMC and forwarded a recommendation to the city council on October 25, 
2016, to approve the proposed amendments; and  

WHEREAS, the proposed amendments to Chapters 16.10, 14.30, and 14.45 of the CMC are 
consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of the City’s comprehensive plan; and  

WHEREAS, the proposed amendments to Chapters 16.10, 14.30, and 14.45 of the CMC serve; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Covington, upon review of the facts, 
findings, and recommendations of the Covington Planning Commission, and after reviewing 
information provided by City staff, find that all applicable and substantive requirements of the 
law have been met, that the adoption of this ordinance promotes the public health, safety, and 
general welfare of the community, and that the adoption of this ordinance serves the public 
interest.  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

ATTACHMENT 1

60 of 244



Section 1. Findings of Fact. The “Whereas” provisions above shall constitute Findings of Fact 
and are incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein. 
  
Section 2. CMC Section 16.10.070 Amended. Covington Municipal Code Section 16.10.070 is 
hereby amended as follows: 
 

16.10.070 Additional timing considerations. 

(1) For nonexempt proposals, the determination of nonsignificance or in the case 
where an EIS has been required, a final environmental impact statement (FEIS) for 
the proposal will accompany the staff recommendation, if any, in a quasi-judicial 
proceeding on a non-exempt application by the Hearing Examiner.  

(2) For nonexempt legislative proposals, the DNS or draft EIS or other threshold 
determination and SEPA environmental documentation for the proposal shall 
accompany the City’s staff recommendation to the appropriate advisory body, such 
as the Planning Commission. 

 
Section 3. CMC Section 16.10.090 Amended. Covington Municipal Code Section 16.10.090 is 
hereby amended as follows: 

16.10.090 Categorical exemptions (flexible thresholds). 

(1) The City establishes the following exempt levels for minor new construction 
under WAC 197-11-800(1)(bc) and (d) based on local conditions: 

(a) The construction or location of any single-family residential structures of nine 
or fewer dwelling units; 

(b) The construction or location of any multifamily residential structures of 60 or 
fewer units located within the mixed housing/office (MHO), mixed commercial 
(MC), and general commercial (GC) downtown zoning districts and the R-18 
multifamily zone; 

(c) The construction of a barn, loafing shed, farm equipment storage building, 
produce storage or packing structure, or similar agricultural structure, covering 

61 of 244



30,000 square feet, and to be used only by the property owner or his or her agent in 
the conduct of farming the property. This exemption shall not apply to feed lots; 

(d) The construction of an office, school, commercial, recreational, service or 
storage building with 12,000 square feet of gross floor area, and with associated 
parking facilities designated for 40 automobiles; 

(e) The construction of a parking lot designated for 40 automobiles; 

(f) Any landfill or excavation of 500 cubic yards throughout the total lifetime of the 
fill or excavation; and any fill or excavation classified as a Class I, II, or III forest 
practice under RCW 76.09.050 or regulations thereunder; provided, that the 
categorical exemption threshold shall be 250 cubic yards for any fill or excavation 
that occurs on a site that contains critical areas as defined in Chapter 18.65 CMC 
and the Shoreline Master Program, as amended. 

(2) The City adopts the following provisions of the Revised Code of Washington 
by reference, as now existing or as hereafter amended regarding exemptions for 
nonproject proposals: 

RCW 
43.21C.450 

Nonproject actions exempt from 
requirements of chapter. 

(32) Whenever the City establishes new exempt levels under this section, it will 
send them to the Department of Ecology, Headquarters Office, Olympia, 
Washington 98504, pursuant to WAC 197-11-800(1)(c).  
 

Section 4. CMC Subsection 16.10.110(1) Amended. Covington Municipal Code Subsection 
16.10.110(1) is hereby amended as follows: 

 
16.10.110 Environmental checklist. 

(1) Except as provided in subsection (4) of this section, a completed environmental 
checklist, in the form provided in WAC 197-11-906 960, must be filed at the same 
time as an application for a permit, license or other approval not exempted in this 
chapter; except, a checklist is not needed if the City and applicant agree an EIS is 
required, SEPA compliance has been completed, or SEPA compliance has been 
initiated by another agency. The City will use the environmental checklist to 

62 of 244

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=76.09.050
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Covington/#!/Covington18/Covington1865.html#18.65


determine the lead agency and, if the lead agency, for making the threshold 
determination. 

Section 5. CMC Section 16.10.130 Amended. Covington Municipal Code Section 16.10.130 is 
hereby amended as follows: 
 

16.10.130 Environmental impact statement (EIS). 

(1) This section contains the rules for preparing environmental impact statements. 
The City adopts the following provisions of the Washington Administrative Code 
by reference, as now existing or as hereafter amended: 

WAC 

197-11-400     Purpose of EIS 
197-11-402     General requirements 
197-11-405     EIS types 
197-11-406     EIS timing 
197-11-408     Scoping 
197-11-410     Expanded scoping 
197-11-420     EIS preparation 
197-11-425     Style and size 
197-11-430     Format 
197-11-435     Cover letter or memo 
197-11-440     EIS contents 
197-11-442     Contents of EIS on nonproject proposals 
197-11-443     EIS contents when prior nonproject EIS 
197-11-444     Elements of the environment 
197-11-448     Relationship of EIS to other considerations 
197-11-450     Cost-benefit analysis 
197-11-455     Issuance of DEIS 
197-11-460     Issuance of FEIS 

(2) Regarding the preparation of an EIS in support of a Planned Action, the City 
adopts the following provisions of the Revised Code of Washington and 
Washington Administrative Code by reference, as now existing or as hereafter 
amended: 

RCW 
43.21C.440 

Planned action—Defined—Authority of a 
county, city, or town—Community meetings. 

WAC 197-11-164 Planned actions—Definition and criteria. 

63 of 244

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=197-11-400
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=197-11-402
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=197-11-405
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=197-11-406
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=197-11-408
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=197-11-410
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=197-11-420
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=197-11-425
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=197-11-430
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=197-11-435
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=197-11-440
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=197-11-442
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=197-11-443
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=197-11-444
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=197-11-448
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=197-11-450
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=197-11-455
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=197-11-460
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.21C.440
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=197-11-164


WAC 197-11-168 Ordinances or resolutions designating planned 
actions—Procedures for adoption. 

WAC 197-11-172 Planned actions—Project review. 

(3) The City adopts reference the following optional provisions for nonproject EIS 
preparation in the Revised Code of Washington. Unless specified in notices that the 
City is implementing these optional provisions, standard provisions in Subsection 
A or Subsection B shall apply. 

RCW 
43.21C.420 

Comprehensive plans and development 
regulations—Optional elements—Nonproject 
environmental impact statements—Subarea 
plans—Transfer of development rights program—
Recovery of expenses. 

RCW 
43.21C.428 

Recovery of expenses of nonproject environmental 
impact statements—Fees for subsequent 
development. 

 
Section 6. CMC Subsection 16.10.140(4) Amended. Covington Municipal Code Subsection 
16.10.140(4) is hereby amended as follows: 
 

16.10.140 Preparation of EIS (additional considerations). 
… 
(4) The following additional elements are part of the environment for the purpose 
of EIS content may optionally be addressed in an EIS to aid in decision-making at 
the direction of the SEPA Responsible Official, but do not add to the criteria for 
threshold determinations or perform any other function or purpose under this 
chapter consistent with WAC 197-11-448 and WAC 197-11-450: 

(a) Economy; 
(b) Social policy analysis; 
(c) Cost-benefit analysis.  

 
 
 

64 of 244

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=197-11-168
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=197-11-172
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.21C.420
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.21C.428


Section 7. CMC Subsection 16.10.160(5) Amended. Covington Municipal Code Subsection 
16.10.160(5) is hereby amended as follows: 

 
16.10.160 Public notice. 
... 
(5) Public notice for projects that qualify as planned actions will be tied to the 
underlying permit as specified in WAC 197-11-172(3) and meet requirements for 
notices to tribes and agencies with jurisdiction as provided in RCW 43.21C.440 
(3)(b). 

Section 8. CMC Section 16.10.190 Amended. Covington Municipal Code Section 16.10.190 is 
hereby amended as follows: 
 

16.10.190 SEPA and agency decisions. 

(1) This section contains rules (and policies) for SEPA’s substantive authority, such 
as decisions to mitigate or reject proposals as a result of SEPA. This section also 
contains procedures for appealing SEPA determinations to agencies or the courts. 
The City adopts the following provisions of the Washington Administrative Code 
by reference, as now existing or as hereafter amended: 

WAC 
197-11-650     Purpose 
197-11-655     Implementation 
197-11-660     Substantive authority and mitigation 
197-11-680     Appeals 

(2) Administrative appeal procedures are addressed in CMC 16.10.210. 

Section 9. CMC Subsection 16.10.200(4)(c) Amended. Covington Municipal Code Section 
16.10.200(4)(c) is hereby amended as follows: 

 
16.10.200 Substantive authority. 
… 

(4) The City designates and adopts the following policies as the basis for the 
City’s exercise of authority pursuant to this section: 
… 

65 of 244

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=197-11-172
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=197-11-650
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=197-11-655
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=197-11-660
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=197-11-680


(c) The City adopts by reference the policies and regulations in the following 
documents: 

(i) The City’s current most recently adopted comprehensive plan, as amended; 
(ii) The City’s zoning code (CMC Title 18), as amended; 
(iii) The City’s subdivision code (CMC Title 17), as amended; 
(iv) The City’s most recently adopted International Building Code, as amended; 
(v) The City’s most recently adopted International Residential Code; 
(vi) The City’s most recently adopted Uniform Plumbing Code, as amended; 
(vii) The City’s most recently adopted International Mechanical Code, as 
amended; 
(viii) The City’s most recently adopted International Fire Code, as amended; 
(ix) The City’s most recently adopted International Existing Building Code; 
(x) The City’s most recently adopted International Energy Conservation Code, as 
amended; 
(xi) The City’s most recently adopted International Property Maintenance Code, 
as amended; 
(xii) The City’s street, sidewalk, and bridges code (CMC Title 12), as amended; 
(xiii) The City’s planning and development code (CMC Title 14), as amended; 
(xiv) The City’s most recently adopted shoreline management code master 
program, as amended; 
(xv) The City’s water and sewer systems code State Department of Health’s 
Water System Planning Handbook, as amended; 
(xvi) The City’s surface water management code stormwater manuals (CMC Title 
13), as amended; 
(xvii) The City’s current six-year transportation improvement program, as 
amended; 
(xviii) The City’s current capital improvement program, as amended; 
(xix) The current King County transportation needs report, as amended; 
(xxxix) All other City-adopted land development ordinances and policies; and 
(xxi) The City’s current Design and Construction Standards and Specifications.  

 
 
 
 
 

66 of 244



Section 10. CMC Section 16.10.210 Amended. Covington Municipal Code Section 16.10.210 
is hereby amended as follows: 
 

16.10.210 Appeals. 

(1) The City establishes the following administrative appeal procedures under 
RCW 43.21C.075 and WAC 197-11-680: 

(a)   Project Permits: Any agency or person may appeal the City’s procedural 
compliance with Chapter 197-11 WAC for issuance of the following (the appeal 
must be made to the Administrative Hearing Examiner within fourteen (14) days 
of the date of issuance. A decision involving a SEPA determination of 
nonsignificance which required public comments shall have the appeal period 
extended an additional seven (7) days: 

(i)    A DNS; 
(ii)    A DS; or 
(iii)  A Final EIS. 

(b) Legislative Proposals: There is no administrative appeal of a DNS, DS, or 
Final EIS adequacy associated with a legislative decision. 

 (12) Appeals of an environmental determination will be in the same manner as 
the project requiring the environmental determination. 

(a) For any appeal under this section, the City will provide for a record that will 
consist of the following: 

(i) Findings and conclusions; 
(ii) Testimony under oath; and 
(iii) A taped or written transcript. 

(b) The City may require the appellant to provide an electronic transcript. 

(c) The procedural determination by the responsible official will carry substantial 
weight in any appeal proceeding. 

(23) The City will give official notice under WAC 197-11-168(5) whenever it 
issues a permit or approval for which a statute or ordinance established a time 
limit for commencing judicial appeal.  

67 of 244

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=43.21C.075
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=197-11-680
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=197-11
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=197-11-168


Section 11. CMC Section 14.30.040 Amended. Section 14.30.040 of the Covington Municipal 
Code is hereby amended as follows: 

14.30.040 Decision types. 1 
 

Type 1 Type 2 Type 3 Type 4 

Building Permit 
(15.05) 
Grading Permit 
(14.60) 
Boundary Line 
Adjustment (17.40) 
Right-of-Way Use 
Permit (12.35) 
Design and 
Construction 
Standards Deviation 
(12.60) 
Clearing and Grading 
Design Deviation 
(14.60) 
Shoreline Exemption 
(16.05) 
Code Interpretation 
(14.30) 
Miscellaneous 
Administrative 
Decisions 
Minor Tree Removal 
(18.45) 
WCF Collocation on 
a Transmission 
Structure or WCF 
Tower (18.70) 

Short Plat (Including 
Revisions and 
Alterations) (17.20) 
Design and Construction 
Standards Variance 
(12.60) 
Clearing and Grading 
Design Variance (14.60) 
Design Departure from 
the City of Covington 
Design Guidelines and 
Standards (18.31) 
Downtown Permitted 
Use Determination 
(18.31) 
Temporary Use (18.85) 
Shoreline Substantial 
Development 
Permit2 (16.05) 
SEPA Threshold 
Determination3 
Commercial Site 
Development Permit 
(18.31 and 18.110) 
Re-use of Facilities 
(18.85) 
Critical Areas 
Reasonable Use 
Exceptions (18.65) 

Preliminary Plat (17.20) 
Plat Alterations (17.25) 
Preliminary Plat 
Revisions (17.20) 
Zoning Variance 
(18.125) 
Conditional Use 
Permits (18.125) 
New Wireless 
Communication Facility 
Towers and Height 
Modifications (18.70) 

Final 
Subdivision4(17.25) 
Shoreline Environment 
Redesignations (16.05) 
Plat or Short Plat 
Vacations (17.25) 
Street Vacations 
(12.55) 

68 of 244



Binding Site Plan 
(17.30) 
Major Tree Removal 
(18.45) 
Stormwater Manuals 
Variance (13.25) 
Wireless 
Communication 
Facilities Collocations 
(18.70) 

 

1 If a conflict between this chart and the text of the CMC exists, the text of the CMC 
controls. 

2 When applications for shoreline permits are combined with other permits 
requiring Type 3 or 4 land use decisions, the Examiner, not the Director, makes the 
decision. All shoreline permits, including shoreline variances and conditional uses, 
are appealable to the State Shorelines Hearings Board and not to the Hearing 
Examiner. 

3 Appeal to Examiner is limited to the SEPA threshold determination for a project 
permit. The decision on the Type 1 permit itself is appealable to Superior Court. 

4 Final subdivisions are submitted directly to the City Council for final decision 
without a recommendation by the Hearing Examiner. 

 
 
 
 
[THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

69 of 244



Section 12. CMC Section 14.30.050 Amended. Section 14.30.050 of the Covington Municipal 
Code is hereby amended as follows: 

14.30.050 Requirements by decision type.1 
 

  Type 1 Type 2 Type 3 Type 4 

Recommendation 
made by: 

n/a n/a Director Hearing 
Examiner 

Final decision made 
by: 

Director Director Hearing 
Examiner 

City Council 

Notice of permit 
application: 

No Yes Yes Yes 

Notice of final 
decision: 

No Yes Yes Yes 

Open record public 
hearing: 

No No Yes, before the 
Hearing 
Examiner 

Yes, before the 
Hearing 
Examiner 

Closed record appeal 
hearing: 

No Yes, before the Hearing 
Examiner regarding 
project proposals 

No No 

Judicial appeal: King County 
Superior 
Court 

King County Superior 
Court 

King County 
Superior Court 

King County 
Superior Court 

 
Section 13. CMC Subsection 14.30.060(6) Amended. Subsection 14.30.060(6) of the 
Covington Municipal Code is hereby amended as follows: 
 

14.30.060 Legislative actions. 
… 

(6) Appeals. The City Council’s final legislative decision may be appealed together 
with any SEPA final threshold determination by filing a petition with the Growth 
Management Hearings Board pursuant to the requirements set forth in 
RCW 36.70A.290, as currently adopted and hereafter amended from time to time.  

70 of 244



Section 14. CMC Subsection 14.45.030(1) Amended. Subsection 14.45.030(1) of the 
Covington Municipal Code is hereby amended as follows: 

14.45.030 Procedures. 
(1) An administrative appeal of a Type 2, 3, or 4 project decision and of any 
environmental determination issued at the same time as the project decision shall 
be filed with the City Clerk within 14 days after the notice of the decision or after 
other notice that the decision has been made and is appealable. The appeal fee as 
set forth in the current fee resolution shall also be filed with the City within this 
time frame. The appeal period shall be extended for an additional seven days if 
public comment is allowed on a determination of nonsignificance issued as part of 
the appealable project permit decision. 

Section 15. Savings. The enactment of this ordinance shall not affect any application, case, 
proceeding, appeal, or other matter currently pending administratively or judicially in any court 
or in any way modify any right or liability, civil or criminal, which may be in existence on the 
effective date of this ordinance. 
  
Section 16. Severability. Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 
ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance, be declared unconstitutional or 
otherwise invalid for any reason, or should any portion of this ordinance be pre-empted by state 
or federal law or regulation, such decision or preemption shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this ordinance or its application to other persons or circumstances. 
 
Section 17. Corrections. Upon approval of the city attorney, the city clerk and/or code codifier 
is authorized to make necessary corrections to this ordinance, including, but not limited to, the 
correction of clerical errors; references to other local, state, or federal laws, codes, rules, or 
regulations; or section/subsection numbering. 

 
Section 18. Effective Date. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days after 
publication in the city’s newspaper of record.  A summary of this ordinance may be published in 
lieu of publishing the ordinance in its entirety. 
 

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 
WASHINGTON, at a regular meeting thereof on the 25th day of October, 2016, and signed 
in authentication of its passage. 

 
 
_______________________                      
Mayor Jeff Wagner 

     
PUBLISHED:  10-28-2016 
EFFECTIVE:   11-02-2016 

 

71 of 244



ATTESTED: 
 
                                          
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 
 
_________________________ 
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

72 of 244



Consent Agenda Item C-6  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: October 25, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER PROPOSED ORDINANCE TO REPEAL CHAPTER 18.100 CMC, 

PROPERTY SPECIFIC DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS/SPECIAL OVERLAY 
DISTRICTS REGULATIONS.  

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Planning Commission 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Proposed Ordinance Repealing Chapter 18.100 CMC, Property Specific Development 

Standards/Special Overlay Districts 
 

PREPARED BY:   Ann Mueller, Senior Planner 
  Richard Hart, Director of Community Development 

  
EXPLANATION: 
 
A. Background 

 
As the city council is aware, upon incorporation, the city adopted much of the King County Code 
(KCC) to serve as the Covington Municipal Code (CMC). These regulations are now out of date 
and, in some instances, reference non-applicable county zoning designations and standards that 
are not implemented by staff in the review of land use applications.  City staff has also identified 
portions of the CMC that should have been previously repealed when the city adopted new 
regulations regarding the same subject matter.   
 
B. Chapter 18.100 CMC Obsolete 

 
The Planning Commission is forwarding a recommendation to repeal Chapter 18.100 CMC in its 
entirety, as it is an unnecessary and obsolete code provision remaining from the city’s initial 
adoption of the KCC. The city’s comprehensive plan does not identify the need for special 
property-specific development standards or overlay districts to implement land use policies or 
environmental regulations. Additionally, the regulatory intent of Chapter 18.100 CMC is already 
captured by Chapter 18.68 CMC, Critical Area Regulations, and the city’s Shoreline Master 
Program, which address groundwater, aquifer, erosion hazards, and urban stream protection; and 
Chapter 18.31 CMC, Downtown Development and Design Standards, which promotes economic 
development in the downtown zones.  
 
C. Planning Commission Review and Decision Criteria  

 
The planning commission considered the proposal to repeal to Chapter 18.100 CMC at a public 
hearing on October 6, 2016.  There was no public comment or testimony given on the proposed 
repeal. The planning commission took final action and voted to forward a recommendation to the 

73 of 244



city council to approve the proposal to repeal Chapter 18.100 CMC, Property Specific 
Development Standards/Special Overlay Districts.  

 
The planning commission based its final recommendation on the following criteria (in italics) 
and associated findings:  
 
(1) The proposed amendment is consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of the 
comprehensive plan. 
 
Finding: The proposed ordinance to repeal Chapter 18.100 CMC, Property Specific 
Development Standards/Special Overlay Districts, is consistent with the goals, objectives, and 
policies of Covington’s comprehensive plan. 
 
(2) The proposed amendment is consistent with the scope and purpose of the City’s zoning 
ordinances and the description and purpose of the zone classification applied for. 
 
Finding: The proposed ordinance is not site-specific and is a legislative change that applies 
across all zones of the city.  The ordinance is consistent with the existing zoning code, and more 
recent standards have been previously adopted to ensure that critical areas are protected and 
economic development opportunities in the downtown zones are promoted.  
 
(3) Circumstances have changed substantially since the establishment of the current zoning map 
or district to warrant the proposed amendment. 
 
Finding:  N/A. The proposed ordinance will not affect the current zoning map or zoning district 
designations. There are no overlay districts or property specific zoning in use in the City of 
Covington. 
 
(4) The proposed zoning is consistent and compatible with the uses and zoning of surrounding 
property. 
 
Finding:  N/A. The proposed ordinance does not affect the existing zoning of land in the City of 
Covington. 
 
(5) The property that is the subject of the amendment is suited for the uses allowed in the 
proposed zoning classification. 
 
Finding:  N/A. The proposed ordinance is not site-specific.   
 
(6) The amendment is in compliance with the three-year limitation rule as specified in CMC 
14.27.030(3). 
 
Finding:  An ordinance to repeal Chapter 18.100 CMC, Property Specific Development 
Standards/Special Overlay Districts, has not been proposed or been subject to review by the city 
in the past three years.  
 

74 of 244



(7) Adequate public services could be made available to serve the full range of proposed uses in 
that zone. 
 
Finding:  N/A. The proposed ordinance will not change the zoning of any property in the city and 
will not create any increased demand for public services.  
 
D. Public Notice 
A 60-day notice of the proposed change to the Zoning Code was sent to the Washington State 
Department of Commerce on August 9, 2016.  The city SEPA Official issued a DNS on August 
26, 2016, with a 14-day comment period which ended on September 9, 2016 – no comments 
were received on the SEPA determination.  On September 16, 2016, public notice of this 
proposed code amendment, the date of the public hearing held by the planning commission, and 
the date of the city council’s consideration of the planning commission’s recommendation was 
published in the Covington Reporter, placed on the city website, and posted at City Hall.   
 
E. Council Consideration and Action 
At tonight’s city council meeting, council members will review, discuss, and consider the 
planning commission’s findings and recommendation to repeal Chapter 18.100 CMC. The 
council may approve and pass the proposed ordinance to repeal Chapter 18.100 CMC, as 
presented in Attachment 1, modify the planning commission’s recommendation, or refer the 
matter back to the planning commission and staff for further study.   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Recommend amendments to the proposed ordinance.  
2. Return the issue to city staff and the planning commission for further study and analysis. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
None, outside of the minimal staff time to administer and enforce the regulations after adoption.   
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    X     Ordinance       Resolution         Motion         Other 
 

Council member ______________ moves, Council member _______________ 
seconds, to pass an ordinance, in substantial form as presented, to repeal 
Chapter 18.100 CMC, Property Specific Development Standards/Special 
Overlay Districts, in its entirety  

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; Finance Director; City Attorney. 

75 of 244



ORDINANCE NO. 20-2016 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON REPEALING 
CHAPTER 18.100 OF THE COVINGTON MUNICIPAL CODE 
(CMC) RELATING TO PROPERTY SPECIFIC 
DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS AND SPECIAL OVERLAY 
DISTRICTS; PROVIDING FOR CORRECTIONS AND 
SEVERABILITY; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE.  

WHEREAS, Chapter 35A.63 of the Revised Code of Washington (RCW) empowers the 
City of Covington (the “City”) to enact planning and environmental regulations; and  

WHEREAS, the city council finds that Chapter 18.100 CMC, Property Specific 
Development Standards/Special Overlay Districts, is an unnecessary and obsolete provision from 
the originally adopted King County Code (KCC) adopted upon incorporation of the city; and 

WHEREAS, the city council further finds that the city’s comprehensive plan does not 
identify the need for special property-specific development standards or overlay districts to 
implement land use policies or environmental regulations and that the regulatory intent of 
Chapter 18.100 CMC is already captured by Chapter 18.68 CMC, Critical Area Regulations, and 
the city’s Shoreline Master Program, which address groundwater, aquifer, erosion hazards, and 
urban stream protection; and Chapter 18.31 CMC, Downtown Development and Design 
Standards, which promotes economic development in the downtown zones; and 

WHEREAS, the city council finds that repealing Chapter 18.100 CMC in its entirety is 
necessary to resolve inconsistencies within the CMC; and 

WHEREAS, city staff transmitted the proposal to repeal Chapter 18.100 CMC 
regulations to the Washington State Department of Commerce on August 9, 2016, as required 
under RCW 36.70A.106, and has received no comments from state agencies; and 

WHEREAS, the city’s SEPA Official conducted a SEPA review and issued a 
Determination of Non-Significance on September 9, 2016, for the proposed repeal of Chapter 
18.100 CMC; and  

WHEREAS, on October 6, 2016, the planning commission held a duly noticed public 
hearing, considered the proposal to repeal Chapter 18.100 CMC, and forwarded a 
recommendation for approval to repeal to the city council on October 25, 2016; and  

WHEREAS, the city council finds that the proposed repeal of Chapter 18.100 CMC is 
consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of the city’s comprehensive plan; and  

WHEREAS, the city council, upon review of the facts, findings, and recommendations of 
the planning commission, and after reviewing information provided by city staff, find that all 
applicable and substantive requirements of the law have been met, that the adoption of this 
ordinance promotes the public health, safety, and general welfare of the community, and that the 
adoption of this ordinance serves the public interest.  

ATTACHMENT 1

76 of 244



 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1. Findings of Fact. The “Whereas” provisions above shall constitute Findings 
of Fact and are incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein. 
 

Section 2. Chapter 18.100 CMC Repealed. Chapter 18.100 CMC is hereby repealed in 
its entirety. 
  

Section 3. Savings. The enactment of this ordinance shall not affect any application, case, 
proceeding, appeal, or other matter currently pending administratively or judicially in any court or 
in any way modify any right or liability, civil or criminal, which may be in existence on the 
effective date of this ordinance.  
 
 Section 4. Severability. Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 
ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance, be declared unconstitutional or 
otherwise invalid for any reason, or should any portion of this ordinance be pre-empted by state 
or federal law or regulation, such decision or preemption shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this ordinance or its application to other persons or circumstances. 
 

Section 5. Corrections. Upon approval of the city attorney, the city clerk and/or code 
codifier is authorized to make necessary corrections to this ordinance, including, but not limited 
to, the correction of clerical errors; references to other local, state, or federal laws, codes, rules, 
or regulations; or section/subsection numbering. 

 
 Section 6. Effective Date. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days 
after publication in the city’s newspaper of record.  A summary of this ordinance may be 
published in lieu of publishing the ordinance in its entirety. 

 
PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 

WASHINGTON, at a regular meeting thereof on the 25th day of October, 2016, and signed 
in authentication of its passage. 

 
_______________________                      
Mayor Jeff Wagner 

     
PUBLISHED:  10-28-2016 
EFFECTIVE:   11-2-2016 

 
ATTESTED: 
 
                                          
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 
 
_________________________ 
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

77 of 244



Consent Agenda Item C-7 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: October 25, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN THE PROJECT 

AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF COVINGTON 
COMMUNITY PARK PHASE 2. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Ethan Newton, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Funding Board Project Agreement, #14-1537D, Covington Community Park – Phase 2 
 
PREPARED BY:  Ethan Newton, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
In 2014 the City Council authorized staff to apply for grants to fund the design and construction 
of Phase 2 of Covington Community Park (CCP).  The applications to the Washington State 
Recreation and Conservation Office (RCO) in the Washington Wildlife and Recreation Program 
(WWRP), and Land and Water Conservation Fund (LWCF) were funded by the state legislature.  
Approving this motion authorizes the city manager to sign the proposed project agreement 
(Attachment 1), thus providing $1,000,000 toward the design and construction cost of CCP 
Phase 2, but also creating significant obligations. 
 
In signing the project agreement the city is committing to design, build and maintain the park 
and accept certain perpetual obligations.  The project description in the agreement states that the 
project is to construct Phase 2 of Covington Community Park that meets the high priority 
recreation needs by developing an outdoor performance stage and grass seating area, trails, 
picnic shelters, outdoor fitness equipment, tennis court, parking, restrooms and associated 
infrastructure improvements. 
 
This project agreement creates ongoing obligations in perpetuity.  The agreement stipulates that 
project facilities, such as the stage, seating area, trails, outdoor fitness equipment, tennis court, 
restrooms and parking lot, cannot be converted to other uses during their normal operating life.  
The city is required to maintain the facilities in a safe condition throughout their life to prevent 
undue deterioration and so they appear attractive and inviting to the public.     
 
The timeline for the project is to complete design and bid specifications by the end of this year, 
bid the project in the winter of 2016-2017, with construction completed by the end of 2017.  The 
park outside the construction zone will remain open during construction.  When construction is 
completed the entire park will reopen.   
 
  

78 of 244



ALTERNATIVES: 
1. Authorize the City Manager to execute the project agreement at this time.   
2. Do not authorize the City Manager to execute the project agreement.  These grants are a 

necessary component of construction funding for Covington Community Park Phase 2.  If 
the Project Agreement is not approved, the city cannot proceed with construction. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
Revenue from this RCO - WWRP grant and LWCF grant is $1,000,000. The total project cost 
listed in the grant contract is $3,545,100, but does not account for a Washington Department of 
Commerce grant that has been approved for this project following the submittal of the WWRP 
and LWCF grant applications. The current total project cost is $8,354,000. City funds of 
$354,000 from the general fund are being split between 2016 and 2017. The 2016 amount was 
approved by Council, but 2017 funding will need to be considered for approval during the 2017 
budget process.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution     X    Motion           Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to sign the RCO Funding Board 
Project Agreement for design and construction of Covington Community 
Park Phase 2 in substantial form as that presented.    
 

REVIEWED BY: 
Parks and Recreation Director, Finance Director, City Attorney, City Manager 
 

79 of 244



ATTACHMENT 1

80 of 244



81 of 244



82 of 244



83 of 244



84 of 244



85 of 244



86 of 244



87 of 244



88 of 244



89 of 244



90 of 244



91 of 244



92 of 244



93 of 244



94 of 244



95 of 244



96 of 244



97 of 244



98 of 244



99 of 244



100 of 244



101 of 244



102 of 244



103 of 244



104 of 244



105 of 244



106 of 244



107 of 244



108 of 244



109 of 244



110 of 244



111 of 244



112 of 244



113 of 244



114 of 244



115 of 244



116 of 244



117 of 244



118 of 244



119 of 244



120 of 244



121 of 244



122 of 244



123 of 244



Consent Agenda Item C-8   
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: October 25, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 

COVINGTON WATER DISTRICT SYSTEM EXTENSION APPLICATION AND 
AGREEMENT FOR COVINGTON COMMUNITY PARK PHASE TWO WATER 
CONNECTIONS 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Ethan Newton, Parks & Recreation Director 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Covington Water District System Extension Application and Agreement 
 
PREPARED BY:  Ethan Newton, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The Covington Community Park (CCP) Phase 2 project is currently at the 90% design stage. The 
proposed water systems extension for CCP Phase 2 includes changes to the current water system 
to provide domestic water to the restrooms and concessions buildings, as well as, supply 
irrigation to several irrigation zones in the park. Covington Water District will not proceed with 
its review of the water system documents until the city enters into a system extension agreement. 
The system extension application and proposed agreement with Covington Water District is 
included as Attachment 1. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   

1. Authorize the City Manager to execute the application and proposed agreement with 
Covington Water District at this time.   

2. Do not authorize the City Manager to execute the application and proposed agreement 
with Covington Water District.  This application and agreement is necessary to complete 
design work for CCP Phase 2. If the application and agreement is not approved, the city 
cannot proceed with project design and construction. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
The total estimated fees for the water system extension is $137,274, of which a deposit of 
$11,400 must be paid with the submittal of the application and agreement. 
 
This expense has been approved as part of the 2016 Budget and is part of the CCP Phase 2 total 
project budget of $8,354,000. This project is funded by $354,000 of city funds to be paid in two 
equal installments of $177,000 in 2016 and 2017, $7,500,000 of state funds, and $500,000 of 
federal funds. 
 
  

124 of 244



CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance          Resolution      X   Motion          Other 
 

Council member __________  moves, Council member  ____________  
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to sign the Covington Water 
District System Extension Application and Agreement for the 
Covington Community Park Phase 2 project in substantial form as 
that presented. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  Finance Director, City Attorney, City Manager 

125 of 244



No. 81   Rev. 03/15 1 

COVINGTON WATER DISTRICT 
SYSTEM EXTENSION APPLICATION AND AGREEMENT 

DEVELOPMENT / PROJECT NAME:  Covington Community Park 

APPROXIMATE LOCATION:  Property Description - SE 240th St & 180th Ave SE 

KING COUNTY TAX IDENTIFICATION:  242205-9001 & 242205-9085 

The undersigned (“Owner”) hereby makes application to the Covington Water District (the “District”) for 
authority to construct, and connect to the District’s water system, the watermains and all required 
appurtenances (the “extension”) to serve the above property. 

In consideration of the District’s approval of this application, the Owner agrees to the following terms and 
conditions: 

1. Construction.  The extension will be constructed by the Owner to the District’s satisfaction in
accordance with plans prepared by a licensed Professional Engineer designated or approved by the 
District; and in accordance with the District’s conditions, standards and specifications for construction 
(“Standard Specifications”).  Receipt of a copy of said plans and Standard Specifications is 
acknowledged, and the same are hereby incorporated herein. 

Individual Fire Sprinkler Systems shall be metered separately from domestic use meter.  There will be an 
additional charge of a Meter Installation Fee for the fire service meter according to the District’s standard 
rates based on meter size and installation method. 

Irrigation systems, Fire Sprinkler Systems and Non-Residential Accounts must be protected by a 
Department of Health approved backflow prevention assembly (BFPA) in accordance with WAC 246-290-
490. These backflow prevention assemblies must be registered with the District and tested annually by
a Certified Backflow Assembly Tester (BAT) with a copy of the test report sent to the District.  Contact the
District’s Cross Connection Specialist for more information. 

A check valve will be installed at the water meter to prevent draining of plumbing when interruption of 
service for meter maintenance or other reasons occurs in the future.  However, when this device is 
installed, plumbing becomes a closed system.  As a result, safeguards must be taken to protect against 
pressure buildup in plumbing caused by thermal expansion from a hot water heater or boiler.  At a 
minimum, a pressure temperature relief valve must be properly installed to prevent bodily injury and/or 
damage to the owner’s system.  These devices shall be owned and maintained by the property owner.   

Additional pressure limiting devices may be necessary to avoid pressure increases in excess of 
residential plumbing codes.  Most hot water tanks have a pressure temperature relief valve.  A pressure-
reducing valve (PRV) is also required when the District’s system pressure is in excess of 80psi.  The PRV 
is to be provided and maintained by the property owner.  Where outside domestic water meters are used, 
a PRV may also be required per the Uniform Plumbing Code.  

Hydrant Locking Mechanisms will be applied to all new hydrants installed in the District or placed in use 
during a project.  Locks are specific to the District and to a particular hydrant. The District will obtain and 
install the locks at the developer’s or owner’s cost. 

ATTACHMENT 1

126 of 244



No. 81   Rev. 03/15 2 

The signatory to the Meter Installation Application/Agreement is responsible for properly connecting the 
inside water use line from the meter to the appropriate respective customer facilities and satisfying a 
District inspection on same.  In the event that the home is occupied and water service is being utilized 
prior to the connections satisfactorily passing the District’s Meter Hookup Inspection, the signatory is 
responsible for immediate remedy of the connections in accordance with the District’s requirements or 
water service will be locked.  
 

2.  Rights-of-Way.    The extension will be installed in dedicated public roads and/or in easements 
acceptable to the District.   Any easements required will be obtained, and clear title provided, by Owner 
and submitted prior to acceptance of system extension.  Off-site easements or right-of-way shall be 
documented prior to construction of any facility included in the system extension. 
 

3. Time Limit.    Construction  will  be  completed  within  one  year  from  the  date this application 
is approved by the District.  If not so completed, the Owner must request an extension before the 
expiration date of the original Agreement, and demonstrate a reason justifiable to the District for the delay 
in completing the extension.  The District will review the request and may extend the time limit accordingly.  
A total of 4 one-year time extensions may be requested for a maximum of a five-year time limit from the 
date of the system extension application and agreement.  Failure to request a time extension before the 
one in force expires or expiration of the maximum five years allowed for system extension, will result in 
the termination of the SEA Agreement and forfeiture of the Performance Bond to the District.  
 
In the event the System Extension Agreement expires or is terminated, all cost incurred by the District to 
date will be due and payable.  If the System Extension Receivable Account balance exceeds the amount 
due, any excess will be refunded to the applicant. 
  

4.  Bonds.    The District will require a performance bond to guarantee full completion of 
construction and final approval and acceptance of the watermain extension.  The face amount of the 
bond shall be at least 150% of the District’s estimate of the cost to complete the watermain extension 
and appurtenant work.  In no case shall the bond be less than $25,000.00. 
 
Owner shall provide the District a maintenance bond warranting the contractor’s work on completion and 
acceptance of construction.  The maintenance bond is to be 20% of the total cost of construction or 
$10,000.00, whichever is greater, based on an estimated Bill of Sale value. 
 

5. Liability Insurance.   Owner, or Owner’s contractor or agent, shall procure commercial general 
liability and automobile liability insurance on an occurrence basis against liability for injury to person or 
property resulting from the performance, supervision, or inspection of the work. The commercial general 
liability policy will contain an endorsement naming the District as an additional insured and an 
endorsement that specifically states the required general liability coverage shall be primary, and not 
contributory,  with any other  insurance  maintained  by  the  District.    Proof of the existence of such 
insurance shall be provided to the District by original certificate of insurance and endorsement(s) in the 
form required by the District.  The minimum limits of insurance coverage shall be as follows: 
  
      General Aggregate     $2,000,000.00 
      Products / Completed Operations   $2,000,000.00 
      Personal Injury        $2,000,000.00 
      Each Occurrence     $2,000,000.00 
     Automobile Liability     $2,000,000.00 
 
The Owner's membership in the self-insured governmental risk pool Washington Cities Insurance 
Authority (WCIA) shall satisfy all conditions set forth in Section 5.  The Owner, at the request of the 
District, will provide an Evidence of Coverage letter verifying coverage in the amounts required by the 
District.   
     

127 of 244



No. 81   Rev. 03/15 3 

 
 
 
6.  Indemnity.    The Owner shall defend, indemnify and hold the District, its officers, officials, 
employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits 
including attorney fees, arising out of or in connection with the performance of this Agreement, except 
for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the District. 
 
Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to RCW 4.24.115, 
then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or damages to property 
caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the Owner and the District, its officers, 
officials, employees, and volunteers, the Owner's liability hereunder shall be only to the extent of the 
Owner's negligence.  It is further specifically and expressly understood that the indemnification 
provided herein constitutes the Owner's waiver of immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, 
solely for the purposes of this indemnification.  This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the 
parties.  The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 
 

7. Protection of Work and Property.   The Owner shall exercise due care to protect Property and 
the work addressed by this Agreement.  The Owner shall be solely responsible for any loss or damage 
to property or the work herein occurring prior to the completion of and acceptance of the work by the 
District. 
 
      8.  Safety.   The Owner and Owner’s Contractor shall be solely and completely responsible for   
conditions  of  the  job  site,  including  safety  of  all   persons  and   property   during  the performance 
of the work.  This requirement will apply continuously and not be limited to normal working hours.   The 
District’s review  of the work  shall not  and does not include review of the adequacy of the Contractor’s 
safety measurement in, on, or near the construction site. 
 

9. Connection Charges.     All Connection Charges will be paid in full prior to placement of a  
meter for service, including the Meter Installation Fee.   
 
By submitting this System Extension Application and Agreement, the Owner acknowledges that 
development activities are inherently risky endeavors and the Owner is voluntarily accepting the risk that 
the Owner may not be able to complete its project as planned, which may result in the loss of payments, 
as well as other costs and fees incurred in connection with the project. 
 
All Connection Charges shall be paid prior to providing any water service or meter installation, including 
meters for individual fire sprinkler systems. Water for testing shall be metered and the meter locked “off” 
until  final acceptance  of the  system extension.  Water  for testing   of  customer  plumbing  and/or  fire 
sprinkler  systems  shall be  allowed for a single  period of 5 consecutive  working days,  after which the 
meter shall be locked until system extension acceptance by the Board of Commissioners. 
 

10.   Defective Work and Corrective Action. Work which is found by the District not to comply with 
the plans or Standard Specifications shall be remedied so as to comply therewith.  The Owner shall  
correct or  replace any  defective work  or  material discovered by the District within  two years  after  the  
work  has  been  accepted  by  the  District.    Such  correction  or replacement shall  commence  within  
seven days  from  the time of Owner’s  receipt  of notice from the  District  of  defective  work  or  materials 
and  shall  be  completed promptly.  If not so commenced, or  in  an  emergency  when  damage  may  
result  from delay, such correction or replacement may  be  made  by  the District at  the  expense  of  the 
Owner.  The Owner shall reimburse the  District, upon  demand, for  any  expense  resulting from defects 
which appear within two  years  after  acceptance  of the  Owner’s work, including  actual  damages, cost  
of materials and labor expended by the District in making emergency repairs cost of engineering, 
inspection and  supervision  by the  District  or  the Engineers, and  attorney’s fees  and  costs incurred 
by the District as a result thereof. 

128 of 244



No. 81   Rev. 03/15 4 

 
11.    Acceptance of Project by District.  A project must be formally accepted by Resolution of  the 

Board of Commissioners before service is provided and the District assumes operation and maintenance 
responsibility.  A minimum of the following items must be completed prior to formal District acceptance of 
a project and approval for meter installation: 
 
 
 
A. Project Owner Responsibilities: 

1. Make application for System Extension and pay necessary deposits.  It is the Owner’s 
   responsibility to request any applicable time extensions in writing prior to the 
   expiration date. 

2. If the project owner will be requesting a latecomer’s agreement, the request shall be made 
   prior to approval of application for system acceptance.   

            3.   Obtain any required federal, state or local construction permits. 
4.   Provide easements to District for watermains constructed outside of right-of-way. 
5.   Full payment of costs incurred by the District for design, inspection, administration, permits, 
          annexation, etc. 
6.   Comply with all applicable laws and regulations whether federal, state or local. 
7.   Provide Performance Bond for all work including final paving and adjustment of district 
          valves. 
8.   Provide Bill of Sale. 

            9.  Provide assurance to District that System Extension is free of liens or encumbrances by 
         proof of payment to contractor or other means satisfactory to District. 

           10.  Provide 2-year Maintenance Bond. 
           11.  Full payment of connection charges as applicable for any meter installations. 
           12.  Provide District with a copy of the recorded CC&R’s for the plat that have incorporated 

         District’s text regarding meters, water quality and conservation.  An electronic copy 
         will be provided upon request. 

           13.  Request warranty inspection and release of Maintenance Bond at least 30 days prior to 
         proposed expiration date.   

           14.  All warranty work identified in the warranty inspection shall be complete prior to final release 
             of the Maintenance Bond. 
 
  
B. Owner’s Contractor Responsibilities: 

1.   Provide submittals for approval by the District for materials to be incorporated in the work. 
2.   Schedule pre-construction conference with the District, to be held no more than two (2)  
         weeks before work begins and materials are delivered to the site.  The Owner or Owner’s 
         representative and engineer must attend this meeting also. 
3. Diligently pursue the work during its progress and provide a competent supervisor who shall 

   represent the Owner during the Owner’s absence and to whom instruction may be given. 
4.   Construct improvements per approved design and specifications. 
5.   Promptly report to the District any error, inconsistency or omission which the supervisor may 
        discover. 
6.   Provide satisfactory pressure tests. 
7.   Successfully pass water purity tests. 
8.   Clean-up and restore construction area and Right-of-Way to satisfaction of local jurisdiction. 
9.   Provide list of project materials and their costs to be entered upon a Bill of Sale. 

           10.  Call for interim and final inspections. 
           11.  Assure that any subcontractor, engaged by a general contractor, must be licensed, 
                    bonded and registered with the State of Washington. 

      12.  Comply with all applicable laws and regulations whether federal, state or local. 
 

129 of 244



No. 81   Rev. 03/15 5 

C. District Responsibilities: 
1.   Provide watermain design review and approval of design submitted by Owner’s engineer. 
2.   Obtain City/County/State Right-of-Way permits. 
3.   Inspect construction. 
4.   Monitor and confirm required testing. 
5.   Confirm City/County/State Department acceptance of work performed and restoration of 
        public Right-of-Way. 
6.   Provide a warranty inspection and correction list upon request of the Owner for release of 
        the Maintenance Bond. 
7.   Release Performance Bond when all improvements are complete and accepted by the 

Board of Commissioners. 
8.   Release Maintenance Bond following warranty period and performance of required 
        maintenance work. 

 
12. Application Fee and Deposit.   The District’s schedule of application fees and deposit is 
attached.   
  
The Owner is required to maintain a credit balance at all times on the Owner’s Receivable Account to 
cover all expenses incurred by the District. Monthly statements are sent to the Owner. The following is a 
calculation of deposits to assist in establishing an initial credit balance. The Owner’s Receivable Account 
will be charged the current standard hourly rate specified by established rate tables for all District staff 
time incurred on this project plus a 26% Administrative Charge. Any out-of-pocket costs incurred by the 
District on the Owner’s behalf will be charged a 15% Service Fee per transaction. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

130 of 244



No. 81   Rev. 03/15 6 

CALCULATION OF FEES, DEPOSITS AND INCREMENTAL PAYMENTS 
 
 

[ X ] ADMINISTRATIVE SET UP- FLAT FEE     $1,200.00 
 
[ X ] ENGINEERING DEPOSIT  
 a.  Design_________ estimated lineal feet - $2.50/LF 
 (min. $5,000.00)        $   
 b.  Plan Review 448  estimated lineal feet - $2.50/LF 
 (min. $3,000.00)        $3,000.00  
 
[ X ] INSPECTION DEPOSIT  
 RESIDENTIAL: 

999 LF & under    $ 1,000.00   $   
 1,000-2,000 LF    $ 4,000.00   $   
 2,001 LF & over    $ 6,000.00   $   
 

COMMERCIAL/MULTI-FAMILY: 
999 LF & under    $ 5,000.00   $5,000.00 

 1,000 LF & over             $10,000.00   $   
 

[ X ] MAPPING FEE DEPOSIT  
  1 - 4 lots   $    500.00   $   
  5 - 50 lots   $    800.00   $   
  51 - 100 lots            $ 1,000.00   $   
  101 lots & over            $ 1,200.00   $   
  Non-residential up to 2 acres $    500.00   $   
  Non-residential over 2 acres $    750.00   $750.00  
 
[ X ] PERMITS / PURITY TESTING / RECORDING OF LEGAL 
 DOCUMENTS AND COURIER DEPOSIT    $250.00 

 
[ X ] MAIN CLEANING DEPOSIT      $400.00 
 
[ X ] MAINTENANCE BOND RELEASE INSPECTION - FLAT FEE $800.00 
 
[    ] OTHER    
           $   
 
 
 
DATED: ____________, 20____ Receipt No.      TOTAL DEPOSIT $11,400.00  
 
         
 
[ X ]  Total Estimated Project Connection Charges   

$137,274.00   
 
 
      
 

131 of 244



No. 81   Rev. 03/15 7 

Acceptance of this Application by the District constitutes a contract with the Applicant/Owner, the 
terms of which are contained within each paragraph of this Application and Agreement, the 
District’s materials, construction and standard details specifications sheets, the extension 
improvement plans and design approved by the District Board of Commissioners and all other 
applicable District regulations including the District Administrative Code, and Washington law, 
including Chapter 57.22 RCW. 

 
OWNER, ____________________________, a ___ corporation, ___ limited liability company,  
___ partnership, ___ joint venture,  ___ sole proprietorship. 

 
NOTE: 1. If the Owner is a corporation, this Agreement must be executed by its duly 

authorized representative and the Owner hereby warrants same. 
 

2. If the Owner is a limited liability company, this Agreement must be executed 
by its duly authorized manager. 

 
3. If the Owner is a partnership, at least one of the general partners must sign 
this Agreement and indicate his/her capacity as such. 
 
4. If the Owner is not an individual, Attachment A must be completed and 
submitted to the District. 

 
OWNER 
 
 
By: ________________________________________ 

Printed Name: _______________________________ 

Title: _______________________________________ 

 
Address: _________________________________ 

  _________________________________ 

Phone Number: (______)_______________________ 

 
Date:________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
The Application of       (Owner) was approved and accepted by 
Covington Water District by the adoption of Resolution No._____, approved by the Board of 
Commissioners on __________________, 20____. 
 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 

 General Manager 

132 of 244



No. 81   Rev. 03/15 8 

 
 
 
STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 
 )   ss INDIVIDUAL ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
COUNTY OF KING ) 
 
 I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that _________________ is the person 
who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that he/she signed this instrument and 
acknowledged it to be his/her free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes mentioned in the 
instrument. 
 
 DATED:   
 
    
 
 NAME:   
 (Print Name) 
 Notary Public in and for the State of Washington 
 Commission Expires:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 
 )   ss REPRESENTATIVE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
COUNTY OF KING ) 
 
 I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that ____________________ is the 
person who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that he/she signed this 
instrument, and acknowledged it as the _________________ of ________________ to be the 
free and voluntary act of such entity for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument. 
 
 
 DATED:   
 
    
 
 NAME:   
 (Print Name) 
 Notary Public in and for the State of Washington 
 Commission Expires:   
 
 

133 of 244



No. 81   Rev. 03/15 9 

 
“ATTACHMENT A” 

 
 
 
I hereby certify that I am the authorized signatory for the Owner.    Attached herewith is 
verification of my authority to sign on the behalf of the: 
 
    [    ] Corporation 
    [    ] Limited Liability Company 
    [    ] Partnership 
    [    ] Joint Venture 
    [    ] Other Specify: ________________________________ 
 
 
Name: ____________________________________________ 
 
Print Name:_________________________________________ 

134 of 244



 Agenda Item 1  
       Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: October 25, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY PUBLIC HEARING TO RECEIVE TESTIMONY FROM THE 

PUBLIC AND PRESENTATION FROM STAFF REGARDING 2017 REVENUE 
SOURCES AND POSSIBLE INCREASE IN PROPERTY TAX REVENUES 

 
ATTACHMENT(S):  

1. Description of 2017 Revenue Sources 
2. Property Tax Worksheet 

 
COUNCILMEMBERS AND STAFF: PLEASE REMEMBER TO BRING YOUR 
PRELIMINARY 2017 BUDGET WORKBOOK BINDERS TO THE MEETING. 

THANK YOU! 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
EXPLANATION:   
This public hearing is required under state law (RCW 84.55.120) to consider possible increases in 
property tax revenues and to review other revenue sources that support the City’s general fund.  
The Finance Director will review the history of Covington’s revenue collections, the current year’s 
collections, and 2017’s revenue projections.  
 
This hearing, mandated by law, should focus on the City’s revenue sources and potential 
adjustments to property tax revenues. The deadline for setting 2017 property tax levies for cities 
in King County is November 30, 2016. 
 
It is the policy of the City to follow applicable laws as they relate to the budget process. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION: ____Ordinance  ____Resolution  _____Motion       X    Other 
 
 

NO COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED AT THIS MEETING 

135 of 244



DESCRIPTION OF 2017 REVENUE SOURCES 

This summary describes each of the major revenue sources that appear in the 2017 budget by 
category. Budget amounts are based on the best available information at the time of budget 
preparation. 

Beginning Fund Balance All Funds 
This is the estimate of funds remaining at the end of the previous budget year and available for 
use in the following budget year. This amount will fluctuate annually depending on the amount of 
reserves, under or over collection of revenues, and under or over expenditure of appropriations.  
Minimum fund balance availability is governed by City policy. 

TAXES 

Property Taxes General Fund 
Property taxes are one of the largest and most stable sources of revenue for the City. The City 
has budgeted, as state law limits allow, a levy increase of 101%.  An increment for new 
construction is also added to this amount. The estimated levy for 2017 is $2,626,707. The taxable 
assessed valuation (AV) is $2,198,023,538 which includes $54,587,897 in new construction.  The 
estimated levy rate is $1.19503/$1,000 AV.   

Total assessed value has increased 8.5% from 2016 to 2017. 

 $1,000,000

 $1,200,000

 $1,400,000

 $1,600,000

 $1,800,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,200,000

 $2,400,000

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Total Taxable Assessed Values
Real and Personal Property

For the Fiscal Years 2008 through 2017

 $0.7500

 $1.2500

 $1.7500

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Property Tax
Levy Rates per $1,000 AV

For the Fiscal Years 2008 through 2017

ATTACHMENT 1

136 of 244



 

 
 
Sales Taxes General Fund 
Sales taxes are subject to fluctuation from year to year due to changes in the economy and the 
buying habits of consumers. Sales tax is distributed monthly to the City and is based on sales 
from two months previous. Revenues for 2017 are estimated at $3,900,000 which is an increase 
of 6.4% from the 2016 budget. The total sales tax of 8.6% is distributed among public agencies 
as follows: 
 

Sales Tax Distribution 
Agency Tax 

Rate  
State of Washington 6.500% 
City of Covington Regular Rate 0.425% 
City of Covington Optional Rate 0.500% 
City of Covington Criminal Justice 0.001% 
King County/METRO 0.900% 
King County  0.075% 
King County Criminal Justice Levy 0.099% 
King County Mental Health 0.100% 
    
Total Sales Tax Rate  8.600% 
  
 
 

  
 
 

 

$0

$500

$1,000

$1,500

$2,000

$2,500

$3,000

$3,500

$4,000

$4,500

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

Sales Tax by Classifications
For the Fiscal Years 2008 through 2017

Retail Food Services Contracting Other

2008 - 2015 - Actuals 2016 - Estimated Actuals     2017 - Budget 
 

137 of 244



 

Utility Taxes General Fund 
Utility taxes are imposed on utilities such as electricity, natural gas, solid waste, cable, telephones, 
storm drainage, and cellular phones.  In 2016, the City increased the rate for solid waste, cable, 
and storm drainage to 8%, while electricity, natural gas, telephones, and cellular phones remain 
at 6%.  The new rate took effect March 1, 2016.  Revenues for 2017 are estimated at $2,171,000.  
 

 
 
 

 
Criminal Justice Sales Tax General Fund 
King County levies an optional 0.1% sales tax to support criminal justice programs, under 
authority granted by the State. This optional tax, collected by the State, is distributed as follows: 
10% to the County, and the remainder to cities and towns on the basis of population. The 2017 
estimate of $468,000 is based on inflation and population growth. This tax is distributed monthly 
to cities.  
 
 
Real Estate Excise Tax (REET) Real Estate Excise Tax Funds 
The real estate excise tax is levied on all sales of real estate.  The state levies this tax at the rate 
of 1.28%. The City has also authorized a locally imposed tax of 0.5%, in two 0.25% increments, 
replacing that tax formerly levied by King County. Both increments must be spent for local capital 
improvements, identified under the capital facilities plan element of the City’s Comprehensive 
Plan. The amount of tax collected depends totally upon real estate sales activity for residential 
and non-residential, including new construction and economic fluctuations. The 2017 estimates 
are based on estimated changes in real estate prices, new residential development increases, 

 $-

 $500

 $1,000

 $1,500

 $2,000

 $2,500

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Th
ou

sa
nd

s

Utility Tax by Classification 
For the Fiscal Years 2008 Through 2017

Electric Gas Solid Waste Cable Telephone Storm Drainage Cellular/Pager

2008 – 2015 Actuals 2016 - Estimated Actuals    2017 - Budget 
 

138 of 244



 

and new non-residential development increases. Distribution occurs on the 10th of each month to 
cities in King County. The 2017 revenue estimate is $500,000.  
 
Transportation Benefit District Vehicle Fee Street Fund 
In 2016, the City adopted a $20 vehicle license fee.  The sole purpose of the funds are to provide, 
construct, and fund transportation improvements within the City.  The fee took effect in May 2016.  
The 2017 revenue estimate is $250,000.  
 
 

LICENSES AND PERMITS 
 
Building, Permits, Misc. Development Services Fund 
Licenses and permit activities are user fees derived from various regulatory activities of the City. 
Building permit revenues are based on staff estimates and are applied to the Development 
Services Fund. In 2017, $603,075 is estimated based on 40 new single family permits, anticipated 
commercial fees, and land use revenues.  A fee of $60 is collected for business licenses from 
those businesses that conduct activities within the City. This fee is collected annually and is also 
applied to the Development Services Fund. The 2017 revenue estimate for this license fee is 
$90,000. For 2017, all other permits and licenses such as sign permits and peddler’s permits are 
estimated at $6,800.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
Cable TV Franchise Street Fund 
Cable TV franchise fees, which are applied to the Street Fund, are based on population growth. 
For 2017, the estimated fees are $248,000. 
 
 
Solid Waste Administration General Fund 
In 2013, the City entered into a contract with Republic Services.  For 2017, the estimated revenue 
is $77,810. 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Number of Building Permits Issued
For Fiscal Years 2007 Through 2016

2007 – 2015 Actuals 2016 - YTD 

139 of 244



 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL/STATE SHARED REVENUE 
 
Liquor Excise Tax General Fund 
The 2017 estimate of $87,560 is based on the City’s population and per capita estimates provided 
by Municipal Research Services Center. This money is distributed quarterly. 
 
Liquor Board Profits General Fund 
The State is now collecting revenue in the form of license fees from distributors and retailers.  A 
portion of these “liquor profits” come to the City.  To be eligible to receive this revenue along with 
Liquor Excise Taxes, a city must devote at least 2% of its distribution to support an approved 
alcoholism or drug addiction program, as well as enhanced public safety programs. The 2017 
estimate of $158,440 is based on estimates provided by Municipal Research Services Center. 
This money is distributed quarterly beginning in March.   
 
Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax Street Fund 
State law provides that the State-levied tax on gasoline be shared with cities and towns. Of the 
base tax amount of 23 cents per gallon, 6.92% is redistributed to cities and towns to be used for 
street maintenance as well as construction, improvement, chip sealing, seal coating, and repair 
of arterial highways and city streets. These funds will be deposited in the Street Fund and used 
for the described purposes. Estimates are based on the City’s population and per capita estimates 
provided by Municipal Research Services Center. This tax is distributed on the last day of the 
month. For 2017, we are estimating $408,000.  
 
Criminal Justice Shared Revenues General Fund 
Municipal Criminal Justice Funding has shifted from application based to a per capita distribution. 
Estimates are based on the City’s population and per capita estimates provided by Municipal 
Research Services Center. For 2017, we are estimating $56,310.  
 
Recycling Grants General Fund 
The City partners with King County and the State of Washington in an effort to encourage 
recycling. The City offers events in the spring and fall of every year. Costs for these events are 
reimbursed to the City through the grant process. For 2017, we estimate being awarded $46,750.  

 
 

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 
 
Interfund Service Payments/Overhead General Fund 
These fees are collected from other funds within the City for their percentage of General Fund 
services that they require. There are two interfund payments - central services overhead and 
interfund service payments. Central services overhead is allocated to every fund excluding the 
General Fund based on the number of full-time equivalents. Each fund pays their proportional 
share of the Central Services Department which consists of things such as the building lease, 
office supplies, and IT.  The central services overhead payments are a direct reduction to the 
City’s Central Services Department base budget, therefore no revenue is recorded.  
 
The interfund service payment is for each fund’s share of the assistance they receive from the 
Executive, Finance, Legal, and Human Resource offices. The 2017 budget is estimated at 
$809,221.  
 
  

140 of 244



 

Land Use/Inspection/Engineering Fees Development Services Fund 
These fees are collected for services related to the issuance of permits for both residential and 
commercial aspects of construction or capital improvements, and for services related to the review 
of plans for compliance with aspects of the various codes. Fees are generally collected at a level 
estimated to recover the cost of the service. The 2017 budget for these fees is estimated at 
$572,580.  
 
Parks User Fees General Fund 
These fees are collected for services related to the Aquatic Center, Athletics, and Recreation 
programs.  Athletics includes programs such as baseball, soccer, flag football, and volleyball.  The 
2017 revenues are estimated at $832,188. In 2016, the Parks Fund was dissolved and is now 
being reported in the General Fund. 
 
Surface Water Management Fees Surface Water Management Fund 
These fees are collected on developed properties within the City to maintain storm and surface 
water runoff in the City. These dedicated fees provide for things such as maintenance, repair, and 
construction of storm water facilities. The 2017 budget is estimated at $2,050,000.  
 
 

FINES AND FORFEITURES 
 
District Court, False Alarm, and Miscellaneous Fines General Fund 
The City is entitled to money received in payment of fines, forfeitures, fees, costs and penalties 
associated with enforcement of local ordinances. Based on current collections we are estimating 
$97,550 in revenue for 2017. In 2017, the City will again be utilizing King County for its court 
services through an interlocal agreement. As part of the agreement, King County receives 100% 
of revenues collected which offset providing the City court services.  

 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 
Technology Surcharge General Fund 
These fees are collected for services related to the issuance of permits for both residential and 
commercial aspects of construction. The estimate for 2017 is $36,900. 
 
Parks User Fees General Fund 
These miscellaneous fees are collected for locker rentals, pool rentals, concessions, etc.  The 
2017 revenues are estimated at $99,062. 
 
Interest Income All Funds 
The City will receive interest on cash balances through investment of public funds as allowed by 
law. The amount received will vary with interest rates, types and duration of investments, and the 
amount of cash available for investment during any particular budget year. The overall 2017 
estimate of $55,150 is based on annualized 2016 data, economic outlook, and the assumption 
that fund balances available for investing will be at 2016 levels. 

141 of 244



10/20/2016

2016 Levy Amount= 2,520,091$  

x0.953% 24,016 

Increase in utility value - 

Plus: New Construction 69,775 

Plus: Annexation Levy 11,808 

Relevy for prior year refunds 1,017 

2017 Property Tax Levy 2,626,707$  

Assessed Valuation 2,198,023,538$  

2017 Estimated Levy Rate= 1.19503$  

Estimated Property Tax
2017

City of Covington

Home value Tax Amount
 $   325,000  =  $  388 

EXAMPLE

2016 2017 % change

Assessed Value 1,975,306,486.00$  2,198,023,538.00$  11.28%

Tax Levy 2,520,091.00$        2,626,707.47$        4.23%

Levy Rate 1.27822$  1.19503$  -6.51%

Home value 325,000.00$  361,643.95$  11.28%

Tax Assessment 415.42$  432.18$  4.03%

ATTACHMENT 2

142 of 244



Agenda Item 2 
   Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: October 25, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  PUBLIC HEARING TO RECEIVE TESTIMONY REGARDING THE 

COVINGTON CITY COUNCIL’S PROPOSED ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 
KENT SCHOOL DISTRICT SIX-YEAR CAPITAL FACILITIES PLAN FOR 
2017-2022 AND 2017 KENT SCHOOL DISTRICT IMPACT FEE SCHEDULE.  

 
 CONSIDER PROPOSED ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE KENT SCHOOL 

DISTRICT SIX-YEAR CAPITAL FACILITIES PLAN FOR 2017-2022 AND 
AMENDING THE CAPITAL FACILITIES AND UTILITIES ELEMENT, 
APPENDIX, AND EXISTING CONDITIONS REPORT OF THE COVINGTON 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TO INCLUDE THE SAME, INCLUDING THE 2017 
KENT SCHOOL DISTRICT IMPACT FEE SCHEDULE. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
                                                                                   
ATTACHMENT(S):   
 1. Proposed Ordinance No. XX-16 Adopting the Kent School District Six-Year Capital 

Facilities Plan for 2017-2022 and 2017 School Impact Fee Schedule, and Amending the 
Capital Facilities Element of the Covington Comprehensive Plan to Include the Same. 

• Exhibit A: Kent School District Six-Year Capital Facilities Plan for 2017-2022 
• Exhibit B: 2017 Kent School Impact Fee Schedule  

.  
PREPARED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director  
                                                            
EXPLANATION:  
The Kent School District (“District”), serving the citizens of Covington, has a Six-Year Capital 
Facilities Plan (“CFP”) that is incorporated by reference as a sub-element of the City of 
Covington’s Comprehensive Plan.  The state Growth Management Act (GMA) and Covington 
Municipal Code (CMC) 18.120.020 (2) - (3) requires local governments planning under GMA to 
annually adopt their school districts’ 6-year Capital Facilities Plan (CFP) and incorporate that 
document into their local Comprehensive Plan.   
 
The District has adopted an update to their CFP for 2017-2022. (See Exhibit A) Based upon 
enrollment forecasts, current inventory and capacity, current standard of service, relocatable 
capacity, and costs for facilities and improvements, the District anticipates having sufficient 
capacity to house students over the next six years.   
 
Pursuant to CMC 18.120.020(2) - (3), the city must adopt by reference the District’s updated 
CFP for 2017-2022 as part of the city’s Capital Facilities and Utilities Element of our 
Comprehensive Plan.  Attachment 1 is the proposed ordinance to adopt their CFP. (See Exhibit 
A) 
 
RCW 82.02 authorizes cities to collect impact fees to provide public school facilities that serve 
new development, provided a school district has an adopted capital facilities plan as part of a 

143 of 244



local government comprehensive plan.  CMC 18.120 grants authority to the city to assess and 
collect school impact fees based upon a school district’s capital facilities plan.   
The Kent School District (“District”), serving the citizens of Covington, has a Six-Year Capital 
Facilities Plan (“CFP”) that is incorporated by reference as a sub-element of the City of 
Covington’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 
The District has adopted an update to their CFP for 2017-2022. Based upon enrollment forecasts, 
current inventory and capacity, current standard of service, relocatable capacity, and costs for 
facilities and improvements, the District anticipates having sufficient capacity to house students 
over the next six years.  Accordingly, to continue to meet these projected enrollments and facility 
needs, the school impact fees for 2017 are proposed to increase from 2016 by 2.2%.  The 2017 
fees will be $5,100 for single-family dwellings and $2,210 for multi-family dwellings.  (See page 
35 of the CFP in Exhibit A to Attachment 1, the table of changes to impact fee calculation 
factors for new SF and MF residential development in the city beginning in 2017, showing 
increases by 2.2%).   
 
Pursuant to CMC 18.120.020(2) - (3), the city must adopt the District’s updated CFP for 2017-
2022 by reference as part of the city’s Capital Facilities and Utilities Element of our 
Comprehensive Plan to establish the fee program from which the 2017 Kent School District 
Impact Fee Schedule is adopted. Attachment 1 is the proposed ordinance to adopt both, including 
Exhibit A: Kent School District Six-Year Capital Facilities Plan for 2017-2022 and Exhibit B: 
2017 Kent School District Impact Fee Schedule.  The city will continue to collect an 
administrative fee from developers for managing the school impact fee process.  The city’s 
administrative fee will be set in the annual City Fee Resolution for 2017 to be considered and 
adopted before the end of 2016. 
 
OPTIONS:   1) Adopt the Kent School District CFP and associated school impact fee schedule as 

presented and requested by the District. 
2) Do not adopt the CFP and request further information from the District.    

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that council adopt the Kent School District 
CFP for 2017-2022 and associated 2017 school impact fee schedule as presented.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None    
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:       X       Ordinance           Resolution  _____Motion           Other 
 

Council member _____________ moves, Council member ________________ 
seconds, to pass an Ordinance, in substantial form as that attached hereto, 
adopting the updated Kent School District Six-Year Capital Facilities Plan 
for 2017-2022, including the 2017 School Impact Fee Schedule, and 
amending the Capital Facilities & Utilities Element, Appendix, and Existing 
Conditions Report of the City’s Comprehensive Plan to include the same.  

 
REVIEWED BY: City Manager 
  City Attorney 
  Finance Director  

144 of 244



ORDINANCE NO. 18-2016 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
ADOPTING THE KENT SCHOOL DISTRICT SIX-YEAR 
CAPITAL FACILITIES PLAN FOR 2017-2022 AMENDING 
THE CAPITAL FACILITIES AND UTILITIES ELEMENT, 
APPENDIX, AND EXISTING CONDITIONS REPORT OF 
THE COVINGTON COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TO INCLUDE 
THE SAME; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

WHEREAS, the Kent School District (“District”) has prepared a capital facilities 
plan in compliance with the Growth Management Act that has previously been adopted 
by the City of Covington (“City”) within the Capital Facilities and Utilities Element of 
the City’s Comprehensive Plan; and 

WHEREAS, Section 18.120.020 of the Covington Municipal Code (“CMC”) 
authorizes the City to adopt a district’s capital facilities plan by reference as part of the 
Capital Facilities and Utilities Element of the City’s Comprehensive Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the District has recently adopted an updated Six-Year Capital 
Facilities Plan for 2017-2022 (the “Plan”) and submitted their updated Plan to the City; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Plan contains the elements required by Section 18.120 CMC; and 

WHEREAS, RCW 36.70A.130 (2)(a)(iv) allows amendment of the capital 
facilities and utilities element of a comprehensive plan, if done concurrently with the 
adoption or amendment of a city’s budget; and 

WHEREAS, upon providing appropriate public notice, the Covington City 
Council conducted a public hearing on October 25, 2016, to receive testimony regarding 
the proposed amendment to the Capital Facilities and Utilities Element of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan, and the proposed City 2017 budget; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, KING 
COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Adoption. The City hereby adopts the Kent School District Six-Year Capital Facilities 
Plan for 2017-2022, as set forth in Exhibit A attached and incorporated herein by this reference. 

Section 2. Amendment. The City hereby amends the Capital Facilities and Utilities Element, 
Appendix, and Existing Conditions Report of the City’s Comprehensive Plan to include the 
updated Kent School District Six-Year Capital Facilities Plan for 2017-2022, replacing the 
District’s previously adopted capital facilities plan.   

ATTACHMENT 1

145 of 244



 
Section 3. Severability. If any provision of this ordinance, or ordinance modified by it, is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions of this 
ordinance and ordinances and/or resolutions modified by it shall remain in force and effect. 
 
Section 4. Corrections. Upon approval of the city attorney, the city clerk and/or code reviser are 
authorized to make necessary corrections to this ordinance, including the correction of clerical 
errors; references to other local, state, or federal laws, codes, rules, or regulations; or ordinance 
numbering and section/subsection numbering. 
 
Section 5. Effective Date. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect on December 31, 2016. 
A summary of this ordinance may be published in lieu of publishing the ordinance in its entirety. 
 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Covington on the 25th day of October, 2016. 

 
_______________________                                             
Mayor Jeff Wagner 

     
ATTESTED: PUBLISHED:  10-28-16                          

EFFECTIVE:   12-31-16                          
_________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________ 
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

146 of 244



EXHIBIT A

147 of 244



1
148 of 244



2
149 of 244



3
150 of 244



4
151 of 244



5
152 of 244



6
153 of 244



7
154 of 244



8
155 of 244



9
156 of 244



10
157 of 244



11
158 of 244



12
159 of 244



13
160 of 244



14
161 of 244



15
162 of 244



16
163 of 244



17
164 of 244



18
165 of 244



19
166 of 244



20
167 of 244

smithd7881e
Rectangle



21
168 of 244



22
169 of 244



23
170 of 244



24
171 of 244



25
172 of 244



26
173 of 244



27
174 of 244



28
175 of 244



29
176 of 244



30
177 of 244



31
178 of 244



32
179 of 244



33
180 of 244



34
181 of 244



35
182 of 244



36
183 of 244



37
184 of 244



38
185 of 244



39
186 of 244



40
187 of 244



41
188 of 244



42
189 of 244



43
190 of 244



EXHIBIT B 
ORDINANCE NO. 18-2016 

 
 

2017 KENT SCHOOL DISTRICT IMPACT FEE SCHEDULE 
 
 
 
 

Single-family, per dwelling unit    $5,100.00 
 
Multi-family, per dwelling unit    $2,210.00 

 
 

191 of 244



 
 

Agenda Item 3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: October 25, 2016 

 
SUBJECT:  PUBLIC HEARING, RECEIVE COMMENTS, AND CONSIDER ORDINANCE 

ON INTERIM ZONING REGULATIONS IN COVINGTON MUNICIPAL CODE 
(CMC) TITLE 18.55 REGARDING TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT SIGNS.    

 
RECOMMENDED BY: Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
 Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Proposed ordinance establishing interim zoning regulations for temporary and permanent 
signs for six months. 

2. Interim regulations governing temporary and permanent signs in CMC 18.55. 
 

PREPARED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
                              Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 
EXPLANATION: 
Background 
City staff has been working on the proposed revisions to our sign code for about 18 months.  In 
2015, the US Supreme Court issued a decision in Reed v Town of Gilbert, a suburban city in the 
Phoenix, Arizona metropolitan area, that has provided new guidance for all cities and counties 
across the country.  At question is the major issue of content neutrality of local jurisdiction’s sign 
regulations.  City staff has held several study sessions with the city council to develop the goals, 
objectives, and purpose of new sign regulations, which is an important step required by the 
Supreme Court decision to lay the framework for content neutral sign regulations.  City staff has 
also held several discussion sessions with the planning commission to review progress on the 
proposed sign code revisions.  City staff also held a discussion with the city council on October 
11, 2016 to review the proposed interim sign code regulations for both temporary and permanent 
signs.  At this point city staff has concluded it is best to adopt interim sign code regulations for 
six months that are content neutral and address the specific points of temporary signs, as they 
were the major issue involved with the Supreme Court decision of Reed v Town of Gilbert.          
 
Process for Interim Regulations 
City staff has now chosen to follow an approach of adopting interim sign regulations for six 
months for both temporary signs and permanent signs.  The major focus of the interim 
regulations is for temporary signs.  The interim regulation process will involve a public hearing 
before the city council on October 25, 2016.  During the six months of interim regulations, staff 
will conduct an extensive public outreach program with planning commission participation to 
involve a variety on interest groups, provide education on the proposed regulations, and listen to 
feedback on the specific numerical provisions for governing signs.  After that task, the planning 
commission will hold their required public hearing on the permanent sign regulations and make 
their final recommendation to the city council in 2017.   
 

192 of 244



 
 

 
 
Public Hearing and Discussion of Interim Sign Regulations 
The accompanying draft of the proposed interim sign code regulations is the version that will be 
in effect for six months until May 2, 2017, unless the interim regulations are extended or until 
permanent regulations are adopted.  The intent of tonight’s meeting is to hold a public hearing on 
the proposed interim regulations, take public comments, and consider the ordinance adopting 
interim regulations.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
Staff time to respond to inquiries and administer and enforce the interim sign regulations. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:     X    Ordinance         Resolution         Motion         Other 

 
Councilmember _________________ moves, and councilmember 
____________ seconds, to pass an ordinance, in substantial form as that 
presented, to establish interim zoning regulations for temporary and 
permanent signs until May 2, 2017. 
 

REVIEWED BY: City Manager; City Attorney; Community Development Director  

193 of 244



ORDINANCE NO. 19-2016 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, RELATING TO TEMPORARY 
AND PERMANENT SIGNS; ESTABLISHING INTERIM 
ZONING REGULATIONS FOR TEMPORARY AND 
PERMANENT SIGNS; ADMINISTRATION AND 
PERMITTING, AND ENFORCEMENT IN THE COVINGTON 
MUNICIPAL CODE (CMC) TITLE 18.55; ADOPTING 
FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY; AND ESTABLISHING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, in 2015 the Supreme Court issued a decision in Reed v. Town of Gilbert 
that has provided guidance for all cities and counties in revising and updating their sign codes; 
and 

WHEREAS, the planning commission and city council have discussed the issue of 
revising the city’s existing sing code provisions to meet the guidelines of Reed v. Town of 
Gilbert; and 

WHEREAS, the city staff has held several study sessions with the city council to develop 
goals, objectives and purpose of new sign regulations, which is an important step required by the 
Supreme Court decision to lay the framework for content neutral signs; and  

WHEREAS, the city staff has also held several discussions and work sessions with the 
planning commission to review progress on the proposed sign code revisions to CMC TITLE 
18.55; and 

WHEREAS, the city staff held a discussion with the city council on October 11, 2016 to 
review the proposed interim sign code revisions for both temporary and permanent signs; and  

WHEREAS, the City deems it in the public interest to impose interim zoning regulations 
for a period of six-months in order to investigate this issue further and obtain public input and 
comment; and 

WHEREAS, RCW 35A.63.220 and RCW 36.70A.390 authorize the City to adopt interim 
land use regulations and official controls, and the Covington City Council deems it to be in the 
public interest to adopt the regulations set forth in this ordinance under this authority; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on the regulations set forth in this ordinance on 
October 25, 2016, and the Council has weighed the testimony received; and 

WHEREAS, during the six months of the adoption of the interim zoning regulations, the 
city staff and planning commission will conduct extensive public outreach and hearings on the 
proposed interim sign code regulations and make a final recommendation to the city council for 

ATTTACHMENT 1

194 of 244



 
 

adoption of permanent regulations based upon the extensive public outreach, hearing and public 
comments; and  

 
WHEREAS, nothing in this ordinance is intended nor shall be construed to authorize or 

approve of any violation of federal or state law; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 
WASHINGTON, DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Findings of Fact. In accordance with RCW 35A.63.220 and RCW 36.70A.390, 
which require the City Council to adopt findings of fact justifying the adoption of interim zoning 
regulations, the “WHEREAS” clauses set forth above are hereby adopted as the City Council’s 
findings of fact in support of the interim zoning regulations imposed by this ordinance. The City 
Council may adopt additional findings in the event that additional evidence is presented to the 
City Council.   

 
Section 2. Interim Regulations Established. Notwithstanding the existing provisions of 

the Covington Municipal Code, the City hereby establishes the following interim zoning 
regulations for both temporary and permanent signs, as defined herein, and are the sole means of 
establishing temporary and permanent signs within the City as provided in Exhibit A.  

 
Section 3. Work Plan. City staff is hereby directed to implement the following work plan 

during the interim period. Staff is directed to review existing laws and regulations applicable to 
temporary and permanent signs and to monitor federal and state court cases related to Reed v. 
Town of Gilbert. Staff is also encouraged to review and consider the experiences of other 
jurisdictions dealing with similar sign code regulations.  

 
Section 4. Conflict. In the event there is a conflict between the provisions of this 

ordinance and any other City ordinance, the provisions of this ordinance shall control. 
 
Section 5. Severability. Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 

ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance, be declared unconstitutional or 
otherwise invalid for any reason, or should any portion of this ordinance be pre-empted by state 
or federal law or regulation, such decision or preemption shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this ordinance or its application to other persons or circumstances. 

 
Section 6. Corrections. Upon the approval of the City Attorney, the City Clerk is 

authorized to make any necessary corrections to this ordinance including, but not limited to, the 
correction of scrivener’s/clerical errors, references, ordinance numbering, section/subsection 
numbers, and any reference thereto.  

 
Section 7. Declaration of Emergency - Effective Date. The Covington City Council 

declares that an emergency exists necessitating that this ordinance become effective immediately 
for the protection of the public health and safety, public peace, and public property. This 
ordinance shall take effect immediately upon passage. 

 

195 of 244



 
 

ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 
WASHINGTON, at a regular meeting thereof this 25th day of October, 2016.  
 

      
Mayor Jeff Wagner 
 
EFFECTIVE:   October 25, 2016 
PUBLISHED:  October 28, 2016 

ATTESTED: 
 
      
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
      
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

196 of 244



Page 1 of 32 

**PROPOSED INTERIM SIGN CODE**  v.3 
Track Changes represent edits pursuant to feedback from the planning 

commission at their Oct. 6th meeting and the city council at their Oct. 11th city 
council meeting. 

*Section numbers and headings have been corrected and updated from v.2 but are not shown in track
changes to help with ease of review. 

CHAPTER 18.55 
SIGNS 

PART I: GENERAL PROVISIONS 

18.55.010 Intent and purpose. 
18.55.020 Applicability and exclusions. 
18.55.030 Interpretation; severability. 
18.55.040 Definitions. 

18.55.010      Intent and purpose.   

(1) Intent.  Signs have a strong visual impact on the character and quality of the community.  As a
prominent part of the scenery, they attract or repel the viewing public, affect the safety of vehicular
traffic, and their suitability or appropriateness helps to set the tone for the community.  Because the city
relies upon its physical setting and beauty to attract commerce, aesthetic considerations assume
economic value.  It is the intent of the city, through this Chapter, to protect and enhance both the city’s
residential character and its economic base through the provision of appropriate and aesthetic signage.
In addition, it is the intent of the city to limit the size, type and location of signs in order to minimize
their distracting effect on drivers and thereby improve traffic safety.

(2) Purpose.  The purpose of this Chapter is to promote the public health, safety, and welfare
through a comprehensive system of reasonable, effective, consistent, content-neutral, and
nondiscriminatory sign standards and requirements.  This chapter has also been adopted to:

(a) Promote and accomplish the goals, policies, and objectives of the city’s comprehensive plan and
zoning code, and the city council’s vision, mission, and goals statement;

(b) Provide minimum standards in order to safeguard life, health, property, and public welfare, and
promote traffic safety by controlling the design, quality of materials, construction, illumination,
size, location, and maintenance of signs and sign structures, and discouraging excessive
numbers of signs;

ATTACHMENT 2

197 of 244



 

Page 2 of 32 
 

(c) Recognize free speech rights by regulating signs in a content-neutral manner; 
 

(d) Promote the free flow of traffic and protect pedestrians and motorists from injury and property 
damage caused by, or which may be fully or partially attributable to, cluttered, distracting 
and/or illegible signage; 
 

(e) Promote a positive visual image of the city and protect the beauty of the city’s built 
environment by encouraging signs that are compatible with the architectural style, 
characteristics, and scale of the building to which they may be attached, appropriate to the size 
of the subject property and amount of street frontage adjacent to the subject property, and to 
encourage signs that are compatible with adjacent buildings and businesses; 
 

(f) Protect property values, the local economy, and the quality of life by preserving and enhancing 
the appearance of the streetscape; 
 

(g) Provide consistent sign design standards; 
 

(h) Protect and encourage creative and innovative approaches to signage, and signs that are of a 
quality design, pleasing in appearance, and are appropriate in size, materials and illumination to 
the surrounding neighborhood or commercial district; 
 

(i) Provide an improved visual environment for the citizens of and visitors to the city;  
 

(j) Adopt clear, understandable regulations which will assure equal protection and fair treatment 
under the law through consistent application of the regulations and consistent enforcement of 
this chapter; 
 

(k) Balance both public and private business needs with the specific objectives of creating a 
community with an unmatched quality of life and strong focus on economic well-being, 
aesthetics, community and family, the environment, and public infrastructure;   
 

(l) Support and enhance the economic well-being of all businesses within the city, and in particular 
recognize the needs of all businesses to identify their premises and advertise their products and 
services;   
 

(m) Recognize that the aesthetic value of the total environment affects economic values, and that 
unrestricted proliferation of signs can and does detract from the economic value of the 
community; and 
 

(n) Prohibit the use of billboard signs recognizing that billboards affect the aesthetic value of the 
community thereby reducing property values and impacting traffic safety because of the 
distraction that is created by large signage along public rights-of-way.  
 
 

198 of 244



 

Page 3 of 32 
 

 
 

18.55.020 Applicability and exclusions. 

(1) Applicability. This chapter applies to all signs within the jurisdictional limits of the city that are 
visible from any right-of-way or public place, regardless of the type or nature.  
 
(2) Exclusions. The following signs are excluded exempted from the regulations and requirements 
of this chapter, but may be subject to regulation under other portions of the CMC. 
 

(a) Signs that are not visible from any public right-of-way, or  public place, or another property. 
 

(b) Signs inside a building; however, signs inside windows are not exempt. 
 

(c) Signs required by local, state, or federal law if the sign is no more than thirty-two square feet 
(32 sq. ft.) in area or is painted directly on pavement. Such signs include building addresses, 
development review or construction review public notices, and commercial parking facility 
posting. 
 

(d) Government signs.  Signs installed by the city, county, or a federal or state governmental agency 
for the protection of the public health, safety, and general welfare, including, but not limited to, 
the following:   
 

(i) Emergency and warning signs necessary for public safety or civil defense; 
 

(ii) Traffic and/or wayfinding signs erected and maintained by an authorized public agency; 
 

(iii) Signs required to be displayed by law; 
 

(iv) Signs showing the location of public facilities; and  
 

(v) Any sign, posting, notice, or similar sign placed by or required by a governmental agency 
in carrying out its responsibility to protect the public health, safety, and general welfare.   

(e) Vehicles with signs.  Any sign on a vehicle, unless such vehicle is regularly parked in any 
prominently visible location from public right-of-way or other public space for the primary 
purpose of attracting public attention to the sign.   
 

(f) Public art, as defined by CMC 18.55.040. 
 
 
18.55.030 Interpretation; severability. This chapter is not intended to, and shall not be interpreted 
to, restrict speech on the basis of its content, viewpoint, or message.  Any classification of signs in this 

199 of 244



 

Page 4 of 32 
 

chapter which purports to permit speech by reason of the type of sign or identity of the sign user, or 
otherwise, shall be interpreted to allow either commercial or non-commercial speech on the sign.  No 
part of this chapter shall be construed to favor commercial speech over non-commercial speech.   
 
Severability.  [Editor’s note: The CMC has a universal severability provision under CMC 1.01.100] 
 
18.55.040 Definitions. 
The following words, terms, and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have meanings ascribed to 
them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning. Any word term or 
phrase used in this chapter that is not defined in this section shall have the meaning ascribed to it in 
Chapter 18.20 CMC: 
 
(1) “Abandoned sign” means any sign remaining in place after a sign has not been maintained,  for a 
period of ninety (90) or more consecutive days or if the activity conducted on the subject property 
ceases, for one hundred and eighty (180) or more consecutive days. 
 
(2) “Administrator” means the City Manager or his/her designee. 
 
(3) “Animated  or moving sign” means any sign, or any portion of the sign, that uses movement (e.g. 
rotates, moves up and down, or moves in some manner), by either natural or mechanical means, or 
changes of lighting, either natural or artificial, to depict action to create a special effect or scene. 
Changeable copy signs, as defined in subsection (9) herein, and electronic changeable message signs, as 
defined in subsection (12) herein, are not considered animated signs for the purposes of this chapter. 
 
(4) “Awning or canopy sign” means a nonelectric sign on the vertical surface or flap that is printed 
on, painted on, or attached to an awning or canopy. 
 
(5) “Balloon” means a decorative inflatable device generally composed of a thin layer of latex or 
mylar, into which a gas (typically helium) is inserted in order to cause it to rise or float in the 
atmosphere. (See also “inflatable sign.”) 
 
(6) “Banner” means a sign made of fabric or any non-rigid material with or without an enclosed 
framework. means a sign made of fabric or other similar non-rigid material with no enclosing framework 
or electrical components that is supported or anchored on two or more edges or at all four 
corners.  Banners also include non-rigid signs anchored along one edge, or two corners, with weights 
installed that reduce the reaction of the sign to wind. 
 
(7) “Building-mounted signs” means any sign attached to the face of a building including without 
limitation wall signs, marquee signs, under canopy signs, and projecting signs. 
 
(8) “Canopy sign.” See “awning or canopy sign.”  
 
(9) “Changeable copy sign” means a sign whose content can be changed or altered (without 
changing or altering the sign frame, sign supports, or electrical parts) by manual, electric, 

200 of 244



 

Page 5 of 32 
 

electromechanical, or electronic means. A sign on which the message changes more than eight (8) times 
a day shall be considered an electronic changeable message sign and not a changeable copy sign for the 
purposes of this chapter.  
 
(10) “Copy” means the graphic content of a sign surface.  in either permanent or removable letter, 
pictographic, symbolic, or alphabetic form. 
 
(11)  “Electrical sign” means a sign or sign structure in which electrical wiring, connections, or 
fixtures are used. 
 
(12) “Electronic changeable message sign” means an electronically activated sign whose 
messagewith  content , either whole or in part, that is changed, either in whole or in part, more than 
eight times a day by means of electronic programming. 
 
(13) “Exposed building face” means the building exterior wall of a single occupant building or the 
building exterior wall of an individual tenant’s leased space in a multi-tenant complex viewed as a 
vertical plane between the finished grade and the ridge of a pitched roof above it, top of parapet, etc. 
This vertical plan will be used to calculate the sign area for building-mounted signs. In the case of an 
interior business without a separate exterior entrance, the exposed building face will be the vertical 
plane of the entrance wall measured between the floor and ceiling. As an option, for those businesses 
having oblique walls the exposed building face is that area between the finish grade and the ridge or top 
of parapet which is shown on the elevation drawing submitted with the required drawing s for a building 
permit. 
 
(14) “Facade” means the entire building face including the parapet. 
 
(15) “Festoons” means a string of ribbons, tinsel, small flags, or pinwheels. 
 
(16) “Flag” means any piece of cloth of individual size, color and design, hoisted on a pole permanent 
affixed to the ground or displayed via a pole bracket permanently affixed to a building. If any dimension 
of the flag is more than three times (3x) as long as any other dimension, it is classified and regulated as a 
banner regardless of how it is anchored or supported. 
 
(17) “Flashing sign” means a sign when any portion of it changes light intensity, switches on and off 
in a constant pattern (i.e. strobe lights), or contains moving parts or the optical illusion of motion caused 
by use of electrical energy or illumination. Changeable copy signs, as defined in subsection (9) herein, 
and electronic changeable message signs, as defined in subsection (12) herein, are not considered 
animated signs for the purposes of this chapter. 
 
(18) “Freestanding sign” means a sign on a frame, pole, or other support structure that is not 
attached to any building.a sign supported permanently upon the ground by poles, pylons, braces or a 
solid base and not attached to any building. Freestanding signs include those signs otherwise known as 
“pedestal signs,” “pole signs,” “pylon signs,” “monument signs,” and “ground signs.”  
 

201 of 244



 

Page 6 of 32 
 

(19) “Frontage, building” means the length of an outside building wall. 
 
(20) “Frontage, property” means the length of the property line along the public right-of-way on 
which it borders.  
 
(21) “Graffiti” means an inscription of symbols, works, or pictures by painting, spray painting or other 
means of defacing public or private property. 
 
(22) “Government sign” means any temporary or permanent sign erected and maintained by any 
special purpose district, school district, City, cCounty, sState, or fFederal government for designation of 
or direction to any school, hospital, hospital site, property, or facility, including without limitation traffic 
signs, directional signs, warning signs, informational signs, and signs displaying a public service message. 
 
(23) “Height” means the vertical distance measured from the highest point of the sign to the grade 
of the adjacent street or the surface grade beneath the sign, whichever is less. 
 
(24) “Illuminated sign” means a sign with an artificial light source incorporated internally or 
externally for the purpose of illuminating the sign. 
 
(25) “Inflatable sign” means a sign that is inflated by some means and used to attract attention. 
These signs include large single displays or a display of smaller balloons connected in some fashion to 
create a larger display. 
 
(26) “Kiosk” means a freestanding sign, which may have a round shape or which may have two or 
more faces. 
 
(27) “Lawn sign” means a freestanding sign made of lightweight materials such as cardboard or vinyl 
that is supported by a frame, pole, or other support structure placed directly in the ground without 
foundation or other anchor. 
 
(28) “Maintenance” means the cleaning, painting, and minor repair of a sign in a manner that does 
not alter the basic copy, design, or structure of the sign. 
 
(29) “Marquee sign” means any sign attached to or supported by a marquee, which is a permanent 
roof-like projecting structure attached to a building. 
 
(30) “Monument sign (ground sign)” means a freestanding sign having the appearance of a solid base 
of landscape construction materials such as brick, stucco, stonework, textured wood, tile or textured 
concrete materials harmonious with the materials of the primary structure on the subject property.  
 
(31) “Multi-tenant complex” means a complex containing two (2) or more uses or businesses.  
 

202 of 244



 

Page 7 of 32 
 

(32) “Neon (outline tubing) sign” means a sign consisting of glass tubing, filled with neon gas, or 
other similar gas, which glows when electric current is sent through it. 
 
(33) “Nonconforming sign” means any sign that was constructed, erected, and maintained in 
conformance with the King County or the City of Covington rules and regulations in effect at the time of 
establishment and use that no longer conforms to the rules and regulations of this chapter. 
 
(34) “Off-site sign” means a sign relating, through its message and content, to a commercial activity, 
use, product, or service not available on the property on which the sign is located. 
 
(35) “On-site sign” means a sign which contains content strictly limited to a lawful use on the 
property on which the sign is located.  
 
(36) “Person” means any individual, corporation, association, firm, partnership, or other legal entity. 
 
(37) “Pedestal sign” means freestanding signs supported permanently upon the ground by one or 
more solid bases, which base or bases shall be equal to at least fifty percent (50%) of the sign width.  
 
(38) “Pole or pylon signs” means freestanding signs supported permanently upon the ground by 
poles or braces and not attached to any building.  
 
(39) “Portable sign” means a sign that is not permanently affixed and is designed for or capable of 
being moved, except those signs explicitly designed for people to carry on their persons or that are 
permanently affixed to motor vehicles. Portable signs include A-frame signs, portable reader boards, 
and similar signs. any sign designed to be moved easily and not permanently affixed to the ground or to 
a structure or building. Portable signs differ from temporary signs in that portable signs are made of 
durable materials such as metal, wood, or plastic. 
 
(40) “Projecting sign” means a sign, other than a flat wall sign, which is attached to and projects from 
a building wall or other structure not specifically designed to support the sign.  
 
(41) “Public art” means original artwork which is accessible to the public and/or public employees, 
and which has been approved as public art by the City.  
 
(42) “Public right-of-way” means land owned, dedicated, or conveyed to the public; used primarily 
for the movement of vehicles, wheelchair, and pedestrian traffic; and land privately owned, used 
primarily for the movement of vehicles, wheelchair, and pedestrian traffic, so long as such privately 
owned land has been constructed in compliance with all applicable laws and standards for a public right-
of-way. 
 
(43) “Roadway” means the portion of a street that is improved for motor vehicular or bicycle 
travel.  Roadway includes vehicle travel lanes and on-street parking areas.  Roadway does not include 
area devoted to curbs, parking strips, or sidewalks. 
 

203 of 244



 

Page 8 of 32 
 

(44) “Roof sign” means any sign erected above the eaves or on the roof of a building or structure. 
 
(45) “Sight distance requirements” means the area at intersections and site access points where the 
height of all structures and landscaping is regulated.  
 
(46) “Sign” means any medium, including structural and component parts, that is used or intended to 
be used to attract attention to the subject matter for advertising, identification, or informative 
purposes. The scope of the term ‘sign’ does not depend on the content of the message or image 
conveyed. 
 
(47) “Sign area” means the entire area of a sign on which graphics, letters, figures, symbols, 
trademarks and/or written copy is placed, excluding sign structure, architectural embellishments and 
framework. Sign area is calculated by measuring the perimeter enclosing the extreme limits of the 
module or sign face containing the graphics, letters, figures, symbols, trademarks, and/or written copy; 
provided, however, that individual letters, numbers or symbols using a canopy, awning or wall as the 
background, without added decoration or change in the canopy, awning or wall, have sign area 
calculated by measuring the perimeter enclosing each letter, number or symbol and totaling the square 
footage of these perimeters.  
 
(48) “Sign face” means the area of a sign on which the graphics, letters, figures, symbols, trademark 
or written copy is placed. 
 
(49) “Temporary sign” means a sign placed on a structure or the ground for a specifically limited 
period of time as provided in CMC 18.55.140 – 200.  any sign that is to be displayed for a limited period 
of time only, including but not limited to, banners, fabric signs, and festoons of lights. A temporary sign 
may be of rigid or non-rigid construction. 
 
(50) “Tenant space” means a portion of a structure occupied by a single commercial lease holder 
with its own public entrance from the exterior of the building or through a shared lobby, atrium, mall, or 
hallway and separated from other tenant spaces by walls. 
 
(51) “Vacant lot” means any parcel of land that is without a primary use or structure. 
 
(51)(52) “Wall sign” means either a sign applied with paint or similar substance on the surface of a wall 
or a sign attached essentially parallel to and extending not more than twenty-four (24) inches from the 
wall of a building with no copy on the side or edges.  
 
(52)(53) “Window signs” mean all signs located inside and affixed to a window and intended to be 
viewed from the exterior of the structure.  

 

 

 

204 of 244



 

Page 9 of 32 
 

 

PART II: ADMINISTRATION 
 
18.55.050 Prohibited signs. 
18.55.060 Sign permits—Exemptions. 
18.55.070 Sign permits—Temporary signs on commercial properties. 
18.55.080 Reserved. 
18.55.090 Sign permits—Permanent signs.  
18.55.100 Sign variances. 
18.55.110 Maintenance; removal. 
18.55.120 Nonconforming signs. 
18.55.130 Compliance and enforcement. 
 

18.55.050 Prohibited signs.   
Unless otherwise provided for in this chapter, no person shall erect, alter, maintain, or relocate any of 
the following signs in the city and existing signs must be removed:.  

(1) Animated signs.  Any animated sign as defined by CMC 18.55.040(3). Any sign in which the sign 
body or any portion of the sign rotates, moves up and down, or moves in some manner, whether by 
mechanical or any other means. This includes any sign animated by any means, including, but not 
limited to, fixed aerial displays, balloons, pennants, spinners, propellers, whirling, or similar devices 
designed to flutter, rotate, or display other movement under the influence of the wind, including flag 
canopies,  not otherwise allowed in CMC 18.55.XXX, streamers, tubes, or other devices affected by the 
movement of air or other atmospheric or mechanical means.   
 
(2) Nuisance signs.  Any signs which emits smoke, visible particles, odors, and/or sound, except that 
speakers in signs on the premises of a drive-through facility shall be allowed. 
 
(3) Flashing signs.  Any flashing sign as defined by CMC 18.55.040(17).A sign, unless allowed under 
the provisions of CMC 18.55.xxx, that contains an intermittent or flashing light source, or a sign that 
includes the illusion of intermittent or flashing light by means of animation, or an externally mounted 
intermittent light source.  Flashing light sources are prohibited.  Electronic message center signs and 
digital signs are allowed under the provisions of Section 18.55.xxx.   
 
(4) Hazardous signs.  Any sign that is dangerous or confusing to motorists and pedestrians on the 
public right-of-way, including any sign which by its color, wording, design, location, or illumination 
resembles or conflicts with any official traffic control device or which otherwise impedes the safe and 
efficient flow of traffic, is prohibited. 
 
(5) Impediment to ingress and egress. No sign may impede free ingress and egress from any door, 
window, or exit way required by building and fire regulations. 
 
(6) Permanent signs on vacant lots, parcels, or easements. No permanent sign shall be located on 
a vacant lot, parcel, or easement.  No permanent sign shall be located on a lot, parcel, or easement as 

205 of 244



 

Page 10 of 32 
 

the principal use of that lot, parcel, or easement.  Signs may only be established as an accessory use to a 
principally permitted use.   
 
(7) Portable signs on wheels (trailer signs) and outdoor electric portable signs. 
 
(8) Abandoned signs.   
 
(9) Signs on or within medians, roundabouts, utility poles, lampposts, traffic poles and signals, and 
street trees in the public right-of-way or on or within other public property or structures, except as 
allowed pursuant to CMC 18.55.190XXX.  

 
(10) Signs placed on or painted on a motor vehicle or trailer parked with the primary purpose of 
providing signs not otherwise allowed by this chapter. 

 
(11) Signs erected, constructed, or structurally altered that are required to have a permit that were 
erected, constructed, or altered without a permit. 

 

18.55.060 Sign permits—Exemptions. 

The following signs, and activities relating to signs, are exempt from the permitting requirements of this 
chapter:  

(1) Changes to the face or copy of changeable copy signs, digital signs, and electronic messaging 
signs, provided such changes do not change the material or appearance of the sign as originally 
permitted by the city. 
 
(2) The normal repair and maintenance of conforming or legal nonconforming signs. 
 
(3) Temporary signs meeting the requirements in this chapter, except for those required to be 
permitted pursuant to CMC 18.55.070. 
 
(4) Any signs required to be posted pursuant to the Covington Municipal Code or any other local, 
state, or federal regulation. 
 
(5) Any sign on a vehicle, unless such vehicle sign is prohibited pursuant to CMC 18.55.050.or 
mobile unit is regularly parked in any prominently visible location for the primary purpose of attracting 
public attention to the sign. 
 

18.55.070 Sign permits—Temporary signs on commercial properties. 

(1) Permit required. No person shall erect, alter, or relocate any temporary sign allowed on a 
commercial property , pursuant to CMC 18.55.070, without first receiving an approved temporary sign 
permit from the City pursuant to the requirements herein. 
 

206 of 244



 

Page 11 of 32 
 

(2) Review type.  The review and approval of temporary sign permits is a Type I land use decision 
that shall be processed pursuant to Cchapter 14.30 CMC, as amended. 
 
(3) Application. Applications for temporary sign permits shall be submitted to the Ccity on forms 
provided by the Ccity.  
 
(4) Fee. The applicable permit application fee, pursuant to the Ccity’s current fee resolution in 
effect at the time of application, shall be paid upon submission of each temporary sign permit 
application.  
 
18.55.080 Reserved. 
 

18.55.090 Sign permits—Permanent signs. 

(1) Permit Required.  Except as provided for under CMC 18.55.060, no person shall erect, alter, or 
relocate any permanent sign without first receiving an approved sign permit from the City pursuant to 
the requirements herein.  
 
(2) Review Type. The review and approval of permanent sign permits is a Type II land use decision 
that shall be processed pursuant to Chapter 14.30 CMC, as amended.  
 
(3) Application Requirements.  To issue a Determination of Completeness, aA complete permit 
application for permanent signs shall consist of the following:   
 

(a) Application form.  A completed permanent sign permit application shall be submitted on a form 
provided by the City. If the applicant is not the property owner, then the property owner must 
be identified, and the application must include an affidavit from the property owner, verifying 
that the property owner has given permission to the applicant for the submission of the sign 
permit application and for the installation/posting of the sign on the property owner’s property.   
 

(b) Building elevation/site plan.  Signs proposed to be mounted on a building require a building 
elevation drawn to scale that specifies the location of the sign and drawings or photographs 
which show the scale of the sign in context with the building.  Freestanding signs require a site 
plan indicating the proposed sign location as it relates to property lines, adjacent streets, and 
adjacent buildings.  
 

(c) Scaled design drawing.  A colored rendering or scaled drawing including dimensions of all sign 
faces and descriptions of materials to be used, including color samples. 
 

(d) Scaled installation drawing.  A scaled drawing that includes the sign description, proposed 
materials, size, weight, manner of construction, and method of attachment, including all 
hardware necessary for proper sign installation.   
 

207 of 244



 

Page 12 of 32 
 

(e) Lighting.  A drawing indicating the location and fixture type of all exterior lighting for the 
proposed sign.  The drawing shall specify wattage and bulb type to ensure compatibility with the 
lighting standards in CMC 18.55.xxx.this chapter.   
 

(f) Fees. The applicable permit application fee, pursuant to the City’s current fee resolution in 
effect at the time of application, shall be paid upon submission of the sign permit.  
 

(4) Criteria for Approval.   
 

(a) Sign permit applications shall be reviewed by the Community Development Director for 
consistency with the standards in this chapter, according to the sign type and all other 
applicable regulations.  A sign permit shall not be issued unless the Director makes findings that 
the criteria applicable to each sign type, as well as the general standards in this chapter, are 
satisfied.  Sign permit applications shall be reviewed by the Building Official for consistency with 
the Building Code.  
 

(b) Other criteria for approval.  In addition to the above, the Director shall make written findings 
that the sign meets all of the criteria in this chapter for sign placement, maximum height, 
location on the property, zone, etc. 
 

(5) Notice of Final Decision.  A Notice of Decision incorporating the decision on the sign permit application 
shall issue not more than one hundred and twenty (120) days after issuance of the Determination of 
Completeness.   
 
(6) Expiration of Permit.  A permanent sign approved under a permanent sign permit must be 
installed within one hundred and eighty days (180) days of issuance of the permit or the permanent sign 
permit will expire.  No sign may be erected if a sign permit has expired.   
 

18.55.100 Sign variances. 

(1) Approval Required.  A variance may be granted from the strict application of the regulations in 
this chapter which apply to:  
  

(a) sign placement on a parcel or building frontage;  
 

(b) sign area; or 
  

(c) sign height, as regulated in this chapter.   
 
A variance may not be granted to allow any prohibited signs or prohibited sign features, as described in 
CMC 18.55.050XXX, or for any other purpose not listed in this subsection (1). 
 

208 of 244



 

Page 13 of 32 
 

(2) Review Type. Sign variances under this section shall be processed as a Type II land use decision 
pursuant to the procedures as set forth in Chapter 14.30 CMC, as amended. 
 
(3) Need for Sign Permit, Consolidation of Processing.   A sign variance application may be 
submitted before or concurrent with the associated sign permit application.  No sign permit application 
requiring a variance for issuance will be processed without a sign variance application. 
 
(4) Application Requirements.  A complete sign variance application shall consist of the following:   
 

(a) Application form.  A completed sign variance application on a form provided by the city. If the 
applicant is not the property owner, then the property owner must be identified and the 
application must include an affidavit from the property owner, verifying that the property 
owner has given permission to the applicant for the submission of the sign variance application 
and for the installation/posting of the sign on the property owner’s property.   
 

(b) Sign Permit Application (all of the application materials required by CMC 18.55.090XXX).; 
provided that   However, the applicant may submit a variance application without a sign permit 
application as provided in subsection (2) above.  
 

(c) A narrative report which describes the requested variance in detail.  The report shall identify all 
of the sections of this Chapter from which the applicant is requesting the variance, as well as the 
nature and extent of the variance (in area, location on the property, height). 
 

(d) The narrative report shall also include the applicant’s description of the manner in which the 
sign variance satisfies all of the variance criteria in subsection (5) below.   
 

(e) Fees.  The applicable permit application fee, pursuant to the city’s current fee resolution in 
effect at the time of application, shall be paid upon submission of the sign permit. 
 

(5) Criteria for Approval.  To approve any sign variance, the Director must make written findings to 
show that all of the following criteria have been met: 
 

(a) The request for a sign variance is due to unusual conditions pertaining to sign visibility needs for 
a specific building or lot; and 
 

(b) The sign will not create a hazard; and 
 

(c) The sign will not violate any state statute or any city code provision (other than the provisions 
identified in this chapter relating to signs); and 
 

(d) The sign will not negatively affect adjacent property; and 
 

(e) The sign will be in keeping with the general character of the surrounding area and the granting 
of the variance would not result in an alteration of the essential character of the surrounding 

209 of 244



 

Page 14 of 32 
 

area; and 
 

(f) The proposed variance is consistent with the purposes and intent of the zoning code and the 
purposes of this chapter; and 
 

(g) The variance is consistent with the city’s comprehensive plan; and 
 

(h) The applicant has established that there are practical difficulties in complying with the 
provision(s) of this chapter and that the proposed sign is a reasonable use of the property 
(economic considerations alone do not constitute practical difficulties.); and 
 

(i) The plight of the applicant is due to circumstances unique to the property, which were not 
created by the applicant or landowner; and 
 

(j) The variance will not permit any sign or use that is not allowed in the zoning district where the 
affected land is located, nor will it allow any sign or sign feature prohibited under CMC 
18.55.050XXX.     
 

(6) Notice of Final Decision.  A Notice of Decision incorporating the decision on the variance 
application shall issue not more than one hundred and twenty (120) days after issuance of the 
Determination of Complete Application. 
 
(7) Expiration of Variance.  If the variance is approved, the sign identified in the variance must be 
installed within one hundred and eighty (180) days or the variance will expire.  No sign may be erected if 
there is no sign permit for the sign, or if the variance or the sign permit has expired. 

 

18.55.110 Maintenance; removal. 

(1) Maintenance Required.   
 

(a) It is unlawful for any owner of record, lessor, lessee, manager, or other person having lawful 
possession or control over a building, structure, or parcel of land to fail to maintain any signs on 
the building, structure, or parcel in compliance with this chapter and any other applicable 
provisions of the Covington Municipal Code.  Failure to maintain a sign constitutes a violation of 
this chapter and shall be subject to enforcement under the enforcement provisions of this 
chapter.  
 

(b) Sign maintenance.  All signs, whether or not in existence prior to adoption of this chapter, shall 
be maintained and kept in good repair and in a safe condition at all times.  Maintenance of a 
sign shall include, but is not limited to, periodic cleaning, replacement of flickering, burned out 
or broken light bulbs or fixtures, repair or replacement of any faded, peeled, cracked, or 
otherwise damaged or broken parts of a sign, and any other activity necessary to restore the 
sign so that it continues to comply with the requirements and contents of the sign permit issued 

210 of 244



 

Page 15 of 32 
 

for its installation, if required, and the provisions of this chapter.  
 

(2) Removal.   
 

(a) Every person maintaining a sign must, upon vacating the premises where a sign is maintained, 
remove or cause to be removed said sign within thirty (30) one hundred and eighty (180) days 
from the date of vacating the premises. When the Director determines that said sign has not 
been removed within said 390-day period, the Director shall remedy said violation and enforce 
of the provisions of this chapter in accordance with the enforcement provisions of this chapter. 
 

(b) Any vacant and/or unused sign support structures, angle irons, sign poles, or other remnants of 
old signs which are currently not in use, or are not proposed for immediate reuse by a sign 
permit application for a permitted sign, shall be removed.  In addition to the remedies in 
Chapter 1.30 CMC, the Director shall have the authority to require the repair, maintenance, or 
removal of any sign or sign structure which has become dilapidated or represents a hazard to 
the safety, health, or welfare of the public, at the cost of the sign and/or property owner.   
 

(c) Any sign posted in violation of this chapter on public property or on public rights-of-way shall be 
subject to summary removal by the City. 
 

(d) Any person responsible for any posting made in violation of this chapter shall be liable to the 
City for the costs incurred by the City in removal thereof and, in event of failure to pay, for 
billing and collection charges, including reasonable attorneys’ fees. 
 

(e) The Director is authorized to affect the collection of the removal costs incurred by the City, and, 
if the charge is not paid promptly, interest and the costs of collection, including reasonable 
attorneys’ fees. Costs include, but are not limited to, direct labor, material and equipment costs, 
as well as department and general City overhead costs attributable to the removal of signs and 
to identifying the responsible person or persons and collecting from them the costs of removal.  

 

18.55.120 Nonconforming signs.  

(1) Legally nonconforming. Except as otherwise provided in this section, signs in existence on the 
effective date of the ordinance codified in this chapter which do not conform to the provisions of this 
chapter but which were constructed, erected, or maintained in full compliance with previous regulations 
will be regarded as legal and nonconforming. 
 
(2) Compliance required. Signs in existence on the effective date of the ordinance codified in this 
chapter that do not comply with provisions regulating flashing signs, moving signs, or any signs 
prohibited pursuant to CMC 18.55.050 shall be immediately made to comply with the provisions of this 
chapter or be abated in accordance with the procedure established in Chapter 1.30 CMC. 
 

211 of 244



 

Page 16 of 32 
 

(3) Sign face change. A sign face or message change on a nonconforming sign is not allowed when 
the affected property and sign structure have been abandoned for greater than ninety (90) 
days.pursuant to CMC 18.55.040. 
 
(4) Repair; restoration. Any part of a sign or sign structure may be repaired as normal maintenance, 
or restored to a safe condition, without loss of nonconforming status. Damage from acts of nature or 
vandalism to a nonconforming sign will keep its nonconforming status if the cost of the repair is less 
than fifty percent (50%) of the cost of replacing the nonconforming sign with a conforming sign; 
provided that the replacement sign must be restored to the original design or a more conforming 
design. 
 
(5) Alterations; relocation; replacement. Except for as provided herein, any nonconforming sign 
which is structurally altered, relocated, or replaced must immediately be brought into compliance with 
all of the provisions of this chapter.  
 
(6) Expansion or change of use. Any nonconforming sign on non-residential property must be 
brought into conformance prior to any expansion or change in use which requires a site review or 
conditional use permit. All nonconforming signs must be brought into conformance with the same 
provisions as are required for new signs. No building permits for new construction may be issued until 
compliance with this provision is assured. 
 
(7) Hazardous signs. Any nonconforming sign or sign structure on private property, which, as a 
consequence, is a hazard to life and property, or which by its condition or location presents an 
immediate and serious danger to the public, must be removed or otherwise brought into compliance 
with this chapter pursuant to the enforcement provisions of this chapter.  
 
(8) Variances. Variances may be granted using the variance procedure of this chapter to alleviate 
unusual hardships or extraordinary circumstances which exist in bringing nonconforming signs into 
conformity.  
 
18.55.130 Compliance and enforcement. 
 
(1) Compliance with other applicable codes. All signs erected or altered under this chapter must 
comply with all applicable federal, state, and local regulations relating to signs, including, without 
limitation, the provisions of this chapter and the International Building Code. If any provision of this 
chapter is found to be in conflict with any provision of any zoning, building, fire, safety, or health 
ordinance or code of the city, the provision that establishes the more restrictive standard shall prevail. 
 
(2) Inspection. The Director is empowered to enter or inspect any building, structure, or premises 
in the City upon which any sign is located for the purpose of inspection of the sign, its structural and 
electrical connections, and to ensure compliance with the provisions of this chapter. Such inspections 
shall be carried out during business hours, unless an emergency exists. 
 

212 of 244



 

Page 17 of 32 
 

(3) Bond. The City may require a bond to ensure compliance with any aspect of this chapter. 
 
(4) Violation – Penalty. 
 

(a) It is a violation of this chapter for any person to erect, construct, enlarge, alter, repair, move, 
improve, remove, convert, demolish, equip, use, or maintain any sign or sign structure in the 
City, or cause or permit the same to be done, contrary to the provisions of this chapter. 
 

(b) Each day any person allows a violation of this chapter to continue shall be considered a separate 
offense. 
 

(c) Whenever the City has determined that a violation of this chapter has occurred or is occurring, 
the City shall remedy said violation as follows: 
 

(i) The first violation of this chapter within a 12-month period by a person shall be a civil 
infraction punishable by a monetary penalty in the amount of $100.00, not including 
statutory assessments; 
 

(ii) The second violation of this chapter within a 12-month period by a person shall be a civil 
infraction punishable by a monetary penalty in the amount of $200.00, not including 
statutory assessments; 
 

(iii) The third or any successive violation of this chapter within a 12-month period shall be a 
misdemeanor, punishable by up to a $1,000 fine and/or imprisonment for up to ninety 
(90) days. 

(d) Any sign or sign structure that is erected, constructed, enlarged, altered, repaired, moved, 
improved, removed, converted, demolished, equipped, used or maintained in violation of this 
chapter is declared to be a public nuisance. 
 

(e) All signs abated by the City shall be available for recovery by the owner of said sign for a period 
of two (2) weeks, upon payment of the costs of removal and storage, after which time the sign 
will be destroyed. The City shall not be responsible for damages or loss incurred during removal 
and/or storage of any sign. 
 

(5) Additional remedies. In addition to the other remedies provided by this chapter, the City may 
abate said public nuisance, or seek any other equitable relief authorized by the Chapter 1.30 CMC and 
the laws and regulations of the State of Washington. 
 
(6) Joint and Several Liability. The property owner(s) and each tenant or occupant shall be jointly 
and severally liable for violations of and penalties imposed pursuant to this chapter. 

 

213 of 244



 

Page 18 of 32 
 

PART III: REGULATIONS FOR TEMPORARY SIGNS 

18.55.140 Temporary signs—General regulations.  
18.55.150 Temporary signs—Residential properties. 
18.55.160 Temporary signs—Mixed use properties. 
18.55.170 Temporary signs—Institutional properties. 
18.55.180  Temporary signs—Commercial properties. 
18.55.190 Temporary signs—ROW and public spaces. 
18.55.200 Temporary signs—Other properties. 

 

18.55.140 Temporary signs—General regulations. 

The following provisions apply to all temporary signs placed within the city: 

(1) Sign placement. All temporary signs must be placed totally within the site / property pursuant 
to the requirements of this chapter, except when allowed to extend into the right-of-way by this 
chapter. 
 
(2) Materials; construction. Temporary signs may be made of any durable material, provided that 
the temporary sign otherwise conforms to the requirements of this chapter. A temporary sign may be of 
rigid or non-rigid construction. 
 
(3) Features.  
 

(a) Lighted signs. Temporary signs that have either internal or external illumination shall not be 
displayed from the hours of 11 p.m. to 8 a.m. Signs with illumination shall not emit more than 
XX nits.   
 

(b) Audio. Sound generated by any temporary sign shall not be audible past any property line.be 
regulated and enforced pursuant to the City’s noise control provisions under Chapter 8.20 CMC.  
 

(4) Prohibited placement. In addition to the limitations on the placement of temporary signs within 
the public right-of-way pursuant to CMC 18.55.180, except as otherwise provided for in this chapter, 
temporary signs are prohibited from being located in the following places: 
 

(a) No temporary sign may be placed on a roof of a building or structure. 
 

(b) No temporary sign may be placed on fences. 
 

(c) No temporary sign shall be so located so as to physically obstruct any door or exit from a 
building.  
 

214 of 244



 

Page 19 of 32 
 

(d) No temporary sign shall be located so as to be hazardous to a motorist’s or pedestrian’s ingress 
and egress from buildings or parking areas.  
 

(e) No temporary sign shall be located in the sight-distance triangle pursuant to the City’s Design 
and Construction Standards adopted pursuant to Chapter 12.60 CMC, triangular area(s) 
measured 15 feet by 15 feet where a driveway enters onto a street, or in any other area which 
may obstruct the vision of motorists so as to create a safety hazard. 
 

(f) Temporary signs shall not be placed within the required setback area from the property line, 
which shall be not less than five feet (5 ft.) from the property line in residential zones and not 
less than three feet (3 ft.) from the property line in all other zones. The distance between a sign 
and a property line shall be measured along a straight line representing the shortest distance 
between the sign and the property line. 
 

18.55.150 Temporary signs—Residential properties. 

Except as otherwise provided for in this chapter, tTemporary signs on residential properties are allowed 
pursuant to the following regulations: 
 
(1)  Non-commercial. Except as provided for in CMC 18.55.XXX (Home businesses) and 18.55.XXX(3) 
(Properties for sale or lease), Aall temporary signs on residential properties shall display a non-
commercial message only. [EDITOR’S NOTE: Home-based occupation signs are regulated under the 
permanent sign standards. Temporary for-sale signs are provided for under Subsection (5) below. ] 
 
(2) Sign types; construction; materials. Except as provided for in CMC 18.55.XXX, Tthere is no 
restriction on the type of temporary sign (i.e. the sign construction or materials used) allowed on 
residential properties, provided that all other regulations and provisions of this chapter are met.  

 
(3) Quantity. Except as otherwise provided for in this section, thereThere is no restriction on the 
number of temporary signs allowed on residential properties. 
 
(4) Size.  
 

(a) Temporary fFreestanding signs. No freestanding temporary freestanding sign shall be greater 
than six (6) feet in height and twelve (12) square feet in size, with no sign face exceeding six (6) 
square feet.  
 

(b) Building-mounted signs. For bBuilding-mounted temporary signs attached flush to the face of 
the building: 
 

(i) shall not have a maximum height, provided that no sign shall extend beyond the roofline 
of the building; and 
 

215 of 244



 

Page 20 of 32 
 

(ii) in aggregate (i.e. the total of all building-mounted temporary signs) shall not cover more 
than tentwenty percent (210%) of the building’s facade.  
 

(c) Window signs. Temporary signs placed on the inside of windows shall, in aggregate, not exceed 
fifty percent (50%) of the area of the window on which they are displayed. 
 

(d) The size requirements of this section shall not apply to a flag(s) placed on a permanent flagpole 
or bracket . 
 

(5) Temporary signs in parking strip. Temporary signs may be placed in the parking strip or 
landscaped or unimproved right-of-way directly adjacent to a residential property pursuant to the 
following: 
 

(a) No more than three (3) temporary signs are allowed. For residential properties actively for sale 
or lease, one (1) of the three (3) temporary signs may be a commercial sign; 
 

(b) No temporary sign may be greater than four feet (4 ft.) in height; and 
 

(c) The approval of the property owner of said adjacent property must be given. 
 

18.55.160 Temporary signs—Mixed use properties. 
 
(1) Residential uses. Residential uses on mixed-use properties shall be subject to the temporary 
sign regulations pursuant to CMC 18.55.1540. 
 
(2) Commercial uses. Commercial uses on mixed-use properties shall be subject to the temporary 
sign regulations pursuant to CMC 18.55.180. 
 

18.55.170 Temporary signs—Institutional properties 
 
Except as otherwise provided for in this chapter, tTemporary signs on institutional properties are 
allowed pursuant to the following provisionsregulations: 
 
(1) Non-commercial. Except as provided for in CMC 18.55.XXX (Home businesses) and 18.55.XXX(3) 
(Properties for sale or lease), Aall temporary signs on residential institutional properties shall display a 
non-commercial message only. 
 
(2) Sign types; construction; materials. Except as provided for in CMC 18.55.XXX, Tthere is no 
restriction on the type of temporary sign (i.e. the sign construction or materials used) allowed on 
residential institutional properties, provided that all other regulations and provisions of this chapter are 
met.  

 
 
 

216 of 244



 

Page 21 of 32 
 

(3) Quantity.  
 

(a) Banners. One (1) temporary banner sign is allowed per each five hundred500 feet (500 ft.) of 
street frontage, not to exceed four (4) banners (4) per property. Temporary banners may be 
placed on fences on the property. 

 
(b) All other temporary signs. Except as otherwise provided for in this section, tThere is no 

restriction on the number of all other temporary signs allowed on residential institutional 
properties. 
 

(4) Size.  
 

(a) Banners. Banners shall not be greater than five (5) feet (5 ft.) in height, unless attached to the 
face of the primary structure on the property, in which case there is no maximum height 
restriction so long as the banner does not extend above the roofline of the building. Any banner 
shall not be larger than a total of thirty-two32  square feet (32 sq. ft.) in size. 
 

(b) All other temporary signs displayed on an institutional property shall each not be greater than 
three (3) feet (3 ft.) in height and shall not be greater than six (6) square feet (6 sq. ft.) in size., 
with no sign face exceeding three (3) square feet.  
 

(c) Window signs. Temporary signs placed on windows shall, in aggregate, not exceed fifty percent 
(50%) of the area of the window on which they are displayed. 
 

(d) The size requirements of this section shall not apply to a flag(s) placed on a permanent flagpole 
or bracket. 

 
18.55.180  Temporary signs—Commercial properties. 
 
Except as otherwise provided for in this chapter, aAll temporary signs placed on commercial properties 
shall conform to the following provisions: 
 
(1) Permit Required. Except as provided for herein, aAll temporary signs placed on commercial 
properties must be permitted by the City pursuant to CMC 18.55.070XXX. 
 
(2) Commercial and non-commercial signs. Temporary signs on commercial properties may be 
commercial or non-commercial in their messaging. 

 
(3) Features. No temporary sign on a commercial property may have direct or internal 
illumination.  Changing image sign features and electronic elements are prohibited. 

 
(4) Banners. Temporary bBanner signs on commercial properties shall be limited to the following: 
 

217 of 244



 

Page 22 of 32 
 

(a) Quantity.  
 

(i) One (1) temporary banner sign is allowed per occupant / tenant space on the property. 
 

(ii) The property owner (or landlord), if not also a tenant, may be allowed one (1) 
temporary banner sign. 
 

(b) Size. The maximum size of athe banner shall be 32 thirty-two square feet (32 sq. ft.).  
 

(c) LocationPlacement. A banner shall be attached to the face of the building and may not extend 
above the roofline only. 
 

(d) Duration. Each tenant space, or the property owner pursuant to Subsection (3)(a)(ii) above, A 
banner shall not be displayed  shall be allowed to display a temporary banner for no more than 
a total of one hundred and twenty (120) days in a calendar year.  

 
(5) Portable signs (A-frame signs).   
 

(a) Quantity. One (1) A-frametemporary portable sign is allowed per occupant / tenant space on the 
property. 
 

(b) Size. The sign shall be no more than eight square feet (8 sq. ft.) in size. Only one side of a 
portable sign will be counted. No single sign face shall be greater than fourthree feet (4 ft.) in 
height. The maximum size of each face of the A-frame sign shall be 8 square feet.   
 

(c) Placement. Portable signs must be placed entirely on private property and directly adjacent to 
the tenant space for which the portable sign permit was issued.   
 

(d) Duration. A-framePortable signs may be placed from dawn to dusk, 365 days a year.  
 

(6) Window signs. Temporary signs placed on the inside of windows shall, in aggregate, not exceed 
fifty percent (50%) of the area of the window on which they are displayed. A permit is not required for 
temporary interior window signs.  
 
(7) Temporary freestanding sign. Where a commercial property, either in whole or in part, is 
actively listed for sale or lease, one (1) additional temporary freestanding for each street frontage on the 
site is allowed pursuant to the following:  
 

(a) The sign shall be no more than thirty-two square feet (32 sq. ft.) in area. Temporary 
freestanding signs may have an additional face up to thirty-two square feet (32 sq. ft.) in size if 
the angle between the sign faces is less than ninety (90) degrees; 
 

(b) The sign must be placed totally on private property; and 
 

218 of 244



 

Page 23 of 32 
 

(c) The permit for such a temporary sign shall expire, and the sign must be immediately removed, 
upon the deactivation, sale, or lease of any listed property or tenant space. 

 
18.55.190 Temporary signs—ROW and public spaces. 
(1)  Right-of-way. Temporary signs may be placed in the right-of-way if they meet all of the 
following standards: 

(a) Only temporary lawn signs are allowed; 
 

(b) The sign must be placed entirely outside of the roadway; 
 

(c) The sign must not be placed in medians, traffic islands, roundabouts, or other areas within the 
roadway; 
 

(d) The sign must not obstruct pedestrian or wheelchair access to the sidewalk; 
 

(e) The sign must not be placed in parking spaces, pedestrian pathways, or bicycle paths; 
 

(f) The sign must be placed entirely outside of the sight-distance-triangle of a right-of-way corner, 
curb-cut, or drive entrance pursuant to the City’s Design and Construction Standards adopted 
under Chapter 12.60 CMC. Where no curb exists, the sign must be placed outside the roadway 
at least five feet (5 ft.) from the edge of the roadway.  
 

(g) The sign shall be no larger than six square feet (6 sq. ft.) in size with no sign face taller than 
three feet (3 ft.); and 
 

(h) The sign must remain portable and may not be attached or anchored in any way to trees or to 
public property including, but not limited to, utility or light poles, parking meters, fences, or 
pavement. 
 

Temporary signs are allowed to be placed in public right-of-way, except for the following locations:  
(a) Meridians in public ROW; 
(b) Roundabouts in public ROW; 
(c) Utility poles; and  

Fences. 
 

(2) Public spaces. Temporary signs shall not be placed in any public park, trail, open space, or other 
public space, except for those signs placed by the City. 
 
18.55.200 Temporary signs—Other properties. 
Properties with primary uses other than those regulated under CMC 18.55.140 (Residential properties), 
18.55.170 (Institutional properties); 18.55.180 (Commercial properties), or 18.55.190 (ROW) shall be 
subject to the temporary sign regulations in CMC 18.55.180 (Commercial properties).  

 

219 of 244



 

Page 24 of 32 
 

PART IV: PERMANENT SIGNS—REGULATIONS  
 

18.55.210 Permanent signs—Structural components. 
18.55.220 Permanent signs—Placement.  
18.55.230 Permanent signs—Design criteria. 
18.55.240 Permanent signs—Residential properties. 
18.55.250 Permanent signs—Town center. 
18.55.260 Permanent signs—Nonresidential properties—Freestanding signs. 
18.55.270 Permanent signs—Nonresidential properties—Building-mounted signs. 
 
 
18.55.210 Permanent signs—Structural components. 
To the maximum extent possible, signs should be constructed and installed so that angle irons, guy 
wires, braces, and other structural elements are not visible. This limitation does not apply to structural 
elements that are an integral part of the overall design such as decorative metal or wood. 
 
18.55.220 Permanent signs—Placement. 
 
(1) Obstructing and hazardous placement prohibited. No sign shall be so located so as to physically 
obstruct any door or exit from a building. No sign shall be located so as to be hazardous to a motorist’s 
or pedestrian’s ingress and egress from buildings or parking areas.  
 
(2) Sight distance triangle. No sign shall be located in the triangular area(s) measured 15 feet by 15 
feet where a driveway enters onto a street, or in any other area which may obstruct the vision of 
motorists so as to create a safety hazard.  Additionally, all signs are subject to the current City of 
Covington Design and Construction Standards regarding sight distances, pursuant to CMC 
XX.XXX.XXX12.60, as amended. 
 
(3) Sign Setback Requirements. The required setback from the property lines for all signs shall be 
not less than five (5) feet from the property line in residential zones and not less than three (3) feet from 
the property line in all other zones. 
 
(4) Setback and Distance Measurements. The following guidelines shall be used to determine 
compliance with setback and distance measurements: 
 

(a) The distance between two signs shall be measured along a straight horizontal line that 
represents the shortest distance between the two signs. 
 

(b) The distance between a sign and a property line shall be measured along a straight line 
representing the shortest distance between the sign and the property line. 

 
 
 
 

220 of 244



 

Page 25 of 32 
 

18.55.230 Permanent signs—Design criteria. 
 
(1) Sign Base. The base of the sign must be done in landscape construction materials such as brick, 
stucco, stonework, textured wood, tile or textured concrete or materials that are harmonious with the 
character of the primary structures on the property and subject to the Director’s approval. No visible 
gap shall be allowed between the sign base and the finished grade. 

 
(2) Sign Face. The color, shape, material, and other architectural details of the sign face must be 
consistent with the character of the primary structure. 
 
(3) Landscaping around freestanding signs. To improve overall appearance of the sign and to 
reduce the risk of motor vehicles hitting the sign or supports of the sign, an area adjacent to the base of 
each freestanding sign must be landscaped equal to the sign area; provided, however, that the City will 
not require more than 200 square feet of landscaped area. This landscaping must include vegetation and 
may include other materials and components such as brick or concrete bases as evidenced in plazas, 
patios and other pedestrian areas, planter boxes, pole covers or decorative framing. 
 
(4) Illumination.  No sign may contain or utilize any of the following (does not apply to neon 
signage): 
 

(a) Any exposed incandescent lamp with wattage in excess of 25 watts. 
 

(b) Any exposed incandescent lamp with an internal or external reflector. 
 

(c) Any continuous or sequential flashing device or operation. 
 

(d) Except for electronic changeable message signs, any incandescent lamp inside an internally 
lighted sign. 
 

(e) External light sources directed towards or shining on vehicular or pedestrian traffic or on a 
street. 
 

(f) Internally lighted signs using 800-milliamp or larger ballasts if the lamps are spaced closer than 
12 inches on center. 
 

(g) Internally lighted signs using 425-milliamp or larger ballasts if the lamps are spaced closer than 
six inches on center. 
 

(5) Design consistency. Where more than one sign is allowed for a property, all signs for that 
property shall be consistent in design, style, color, and method of illumination.   

 

 

221 of 244



 

Page 26 of 32 
 

 
18.55.240 Permanent signs—Residential properties. 

(1) Generally. No sign permit for any residential zone shall be issued for any permanent sign unless 
such sign complies with the sign type, maximum number, maximum sign area, maximum height, 
location, duration, and all other allowances and limitations for those uses as required by this chapter. 
 
(2) Properties issued a business license. On residential properties for which the City has issued a 
valid City business license for home occupation or home industry, one (1) permanent sign is allowed 
pursuant to the following: 
 

(a) The sign must be a wall sign placed on the façade of the primary structure; the sign may be of a 
commercial or non-commercial nature. 
 

(b) The maximum sign size shall not be greater than four (4) square feet in size. 
 
he total sign area shall not to exceed 10 percent of the area of the façade upon which the sign is 
placed, with a maximum sign size that does not exceed four (4) square feet. The sign width shall 
not to exceed 60 percent of the width of the wall plane upon which the sign is placed. 
 

(c) Where a sign placed on the building’s façade cannot be seen from a public street due to the 
distance the building is setback from the street, the Director may approve an alternative sign 
size, type, or location. 
 

(d) The sign shall not cover or obscure important architectural details of a building, such as stair 
railings, windows, doors, decorative louvers, or similar elements intended to be decorative 
features of a building design.  
 

(e) The sign must appear to be a secondary feature of the building façade.  
 

(f) The sign shall not project above the roofline of the exposed building face to which it is attached. 
 

(g) The sign shall be installed to appear flush-mounted. For residential uses,  
 

(h) Illumination is not allowed. 

 
18.55.250 Permanent signs—Town Center. 
Permanent sign construction and design standards in chapter 18.31 CMC for the Town Center (TC) 
zoning district shall be applied to all permanent signs within the Town Center zone. Where any other 
standards in this chapter may conflict with chapter 18.31 CMC, the standards contained in chapter 18.31 
CMC shall control.  

 

 

222 of 244



 

Page 27 of 32 
 

18.55.260 Permanent signs—Nonresidential properties—Freestanding signs. 

Except as provided for in CMC 18.55.250, all nonresidential properties shall be designated as either 
qualifying for a high profile, medium profile, or low profile freestanding sign based upon the following 
criteria: 

(1) Freestanding signs—High profile.  
(a) A commercial property meeting all of the following criteria is allowed a high profile freestanding 

sign: 
 

(i) A zoning designation of GC (General Commercial) or MC (Mixed Commercial)CR 
(Regional Commercial) or CD (Downtown Commercial); 
 

(ii) A minimum of 250 feet of frontage on one public right-of-way; 
 

(iii) Multi-use complex; and 
 

(iv) A minimum site of fifteen (15) acres. 
 

(b) Sign Types. The following sign types are allowed for freestanding high-profile signs: 
 

(i) Pedestal signs; 
 

(ii) Monument signs; and 
 

(iii) Kiosks. 
 

(c) Sign Features. The following sign features are allowed for freestanding high-profile signs: 
 

(i) Any high profile sign may be an electrical sign, an illuminated sign, and/or a neon sign. 
 

(ii) The sign features for pedestal or monument sign may include electronic changeable 
messages and/or changeable copy signs.  
 

(d) Sign Height. A freestanding high-profile sign shall not exceed the following maximum heights: 
 

(i) Pedestal or monument signs: Twelve feet (12 ft) 
 

(ii) Kiosk sign: Six feet (6 ft), unless the sign is set back a minimum of fifty feet (50 ft) from 
any public right-of-way, in which case it may be ten feet (10 ft). 
 

(e) Sign Area. A freestanding high profile sign shall not exceed the following maximum sign areas: 
 

(i) Pedestal or monument signs: 160 square feet for the total of all sign faces with no one 
face exceeding 80 square feet. 
 

223 of 244



 

Page 28 of 32 
 

(ii) Kiosk signs: 15 square feet per sign face. 
 

(f) Number of Signs. A property qualifying for a freestanding high profile sign may have the 
following maximum number of signs: 
 

(i) Pedestal or monument signs: one sign unless the property has an additional 500 feet of 
street frontage for a total of 750 feet of aggregate frontage on any public right-of-way, 
in which case the property will be allowed one additional high profile sign, not to exceed 
a maximum of two such signs per property. In addition, two monument signs are 
allowed per entrance from a public right-of-way, not to exceed five feet in height; and 
 

(ii) Kiosk signs: one sign per property frontage. 
 

(2) Freestanding signs—Medium profile. 
 

(a) Criteria. Except as provided for in CMC 18.55.250, a property that does not qualify for a 
freestanding high profile sign pursuant to subsection (1) of this section or is zoned I (industrial), 
or M (mineral), MHO (Mixed Housing/Office), or some other zoning designation other than 
those identified in Subsection (1) above is allowed a medium profile freestanding sign. 
 

(b) Sign Type. The following sign types are allowed for a freestanding medium profile sign: 
 

(i) Pedestal signs; and 
 

(ii) Monument signs. 
 

(c) Sign Features. The following sign features are allowed for freestanding high-profile signs: 
 

(i) Any medium profile sign may be an electrical sign, an illuminated sign, and/or a neon 
sign. 
 

(ii) The sign features for pedestal or monument sign may include electronic changeable 
messages and/or changeable copy signs.  

 
(b) Sign Height.  

 
(i) The height of a freestanding medium profile sign shall be calculated at the rate of 0.75 

feet of sign height for every 10 lineal feet of frontage on a public right-of-way; provided, 
however, that sign height shall be calculated at the rate of one and one-half feet in 
height for every 10 lineal feet of frontage on a public right-of-way for any multi-tenant 
complex.  
 

224 of 244



 

Page 29 of 32 
 

(ii) Sign height shall not exceed 12 feet and every applicant is entitled to a minimum height 
of five feet. 
 

(b) Sign Area.  
 

(i) For any multi-tenant complex, sign area will be calculated at the rate of two-square feet 
per lineal foot of building frontage on a public right-of-way not to exceed a maximum 
sign area of 128 square feet for the total of all sign faces on each permitted sign with no 
one sign face exceeding 64 square feet.  
 

(ii) For all other uses, sign area allowed for medium profile signs shall be calculated at the 
rate of one square foot per lineal foot of frontage on a public right-of-way not to exceed 
a maximum sign area of 80 square feet for the total of all sign faces on each permitted 
sign with no one sign face exceeding 40 square feet.  
 

(iii) Notwithstanding the foregoing sign area calculations, every applicant is entitled to a 
minimum sign area of 50 square feet for the total of all sign faces with no one sign face 
exceeding 25 square feet. 
 

(b) Number of Signs. A property qualifying for a freestanding medium profile sign may have the 
following maximum number of signs: 
 

(i) Pedestal or monument sign: one per street frontage. 
 

(ii) Kiosk sign: one per property frontage. 
 

(2) Freestanding signs—Low profile.  
 

(a) Criteria. A property located in the NC (Neighborhood Commercial) or CC (Community 
Commercial) zones NB (neighborhood business) zone is allowed a low profile freestanding sign. 
 

(b) Sign Type. The following sign types are allowed for a freestanding low profile sign: 
 

(i) Pedestal signs; and 
 

(ii) Monument signs. 
 

(c) Sign Features. Any freestanding low profile sign may be an electrical sign, an illuminated sign, 
and/or a neon sign. 
 

(d) Sign Height. A freestanding low profile sign shall not exceed the following maximum heights: 
 

(i) Pedestal or monument signs: five feet. 
 

225 of 244



 

Page 30 of 32 
 

(ii) Kiosks: six feet unless the sign is set back a minimum of 50 feet from any public right-of-
way, in which case it may be 10 feet. 
 

(e) Sign Area. 
 

(i) Pedestal or monument signs: sign area allowed for a low profile sign shall be calculated 
at the rate of one square foot per lineal foot of building frontage on a public right-of-
way; provided, however, that a low profile sign shall not exceed a maximum sign area of 
80 square feet for the total of all sign faces on each permitted sign with no one sign face 
exceeding 40 square feet. 
 

(ii) Every applicant is entitled to a minimum sign area of 50 square feet for the total of all 
sign faces with no one sign face exceeding 25 square feet. 
 

(f) Number of Signs. A property qualifying for a low profile sign may have the following maximum 
number of signs: 
 

(i) Pedestal or monument signs: one sign per frontage on a public right-of-way. 
 

(3) Combined sign package for adjacent property owners. The owners of two or more properties 
that abut or are separated only by a vehicular access easement or tract may propose a combined sign 
package to the City. The City will review and decide upon a combined sign package by reviewing the 
proposal as if the combined parcels were one development. The City may approve the combined sign 
package if it will provide more coordinated, effective, and efficient signs. The allowable sign area, sign 
type, sign height, and number of signs will be determined as if the applicants were one multi-tenant 
complex. 
 
18.55.270 Permanent signs—Nonresidential properties—Building-mounted signs.  
Except as provided for in CMC 18.55.260, all nonresidential properties shall be allowed permanent 
building-mounted signs pursuant to the following criteria: 
 
(1) Sign Types. The following may be building-mounted signs and are allowed in all nonresidential 
zoning districts: 
 

(a) Awning or canopy signs; 
 
(b) Changeable copy signs; 
 
(c) Electronic changeable message signs; 
 
(d) Marquee signs; 
 
(e) Window signs; 
 

226 of 244



 

Page 31 of 32 
 

(f) Projecting signs; and 
 
(g) Wall-mounted signs. 
 

(2) Sign Features. Any building-mounted sign may be an electrical sign, an illuminated sign, and/or 
a neon sign. 
 
(3) Sign Height. No sign shall project above the roofline of the exposed building face to which it is 
attached. 
 
(4) Sign Area. Except as otherwise provided for in this section, the total sign area of building-
mounted signs for each business or tenant, excluding under canopy signs, shall not exceed 15 percent of 
the exposed building face to which it is attached; provided, however, that no individual sign shall exceed 
a sign area of 240 square feet and every applicant is entitled to a minimum sign area of 30 square feet. 
 
(5) Number of Signs.  
 

(a) The number of building-mounted signs allowed each user is dependent on upon the surface are 
of the largest single exposed building face of the building as follows: 

 
Largest Exposed 

Building Face 
Maximum Number 

of Signs 
Less than 999 square feet 2 
1,000 – 2,999 square feet 3 
3,000 – 3,999 square feet 4 

4,000 and over square 
feet 

5  

 
(b) Primary uses with more than one business (i.e., grocery store with a banking facility, cleaner, 

etc.), which must obtain a business license and without a separate entrance, are allowed one 
sign for each different business in addition to the number allowed above. The area of such 
additional signage must not exceed 15 percent of the exterior wall of the separate business. 
 

(c) An applicant is not allowed to transfer sign area calculated pursuant to this section from one 
building face to another but is allowed to move allotted signs from one building face to another. 
 

(d) Each business or use may be allowed under canopy signs in addition to the other allowed 
building-mounted signs subject to the size and separation requirements set forth in CMC Title 
18. 
 

(6) Window signs.  
 

(a) Permanent window signs in buildings with non-residential uses are limited to painted or vinyl 
cut-out materials, or a neon signs constructed with or without a solid or opaque background.  
 

227 of 244



 

Page 32 of 32 
 

(b) Permanent signs with solid backgrounds are not allowed in windows in order to ensure 
maximum light and visibility through windows.     
 

228 of 244



Agenda Item 4  
 Covington City Council  
 Date: October 25, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:  ADOPT A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A YOUTH COUNCIL 
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Regan Bolli, City Manager 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Proposed Resolution Establishing a Youth Council 
2. Map 
 
PREPARED BY:  Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: 
At the September 13, 2016 City Council meeting, the Council reviewed the resolution establishing 
a Youth Council.  Councilmembers suggested edits to the resolution and requested staff to revise 
the resolution and bring it back to a future meeting.  The modified resolution is attached.  Also 
included is a map that will be used, along with GPS, to help determine if applicants live within 3 
miles of city limits. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
1. Modify the resolution. 
2. Not adopt the resolution. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
Minor costs for meeting materials such as three ring binders, and incidentals.  These are routine 
costs that would be covered by the existing city budget.  The appointed adult leaders are intended 
to perform much of the oversight of the Youth Council, keeping staff time at a minimum.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance    X   Resolution        Motion         Other 
 

Councilmember _______________ moves, Councilmember 
_______________ Seconds, to adopt a resolution, in substantial 
form as that attached, establishing a City of Covington Youth 
Council. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney 

229 of 244



RESOLUTION NO.  2016-19 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
ESTABLISHING A YOUTH COUNCIL 

WHEREAS, it is important and beneficial to all residents of the City of Covington (the 
“City”) to foster involvement of the community’s youth in the process of government and the 
ideals of public service; and 

WHEREAS, it is desirable to expand the City’s connections to the community; and 

WHEREAS, it is desirable to increase the number of volunteers who help the City achieve 
its goals; and 

WHEREAS, it is important to obtain community input on key issues facing the City; 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 
WASHINGTON, hereby resolves as follows: 

Section 1. Covington Youth Council Established. The Covington City Council hereby 
establishes the Covington Youth Council, which shall be referred to as the “Youth Council”. The 
city manager shall designate appropriate city staff to advise and provide administrative assistance 
to the Youth Council leaders and members. 

Section 2. Purpose. The purpose of the Youth Council shall be as follows: 

2.1. Involve youth in local government. 

2.2. Increase volunteerism among youth in civic affairs. 

2.3. Increase communication with youth in the Covington community. 

2.4. Involve youth in planning youth activities for the Covington community. 

2.5. Serve as an advisory body to the City Council on matters dealing with youth in the 
Covington community. 

Section 3. Adult Leader Positions. The Youth Council shall be guided and mentored by 
at least two (2) non-voting adult leaders. The adult leader positions shall be appointed and fulfilled 
pursuant to the following: 

3.1 Appointment. Notice of Vacancies. Unless otherwise directed by the council, the 
city clerk’s office shall advertise notice of vacant positions so that any interested 
and qualified individual may submit an application.  

ATTACHMENT 1

230 of 244



3.2 Applicant Interviews and Appointment. The city council will endeavor to 
interview all applicants for an available position; provided that the mayor and 
mayor pro tem may limit the number of applicants interviewed by the council as a 
whole when the gross number of applicants is so large as to be an undue burden on 
the council’s schedule.  
 
 All interviews for available positions shall be scheduled at either a special or 

committee of the whole council meeting. For the purpose of any special or 
committee of the whole council meeting in which interviews are the only 
agenda item, the council may proceed with calling the meeting to order and 
conducting said interviews so long as three (3) or more council members are 
present.  
 

 The council shall also interview applicants seeking reappointment for the 
same position, unless otherwise determined by a majority of the council. 

 
 Appointments will be made during a regularly scheduled council meeting.  

 
 Upon appointment, new appointees will receive a briefing by city staff 

regarding the duties and responsibilities of the members of the Covington 
Youth Council. 

 
3.1. Appointment; Term. The City Council, by majority vote, shall appoint at least two 

(2) adult leaders to the Youth Council. Upon establishment of the Youth Council, all 
adult leader positions shall be initially appointed for a two-year term. Thereafter, 
upon the expiration or vacancy of an adult position, the City Council, by majority 
vote, shall appoint individuals to the adult leader positions in staggered-length terms 
to be determined by the City Council (e.g. one adult leader position assigned to a 
one-year term and the other adult leader position assigned to a two- year term; or, 
one adult leader position assigned to a two-year term and the other adult leader 
position assigned to a three-year term, etc.).  

 
3.2. Removal. The City Council may remove an adult leader from their position at any 

time without reason upon a majority vote of the council.  
 
Section 4. Youth Council Members. Voting members of the Youth Council shall be appointed 
and serve pursuant to the following: 
 

4.1. Selection and Appointment. The city clerk’s office shall advertise notice of vacant 
positions so that any interested and qualified individual may submit an application.  
Applicants shall be interviewed by the City Council and the adult leaders.  The City 
Council shall make the final decision on appointments. 

 

231 of 244



4.2. Member Criteria. Youth Council members shall be between the ages of fifteen (15) 
and eighteen (18) at the time of selection and reside or attend school within the City 
of Covington or a 3-mile radius of the City of Covington city limits.  

 
4.3. Term. Selected Youth Council members shall each serve for a term of one (1) year. 

There is no limit on the number of terms a Youth Council member may apply for and 
be appointed to. 

 
4.4. Removal. The City Council, by majority vote, may remove a member of the Youth 

Council at any time without reason. The City Council may take such action only 
upon the recommendation of all adult leaders, or by a majority vote of the Youth 
Council combined with the recommendation of at least one adult leader. 

 
Section 5. Organization and Rules.  The Youth Council shall recommend such rules for 
governing its procedures as it deems necessary or advisable to the City Council for approval and 
shall keep a record of its proceedings, which record shall be a public record. The Youth Council 
shall hold regular meetings at least once every two (2) months and, pursuant to Section 8.0 of the 
Covington City Council Policies and Procedures, shall comply with the requirements of the Open 
Public Meetings Act (RCW 42.30). 

 
 ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Covington, Washington, in open and regular 
session this 25th day of October, 2016, and signed in authentication thereof. 
 

_____________________________________ 
                 JEFF WAGNER, MAYOR 

ATTESTED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

232 of 244



ATTACHMENT 2

233 of 244



 Agenda Item 5   
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: October 25, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  COVINGTON COMMUNITY PARK PHASE 2 – 90% DESIGN 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Ethan Newton, Parks & Recreation Director 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Covington Community Park Phase 2 Diagram 
 
PREPARED BY:  Ethan Newton, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
With design work 90% complete for Covington Community Park Phase 2, consultants MacLeod 
Reckord will provide an update. 
 
Next steps include finalizing construction drawings/specifications, preparing bid documents, 
bidding, and construction. Construction is planned to begin in April 2017 with the bulk of 
construction to be completed by the end of the year. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
None. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
None. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance          Resolution          Motion     X    Other 
 

NO ACTION NECESSARY – DISCUSSION ITEM ONLY 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager 

234 of 244



hf kdpq l k=` l j mi b
pqobbq=qvml i l dv=

B

E

STAGE W/ GREEN ROOF
RESTROOMS / CONCESSIONS
LARGE PICNIC SHELTER
SMALL PICNIC SHELTER
CHILDREN’S PLAY AREA
PAVED TRAIL
GRAVEL TRAIL
TENNIS COURT W/ SOUTH ACCESS
PLAY LAWN TERRACE
ENTRY, DROP-OFF AND TERRACE
PARKING LOT
AMPHITHEATER LAWN
WETLAND MITIGATION
180TH AVENUE SE IMPROVEMENTS
RAIN GARDENS
BIO-RETENTION SWALES

FITNESS AREA
BIRD-HOUSE/BAT-HOUSE
MOON GATE ENTRY FEATURE
DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE
KIOSK
FIRE TRUCK TURN AROUND

SMALL PICNIC SHELTER
180TH AVENUE SE IMPROVEMENTS

A

A
B

C

CG

G

L

I

J

K

M

M

M

M

K

A N

S

O

O

S

S

T

P

P

P

Q

R

R

R

U

H

R R

B

D
E

A

B

F

F

D

F
G
H
I
J
K
L
M
N

PHASE 2

 

O
P
Q
R
S
T
U
V

EXISTING
WETLANDS

SE 240TH ST

18
0T

H 
A

VE
 S

E

EXISTING
WETLANDS

ALTERNATE COMPONENTS

COVINGTON COMMUNITY PARK - PHASE 2
SITE PLAN   |   SEPTEMBER, 2016   |   

40 0       20      40 80 160        

SCALE: 1”=40’ 

ATTACHMENT 1

235 of 244



hf kdpq l k=` l j mi b
pqobbq=qvml i l dv=

B

E

STAGE W/ GREEN ROOF
RESTROOMS / CONCESSIONS
LARGE PICNIC SHELTER
SMALL PICNIC SHELTER
PRECAST CONCRETE FIRE RING
PRECAST CONCRETE MOON GATE
PRECAST CONCRETE W/ WOOD TOP
PRECAST CONCRETE BASINS
CHILDREN’S CHALK ZONE
CHILDREN’S CHALK ZONE STORAGE BOX
18” SEAT WALL
TABLE / PICNIC TABLE
BENCH
BOLLARDS
BIKE RACK
DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE
ENTRY SIGN
ACCESSIBLE RAMP
SYNTHETIC TURF SURFACING
WOOD CHIP SURFACING
CONCRETE RUNNEL
CONCRETE PADS FOR FUTURE ART

KOMPAN STINGER
KOMPAN HOPPER
KOMPAN COROCORD
KOMPAN SUPERNOVA
LANDSCAPE STRUCTURES RHAPSODY
LANDSCAPE STRUCTURES DRUMS
LANDSCAPE STRUCTURES ZIPLINE
ID SCULPTURE THE PALISADES
 CLIMBING BOULDER
GAMETIME EXPRESSION SWING
GAMETIME SWINGSET

SMALL PICNIC SHELTER

A

A
I

J

B

H

C

D E F

G

C

D

F

F

FG

G

G

G

G

G I
J

H

U

V

V

V

K

K

K

K

K

K

K

K

L

L

M

M
M

N

PHASE 2 
  
 

B

E

A

C
D

F
G
H

I
J

O

P

Q

Q

R

R
S

S

T

B

E

A

C
D

F
G
H
I
J
K
L
M
N
O
P
Q
R
S
T
U
V

PLAY EQUIPMENT

ALTERNATE COMPONENTS

A

A

COVINGTON COMMUNITY PARK - PHASE 2
SITE PLAN   |   SEPTEMBER, 2016   |   

12               0          6      12                 24                                   48                  

SCALE: 1”=12’  
236 of 244



 Agenda Item 6                         
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date: October 25, 2016 
 
 
 
SUBJECT:  2017 LEGISLATIVE AGENDA 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Regan Bolli, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  

1. Possible 2017 legislative agenda items  
 
PREPARED BY:  Regan Bolli, City Manager 
 
EXPLANATION:  
The City Council adopts a legislative agenda every year.  The attached legislative agenda items 
are revised from 2016 and include issues that have arisen.  Furthermore, those issues that were 
resolved from 2016 have been removed.  
 
Subsequent to this meeting staff will be meeting with our city’s lobbyist to review council 
recommendations and priorities for the 2017 legislative session.  Once finalized this will be 
brought back to council for final approval. Following approval staff will review our 2017 
Legislative Agenda with our 47th District Legislators.   
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Staff time 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance             Resolution           Motion        X     Other  
 
Provide feedback and direction to staff.   
 
REVIEWED BY:  Leadership Team     
 
 
 

237 of 244



City of Covington  
2017 Legislative Priorities 

• Covington’s Town Center
The City of Covington is pursuing funding to realize its vision of a thriving Town Center and a
“sense of place” for the Covington Community.  The City envisions a mixed-use development,
with town square, and new city hall. In order to realize this vision, the City needs the state’s
partnership in providing economic development, capital funding or other incentives.

• Transportation Funding
The City of Covington is thankful for the funding allocated in the Connecting Washington
funding package to widen SR 516 between Jenkins Creek and 185th and the Covington
Connector. The City will monitor the implementation of the Connecting Washington package to
ensure timely and efficient delivery of both of these projects. Additionally, the City will
collaboratively work with Maple Valley and Black Diamond to continue lobbying for the
widening of SR 516 from 185th to Four Corners.

• Higher Education Needs Assessment
Following the completion of the SE King County Higher Education Needs Assessment, the City
of Covington asks that the Legislature partner with the city on the next step to bring higher
education to the Covington community.

• Cost Savings
The City of Covington will work with the Association of Washington Cities to advance
legislation that brings cost savings to the city, including public records reform.

ATTACHMENT 1

238 of 244



2017 Legislative Policy Document     

In addition to the City’s 2017 adopted legislative priorities, the city has adopted the following 
policies. The policy document provides direction to city staff and the city lobbyist. These are 
issues that the city will monitor and support along with AWC and other stakeholders, but are 
secondary to the 2017 legislative priorities of the City.  
 

• Transportation: 
o Covington Connector – The City supports efforts to expedite funding for the construction 

of the Covington Connector.  
o Street Grant Policies – The City will explore and support legislative proposals to create 

new grant programs and/or amend existing grant programs to prioritize streets with high 
average daily traffic flow counts or state routes through city centers.  

o Councilmanic authority - The City supports additional revenue tools that provide 
councilmanic authority to fund local transportation.  

o I-90 and State Highway 18 Improvements - Collaboratively work with applicable 
jurisdictions to lobby for the widening of I-90 & Highway 18 in the next transportation 
package.  
 

• Property Tax: The city supports lifting the 1% property tax ceiling to allow city revenues to 
increase with inflation/increasing costs.  
 

• State-Shared Revenues – The City requests that as the Legislature develops its 17-19 
budgets that it fully fund local-state shared revenues, and further asks that the legislature 
restore full funding to the liquor revolving account. The City supports legislation that restores 
liquor profit revenues to pre-2012 levels by removing the 2011 cap, and restoring the 50/50 
revenue sharing relationship over multiple biennia and dedicating the revenue to public 
safety.   
 

• AWC & SCA Legislative Programs:  Support the Association of Washington Cities (AWC) and 
Sound Cities Association (SCA) legislative programs.  Support other local government 
professional associations’ legislative programs when consistent with the aforementioned 
programs. 

• Economic Development Funding:  Support constitutional amendments and/or legislation to 
create pure tax increment financing.  Support funding for the Local Infrastructure Financing Tool 
(LIFT) and Local Revitalization Financing (LRF) programs.  Support efforts to make LIFT and 
LRF simpler, more flexible, and user-friendly. 

• Infrastructure Funding: The City supports reforming and restoring the Public Works Assistance 
Account to meet local infrastructure needs.  

• Joint Legislative Agenda:  The cities of Covington, Maple Valley, and Black Diamond will 
continue to advocate jointly for federal and state funding for State Route 169 and State Route 516 
improvements and for transit alternatives in the three rapidly growing communities.  

• Unfunded Mandates: Oppose unfunded and under-funded mandates on local government.  
Support funding for existing mandates including comprehensive plan updates, Shoreline 
Management Act updates and National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) 
requirements. 

239 of 244



• Local Control: The City of Covington supports legislation that provides greater local control to 
city regulatory issues, particularly around fireworks, marijuana lounges, liquor establishments, 
etc.  
 

• Affordable Housing Tools: The City supports additional local option funding tools for 
affordable housing.  Additionally, the City joins housing advocates in requesting $200 million for 
the Housing Trust Fund, and extending the document recording fee.  

 
• Parks: The City is grateful for state investments in its parks, particularly Community Park. The 

City will work with the Washington Recreation and Parks Association to increase local park and 
recreation opportunity in the city, including full funding for the Washington Wildlife and 
Recreation Program to fund SoCo Park Phase 2.  

 
• Stormwater & Culvert Funding: The City has significant stormwater and culvert funding 

needs. The City requests funding for current and new grant programs for local stormwater and 
culvert projects.   
 
 

240 of 244



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date: October 25, 2016 

 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: 

 
 

8:00 a.m., SATURDAY, October 29, 2016 
Special Meeting – Budget Workshop 

 
 

7:00 p.m., WEDNESDAY, November 9, 2016 
Regular Meeting (moved to Wednesday for Elections) 

 
 

(Draft Agendas Attached) 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

241 of 244



 
 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

CITY COUNCIL BUDGET WORKSHOP 
Council Chambers – 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 

Saturday, October 29, 2016 – 8:00 a.m. 
(Council & Leadership Team Breakfast beginning @ 7:30 a.m.) 

                                                                                 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION: 
The workshop is an informal meeting involving discussion between and among the City Council and city 
staff regarding presentations and strategies.  Workshops may involve presentations, feedback, 
brainstorming, etc., regarding further work to be done by the staff on key policy matters. 
 
CALL CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP TO ORDER 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
ITEM(S) FOR DISCUSSION 
1. Strategic Plan Development (Jim Reid) - 1.5 hours 
2. Break – 5 minutes 
3. Discuss Town Center Developer Decision (Bolli) 
4. Review Budget Strategies (Bolli) 
5. Department 2017 Budget Presentations – 40 minutes 

• Executive (Bolli) – 5 minutes 
• Finance (Hendrickson) – 5 minutes 
• Police (McCurdy) – 5 minutes 
• Community Development (Hart) – 5 minutes 
• Public Works (Vondran) – 10 minutes 
• Parks & Recreation (Newton) – 10 minutes 

6. Review Budget Forecast (Hendrickson) 
7. Working Lunch 
8. Budget Discussion (Council) 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 

Draft 
as of 10/20/2016 

 

242 of 244

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/


 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
SPECIAL MEETING DAY FOR ELECTIONS 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
Wednesday, November 9, 2016                                                                                         City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
  
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per 
speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows. * 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  October 25, 2016 Special Meeting – Joint Study Session with Arts Commission and 

October 25, 2016 Regular Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Transfer Committed Parks Fund Balance to General Fund (Hendrickson) 
C-4. Consider Ordinance Dissolving Parks Fund (Hendrickson) 
C-5. Accept SE 256th Culvert Project (Vondran) 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
1. To Receive Testimony from the Public Regarding Proposed Fiscal Year 2017 Budget and Revenue 

Sources and Set the Property Tax Levy (Hendrickson) (Second of Three Public Hearings) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
2. First Discussion of NPDES Regulation Changes (Lyons/Vondran) 
3. Fee Resolution for 2017 Administrative Fees on Building Permits and Land Use Actions 

(Thompson) 
4. Discuss Accounts Receivable Procedures (Hendrickson) 
5. Consider Adopting 2017 Legislative Agenda (Bolli) 
6. 2016 Third Quarter Financial Report (Hendrickson) 

 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

Draft 
as of 10/20/2016 

 

243 of 244

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/


 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – if needed 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 

244 of 244


	10-25-2016 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, October 25, 2016                                                                                                 City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE

	Consent C-1 Green Sheet 10-25-2016 Green Sheet Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent C-1 Attachment 1 09.13.2016 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes
	Consent C-1 Attachment 2 09.27.2016 Regular Meeting Minutes
	Consent C-1 Attachment 3 10.11.2016 Regular Meeting Minutes
	Consent C-2 Green Sheet 10-25-2016 Voucher Green Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent C-2 Attachments
	Consent C-3 Green Sheet Blue Sheet Covington Mixed Use ROW Deeds
	Consent Agenda Item C-3
	Covington City Council Meeting

	Consent C-3 Attachment 1_ ROW Statutory Warranty Deed
	Covington - ROW Statutory Warranty Deed - 8.9.16.pdf
	Covington - ROW Deed - Exhibit B.pdf

	Consent C-4 Green Sheet Lakeside Easement Agreement Blue Sheet
	Consent C-4 Attachment 1_Lakeside Industries ROW Easement Request
	Consent C-4 Attachment 2_Lakeside Industries Current Location
	Consent C-4 Attachment 3_Lakeside Proposed Location
	Lakeside Site Plan_Cover Sheet
	A9R5BE6.tmp.pdf

	Lakeside Sheet 3_Site Plan.pdf

	Consent C-4 Attachment 4_Lakeside sunset clause_100316
	Consent C-5 Green Sheet Blue Sheet_ORD Amending_SEPA Rules_25OCT2016MTG_SBSEDIT_CLEAN
	Consent Agenda Item C-5

	Consent C-5 ATTCH 1_ORD Amending_SEPA Rules_25OCT2016MTG_SBSEDIT_CLEAN
	(1) For nonexempt proposals, the determination of nonsignificance or in the case where an EIS has been required, a final environmental impact statement (FEIS) for the proposal will accompany the staff recommendation, if any, in a quasi-judicial procee...
	(2) For nonexempt legislative proposals, the DNS or draft EIS or other threshold determination and SEPA environmental documentation for the proposal shall accompany the City’s staff recommendation to the appropriate advisory body, such as the Planning...
	16.10.090 Categorical exemptions (flexible thresholds).
	(1) The City establishes the following exempt levels for minor new construction under WAC 197-11-800(1)(bc) and (d) based on local conditions:
	(a) The construction or location of any single-family residential structures of nine or fewer dwelling units;
	(b) The construction or location of any multifamily residential structures of 60 or fewer units located within the mixed housing/office (MHO), mixed commercial (MC), and general commercial (GC) downtown zoning districts and the R-18 multifamily zone;
	(c) The construction of a barn, loafing shed, farm equipment storage building, produce storage or packing structure, or similar agricultural structure, covering 30,000 square feet, and to be used only by the property owner or his or her agent in the c...
	(d) The construction of an office, school, commercial, recreational, service or storage building with 12,000 square feet of gross floor area, and with associated parking facilities designated for 40 automobiles;
	(e) The construction of a parking lot designated for 40 automobiles;
	(f) Any landfill or excavation of 500 cubic yards throughout the total lifetime of the fill or excavation; and any fill or excavation classified as a Class I, II, or III forest practice under RCW 76.09.050 or regulations thereunder; provided, that the...
	(2) The City adopts the following provisions of the Revised Code of Washington by reference, as now existing or as hereafter amended regarding exemptions for nonproject proposals:
	(32) Whenever the City establishes new exempt levels under this section, it will send them to the Department of Ecology, Headquarters Office, Olympia, Washington 98504, pursuant to WAC 197-11-800(1)(c).
	14.30.040 Decision types. 1
	14.30.050 Requirements by decision type.1
	14.45.030 Procedures.

	Consent C-6 Green Sheet Blue Sheet_ORD_Repealing CMC 18.100_25OCT2016MTG_SBSEDIT_CLEAN
	Consent Agenda Item C-6

	Consent C-6 ATTCH 1_ORD_Repealing CMC 18.100_SBSEDIT_CLEAN
	Consent C-7 Green Sheet Blue Sheet, RCO Project Agreement for Covington Community Park Phase 2
	Consent C-7 Attachment 1 Funding Board Project Agreement, #14-1537D, Covington Community Park - Phase 2
	Consent C-8 Green Sheet Blue Sheet, Covington Water District System Extension Agreementv2
	Consent Agenda Item C-8

	Consent C-8 Attachment 1 Covington Water District System Extension Application and Agreement
	“ATTACHMENT A”

	Item 1 Blue Sheet 10-25-16 Revenue Hearing Blue Sheet
	Agenda Item 1

	Item  1 Attachment 1 - 2017 Description of Revenue Sources
	TAXES
	Real Estate Excise Tax (REET) Real Estate Excise Tax Funds
	Transportation Benefit District Vehicle Fee Street Fund
	LICENSES AND PERMITS
	FINES AND FORFEITURES
	MISCELLANEOUS


	Item 1 Attachment 2 - 2017 Prop Tax Worksheet
	Sheet1

	Item 2 Blue Sheet - Kent School 2017 CFP Adoption & Impact Fees
	Agenda Item 2

	Item 2 Attachment 1 Ord Adopting 2017 Kent CFP & Impact Fees
	Item 2 Attachment 1 Exhibit A 2017-2022 Capital Facilities Plan
	Item 2 Attachment 1 Exhibit B - Table of 2017 Proposed School Impact Fees 10-25-16
	Item 3 Blue Sheet_Public Hearing & Consider Ordinance on Interim Sign Code Regulations 10-25-16
	Item 3 Attachment 1 ORD_Interim Zoning Regulations_Signs_10_25_15
	Item 3 Attachment 2 PROPOSED_INTERIM_SIGN CODE_25OCT2016MTG_TC_v3 Sara final in track changes
	PART I: GENERAL PROVISIONS
	PART III: REGULATIONS FOR TEMPORARY SIGNS


	Item 4 Blue Sheet 10-25-2016 YCC Resolution Blue Sheet
	Agenda Item 4

	Item 4 Attachment 1 RES_YCC SARA'S EDITS
	3.1 Appointment. Notice of Vacancies. Unless otherwise directed by the council, the city clerk’s office shall advertise notice of vacant positions so that any interested and qualified individual may submit an application.
	3.2 Applicant Interviews and Appointment. The city council will endeavor to interview all applicants for an available position; provided that the mayor and mayor pro tem may limit the number of applicants interviewed by the council as a whole when the...

	Item 4 Attachment 2 buffer_distance_map_36x48
	Item 5 Blue Sheet, Covington Community Park Phase 2 90% Design Presentation
	Agenda Item 5

	Item 5 Attachment 1 Covington Community Park Phase 2 Diagram
	Item 6 Blue Sheet BS_2017 Agenda Item
	Agenda Item 6

	Item 6 Attachment 12017 Legislative Agenda
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet for Two Meetings
	10-29-2016 Budget Workshop Agenda
	Saturday, October 29, 2016 – 8:00 a.m.
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	11-09-2016 Regular Meeting Agenda - Special Day for Elections
	Wednesday, November 9, 2016                                                                                         City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA




